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2015
426
19
30 6.9
5.0
12.9
3.5
2017
2022 27
30
SEC
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Moody"s
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2017
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2017 30 1.0
2016 2012
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13
2017 10
0.195
2017 12 459
13
2017 2016 2015
12 19
2016 102
100
12.2
2016 21 77.33 5.3 6.1
79
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2017 30 14.3
98
10
2017
30

@ 2,298 1,074 4,974 18,386 26,732
@ 827 124 26 2 979
® 155 187 121 163 626
® 6,306 8,475 6,663 5,344 26,788
© 124 235 73 - 432
®) 459 - - - 459
@) - 1,331 - - 1,331

O10)) 10,169 11,426 11,857 23,895 57,347
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10
241 44
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2017 30 100 69
2017 30
@ o)
2,199,401,982(3) 2,000,546,085,469(4)
2,003,366,656,020
5,637,289 19,362,711
25,000,000
123,525,418
2007 EIP 2015
ESPP 166,492,598
2017 30
1
0.0001 1,817,647,121 ¢y
2)(3
0.0001 369,038,802 A16)
3
0.0001 12,716,059 A
4
0.0001 2,480,466 O]
4
0.0001 3,156,823 O]
- 2,205,039,271 - -

123,525,418
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2017
2017 2016 10

2017 30 2017 30
522,905 826,035
522,905 826,035
95.24 77.83
10,165 8,307
49,210,121.21 62,056,053.54
5,252,196,237 6,623,242,594
522,905 826,035
522,905 826,035
95.24 77.83
10,165 8,307

49,210,121.21

62,056,053.54

5,252,196,237

6,623,242,594

17,945,084

17,945,084

1PO

2017

30
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- 53,463.80

2012 10 - 534,638,003
. 5,706,191
(2,685.94) 50,777.86

2013 30 (26,859,472) 507,778,531
(286,670) 5,419,521
(1,329.49) 49,448.37

2014 30 (13,294, 875) 494,483,656
(141,896) 5,277,625
145,546.10 194,994.47

2015 30 @ 1,455,461,044 1,949,944 ,700
15,534,135 20,811,760
(7,963.92) 187,030.55

2016 30 (79,639,240) 1,870,305, 460
(849,989) 19,961,771
(5,265.83) 181,764.71

2017 30 (52,658,339) 1,817,647,121
(562,022) 19,399,747

2015 30 2015
USA

)
- 36,903.88

2012 10 - 369,038,802
- 3,938,751
0 36,903.88

2013 30 0 369,038,802
0 3,938,751
0 36,903.88

2014 30 0 369,038,802
0 3,938,751
0 36,903.88

2015 30 0 369,038,802
0 3,938,751
0 36,903.88

2016 30 0 369,038,802
0 3,938,751
0 36,903.88

2017 30 0 369,038,802
0 3,938,751

123,525,418
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- 3,050.16

2012 10 - 30,501,639
- 325,544
(355.44) 2,694.72

2013 30 (3,554,438) 26,947,201
(37,936) 287,607
(461.73) 2,232.99

2014 30 (4,617,347) 22,329,854
(49,280) 238,327
(268.56) 1,964.43

2015 30 (2,685,546) 19,644,308
(28,663) 209,664
(208.15) 1,756.28

2016 30 @ (2,081,466) 17,562,842
(22,216) 187,448
(484.68) 1,271.61

2017 30 (4,846,783) 12,716,059
(51,730) 135,719

549,945

- 248.05

2016 21 - 2,480,466
- 26,474
0 248.05

2016 30 0 2,480,466
0 26,474
0 248.05

2017 30 0 2,480,466
0 26,474
- 315.68

2016 21 - 3,156,823
- 33,693
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2017 30
(€Y)
@ 10022
113,375,690 6.10
BlackRock, Inc. 52 55
@) 19355
120,956,278 6.52
The Vanguard Group 100
- 234,331,968 12.62
2017 27 SEC SC 13G/A
2017 10 SEC SC 13G/A
1
@ @
28255
) 100 64,285,884 17.42
Bank of America
Corporation
JP 10017-2070
JP Morgan Chase & Co. 270
JP 19801-2920 40,272,211 10.91
JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. 201 15
94104
Wells Fargo & Company 420
30,108,730 8.16
10152-0002
Wells Fargo Risk
: go RIS 375
Services, Inc.
57104
Citigroup Inc.
grotip 60 701 30,052,340 8.14
10013-2375
Citibank, N.A.
390
10019-6036
20,778,727 5.63
Barclays Bank PLC
1301
- 185,497,892 50.27
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2017 30
1
@ o
_ N 105-8011
Sumitomo Mitsui Card 20 4,173,490 32.82
Company, Limited
- 4,173,490 32.82
2017 30
@
K ECAN 8AF
25
WorldPay (UK) Limited 422,755 17.04
E14 5HP
29 416,832 16.80
Barclays Aldersgate
Investments Limited
FCaV TR 305,352 12.31
Lloyds Bank plc 10 ’ )
E14 5HQ
224,333 9.04
HSBC Bank plc
EH2 2YB
184,077 7.42
The Royal Bank of Scotland 36
plc
175,311 7.07
Chase Paymentech Europe %:3 0
Limited
Allied Irish Banks, 135,035 5.44
p-l.c.
- 1,863,695 75.12
2017 30
@
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75201 13
219,300 6.95
BPCE S.A. 50
- 219,300 6.95
2017 30
EIP ESPP 2017 30
EIP ESPP
15
a
a
13,081,232 50.17? 166,492,598
2017 30 EIP 7,115,876 4,673,701
937,675 ESPP
353,980
ESPP
2015 ESPP
15
15 2017 30 EIP ESPP 149
18
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0.165
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2016
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0.14
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
50.22 56.19 76.92 83.79 106.84
5,360 5,997 8,210 8,943 11,403
33.72 48.71 60.00 66.12 75.17
3,599 5,199 6,404 7,057 8,023
2015
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

92.80 99.53 96.60 101.18 104.20 106.84

9,905 10,623 10,310 10,799 11,121 11,403

88.13 91.14 92.80 93.19 99.53 102.26

9,406 9,727 9,905 9,946 10,623 10,914

79/259



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

11
21
2017 12
60

118,871 407,859 526,730

89,819 311,632 401,451

26,500 191,329 217,829

@ 212,956 . 212,956

82,639 78,846 161,485

107,832 . 107,832
24,997 65,968 90,965

68,692 . 68,692
63,588 - 63,5889

24,872 . 24,872
19,932 . 19,032®

5,471 - 5,471

1,404 . 1,404
) _ @
) ) @

14 922,182 1,534,547 2,456,729

2016 12
3,211
2,880 9,100
5,126 9,100

55
2016

Lynne Biggar
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2013 11 2016 Time Inc.
1992 2013
American Express Company 2012 2013 11
2011 us
Voya Financial, Inc.
Ryan Mclnerney
42
2013
200
JP CEO 2010
2013 75,000 14
23 20
McKinsey & Company
Vasant M. Prabhu
57
2015
NBC NBCUniversal 2014
2015 NBC
NBC
Marriott International
Starwood
Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc. 2004 2014
35 Safeway, Inc.

The McGraw-Hill Companies

PepsiCola International
PepsiCo

Booz, Allen & Hamilton

Mattel, Inc.
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Ellen Richey

68

2007

2017 2014

Washington Mutual, Inc.
Providian Financial Corporation
Farella, Braun &
Martel
Lewis F. Powell, Jr.
William M. Sheedy

50

1993

50
2008 1PO
Rajat Taneja

53

2013 11

IT
Electronic Arts Inc.
2011 10 2013 11
1T
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Microsoft Corporation 2011
2007 2011
Ellie Mae, Inc.
Kelly Mahon Tullier
51
2014
PepsiCo, Inc.
2011 2014
Frito-Lay, Inc.
Baker Botts LLP
Sidney A. Fitzwater
2019 10
2017 12
Lloyd A. Carney
55
Brocade Communications Systems,
Inc. Cypress Semiconductor
Corporation Micromuse, Inc.
2013 2017 11
CEO
2008 2012 Xsigo
Systems CEO
2003 2006
International Business Machines Corporation 1BM
CEO
Wentworth Institute of Technology
Lesley College
Juniper Networks,
Inc.

Nortel Networks Inc.
Bay Networks, Inc.
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CEO
Mary B. Cranston
69
Chemours Company MyoKardia, Inc.
Exponent, Inc.
GrafTech International, Inc.
International Rectifier Corporation
Pillsbury
Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP
1999 2006 2006 12
2012
30 CEO
2002
National Law Journal 100
500
Francisco Javier Fernandez-Carbajal
62
ALFA ALFA S.A.B. de C.V.
CEMEX S.A.B. de C.V.
Fomento Economico Mexicano, S.A.B. de C.V.
El Puerto de Liverpool,
S.A.B. de C.V. Fresnillo, plc
Grupo Aeroportuario del
Pacifico, S.A.B. de C.V. Grupo Bimbo,
S.A.B. de C.V. Grupo Gigante,
S.A.B. de C.V. Grupo Lamosa, S.A.B.
de C.V. IXE IXE Grupo
Financiero S.A_B. de C.V.
2002
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2005

Servicios Administrativos Contry
S.A. de C.V.
2000 2002 BBVA BBVA
Bancomer

BBVA Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. CEO
1991 BBVA
1999 10 2000 1995 10 1999 10

Instituto Tecnologico y de Estudios Superiores de Monterrey

BBVA

BBVA

Gary A. Hoffman

Hastings Group Holdings
plc
Barclays plc
Northern Rock plc NBNK NBNK plc

2010 12

2012 11

Hastings Insurance Group
2011 2012 12
NBNK NBNK Investments
2008 10 2010 11
2006 2008
Barclaycard

15
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CEO NBNK
CEO
Alfred F. Kelly, Jr.
59
MetLife Inc.
Affinion Group Holdings, Inc.
Affinion Group, Inc.
2016 12
2016 2016 10
Intersection
2015 2016 TowerBrook
Capital Partners L.P.
2011 2014 48
2014 NY/NJ 2014 NY/NJ Super Bowl Host
Company
2007
2010 2005 2007
2000 2005
23
1985 1987
1981 1985
John F. Lundgren
66
Callaway Golf Company
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc.
Staples, Inc.
2010 2016
2016 12

2004 2010 Black & Decker

The Stanley Works

2000 2004 Georgia-Pacific
Corporation
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1995 1997
James River Corporation 1997 2000
Fort James Corporation

12

14

Robert W. Matschullat

70
The Clorox Company
The Walt Disney Company
McKesson Corporation
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated
The Seagram Company Limited
2013
2012 11 2015
2006 2006 10 2005 2006
2004 2005
1995 2000
1991 1995
1992 1995 2002 2007
42 100

Suzanne Nora Johnson
60
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2004 11 2007

Institute

21

AIG

John A. C. Swainson

63
Assurant Inc.
Corporation CA, Inc.
Cadence Design Systems Inc.
2012 2016 11
Dell Inc.

2010 2012

Silver Lake Partners
2005 2009 12

CA Technologies

2004 2004 11
1997 2004 1BM

1BM
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1BM 26
1BM
1BM
1BM
1BM
Maynard G. Webb, Jr.
62
Salesforce.com. Inc.
Extensity, Inc. Gartner, Inc.
Hyperion Solutions Corporation
LiveOps, Inc. Niku Corporation
Yahoo! Inc.
Webb Investment Network
Everwise Corporation
2008 2013
2006 12 2011

2002 2006

eBay Inc. 1999 2002

eBay Technologies
1998 1999 Gateway,
Inc.
1995 1998
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2017
2017 2016 2015
2017
1 2 3 ¢ 5,
C )Y C Y  H® ¢ C H®  H® ¢ Y ¢
2017 1,150,799 - 11,883,298 2,749,995 5,875,000 - 75,362 21,734,454
2017 850,032 - 3,017,648 1,387,503 3,221,500 1,189 16,200 8,494,072
2016 850,032 3,125,000 1,757,160 1,031,255 1,230,375 15,652 124,626 8,134,100
2015 547,616 6,875,000 7,500,041 - 1,081,253 14,473 979,180 16,997,563
2017 750,029 - 4,363,957 1,437,500 2,842,500 3,259 20,066 9,417,311
2016 750,029 - 3,984,063 1,476,498 1,153,125 15,552 22,550 7,401,817
2015 750,029 - 1,951,504 928,242 1,498,275 14,824 20,505 5,163,379
2017 750,029 - 4,575,318 1,549,999 2,820,000 1,730 17,450 9,714,526
2016 750,029 - 3,611,865 1,597,002 960,938 15,516 18,600 6,953,950
2015 750,029 - 1,495,880 872,018 1,262,625 14,588 15,900 4,411,040
2017 600,023 - 1,962,161 769,997 1,353,600 1,516 23,350 4,710,647
2017 357,380(6) - 4,276,408(7) - - 12,064 707 4,646,559
2016 1,250,048 - 9,172,003 2,874,998 3,087,500 25,437 32,354 16,442,340
2015 1,000,038 - 5,224,802 2,250,003 3,310,000 24,808 31,717 11,841,368
2017 2016 2015
FASB ASC 718
15
2017
ASC 718
EPS 2017 2014 11 19
2017 11 30 2015 11 19 2018 11 30
2016 11 19 2019 11 30
2015 11 2016 11 EPS
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7,299,978 2,749,981 1,833,339 3,666,678
- 1,387,518 1,630,130 3,260,260
- 1,437,465 2,926,492 5,852,985
- 1,549,966 3,025,352 6,050,704
- 769,972 1,192,189 2,384,378
- - 4,276,408 8,552,815
2017 2016 2015
FASB ASC 718
15
2017 ( VvIp VIP
2017 11 15
( ) ( ) ( )
5,875,000 4,625,000 1,250,000
3,221,500 2,201,500 1,020,000
2,842,500 1,042,500 900,000
2,820,000 1,942,500 877,500
1,353,600 932,400 421,200
2017
2017 2017
2016 12 2017 31
2016 11 19
2016 12
2017
2017

401

« H® « H® C ) C ) C ) C )Y C H® >

707 26,607 5,608 42,400 75362

16,200 16,200
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2,676 16,200 1,190
16,200 1,250
16,200 7,150
707
2017 401 16,200 2016
5,900
PAC 2017
5,000 1,250 1,250
2016 12
( ) ) ( )
36,250 - 36,250
* 26,250
2,500 7,500
)
http://investor.visa.com
94119
193243
2016 10 2016 12
F
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2017
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2017 2017
2017

http://investor.visa.com -
SEC

https://usa.visa.com/about-visa/operating-responsibly.html

527

25,000

2017 CPA-
CPA- CPA-
S&P500
100 94.3 CPA-
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2017 SOX

2018 10

KPMG
KPMG
10- 10-

2017
2017 2017

2017

120,000
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2017
www.visa.com
KPMG LLP
2017 30
PCAOB
1301 KPMG
PCAOB
KPMG KPMG
KPMG
KPMG
SEC 2017 30 10-

2017
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Frederic W. Cook & Co Fw

Fw

2017 12 SEC

2017 12 SEC

2017
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2016 12
2017
2017

2017
Fw Fw

Fw
2017 185,000
185,000
20,000 2018
2017

2018

2017

105,000
185,000
20,000
10,000
10,000
25,000

20,000
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20,000
2017 2016 11 19
185,000
11
2016 11 19
123,333
2018
15,000
PAC
PAC
5,000
2017
2017
* 1 2 3
C H)®P . H® . H® C )

125,000 184,997 5,000 314,997
150,000 184,997 20,000 354,997
125,000 184,997 15,000 324,997
125,000 123,331(4) 233,613(5) 481,944

(6) 31,250 - - 31,250
290,000 184,997 22,500 497,497

) 62,500 184,997 - 247,497
145,000 184,997 20,000 349,997
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* 1 2 3
C O® )@ C D
%) 62,500 184,997 - 247,497
140,000 184,997 10,000 334,997
130,000 184,997 20,000 334,997
* 2017 2017
2017
FASB ASC 718
2017 11 17  SEC
15 2017 30
1,526
2017 12 SEC 2017
2,289
2017
15,000 15,000
17,500 15,000
5,000 15,000 2017
15,000
15,000 PAC
2017
5,000
2017
233,613 2017 30
2017 18
2017
2017
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
105,000 - 20,000 - B
105,000 - 45,000 - -
105,000 - 20,000 . -
105,000 - 20,000 - -
™ 26,250 - 5,000 - -
105,000 185,000 - - -
@ 52,500 - 10,000 - -

105,000 - - 30,000 10,000
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) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
@ 52,500 - - 5,000 5,000
105,000 - - 10,000 25,000
105,000 - 10,000 5,000 10,000
2017 18 2017
2017
2017
2017 2017
13 15 15 15
SEC
2017 30
2017
30
2013
2017 30
2017 30
KPMG LLP
2017 2017 30
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2016 2017
8,810 2,063 9,558 2,586
940,291 220,184 1,020,125 276,004

XBRL

18
SEC PCAOB
10
2017 KPMG SEC
KPMG

KPMG
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( )

2017 30 2016 30

( ) ( )
$ 9,874 \ 1,053,852 $ 5,619 \ 599,716
( ) 1,031 110,039 1,027 109,612
)
82 8,752 71 7,578
3,482 371,634 3,248 346,659
1,422 151,770 1,467 156,573
1,132 120,818 1,041 111,106
10) 1,106 118,043 1,001 106,837
344 36,715 284 30,311
550 58,702 555 59,235
19,023 2,030,325 14,313 1,527,626
( ) 1,926 205,562 3,931 419,556
591 63,077 448 47,815
( ) 2,253 240,463 2,150 229,470
1,226 130,851 893 95,310
) 27,848 2,972,217 27,234 2,906,685
) 15,110 1,612,690 15,066 1,607,994
$ 67,977 7,255,185 $ 64,035 6,834,456
$ 179 \ 19,105 $ 203 \ 21,666
2,003 213,780 2,084 222,425
10) 1,106 118,043 1,001 106,837
757 80,795 673 71,829
2,089 222,959 1,976 210,898
1,129 120,498 1,128 120,391
( ) 1,749 186,671

19) 982 104,809 981 104,702
9,994 1,066,660 8,046 858,750
16,618 1,773,639 15,882 1,695,086
18) 5,980 638,245 4,808 513,158
1,304 139,176 1,225 130,744
) 1,321 140,990 1,162 124,020
35,217 3,758,710 31,123 3,321,758

¢ 16
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( )
( )
2017 30 2016 30
( ) )
0.0001 25
A
13
B 2017 2016
30 2,326 248,254 2,516 268,533
13
c 2017 2016
30 3,200 341,536 3,201 341,643
13
A 0.0001
2,001,622 2017 2016 30
1,818 1,871
13
B 0.0001 622
2017 2016 30
245 13
c 0.0001 1,097
2017 2016 30
13 17 13
13 (170) (18,144)
(52) (5,550) (34) (3,629)
16,900 1,803,737 17,395 1,856,568
9,508 1,014,789 10,462 1,116,609
73 7,791 36 3,842
(76) (8,111) (225) (24,014)
(36) (3,842) (50) (5,337)
917 97,871 (219) (23,374)
878 93,709 (458) (48,882)
32,760 3,496,475 32,912 3,512,698
$ 67,977 \7,255,185 $64,035  \6,834,456
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30
2017 2016 P 2015

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

$ 7,975 \ 851,172 $ 6,747 \ 720,107 $ 6,302 \ 672,612

7,786 831,000 6,272 669,411 5,552 592,565

6,321 674,640 4,649 496,188 4,064 433,751

841 89,760 823 87,839 823 87,839

(4,565) (487,222) (3,409)  (363,843) (2,861)  (305,355)

18,358 1,959,349 15,082 1,609,702 13,880 1,481,412

2,628 280,486 2,226 237,581 2,079 221,892

922 98,405 869 92,748 872 93,069

620 66,173 538 57,421 474 50,590

409 43,653 389 41,518 336 35,861

556 59,342 502 53,578 494 52,725

1,060 113,134 796 84,957 547 58,381

19 19 2,028 2 213 14 1,494
1,877 200,332

6,214 663,220 7,199 768,349 4,816 514,012

12,144 1,296,129 7,883 841,353 9,064 967,401

(563) (60,089) 427) (45,574) ®) (320)

1 113 12,060 556 59,342 (66) (7,044)

(450) (48,029) 129 13,768 (69) (7,364)

11,694 1,248,101 8,012 855,121 8,995 960,036

18 4,995 533,116 2,021 215,701 2,667 284,649

$ 6,699 \ 714,984 $ 5,991 \ 639,419 $ 6,328 \ 675,387

@ 2016 21 2016 30
2016 30
2016 30
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( )
( )
30
2017 2016 @ 2015

) ( ) ( )
$ 2.80 \ 299 $  2.49 \ 266 $ 2.58 \ 275
$  4.62 \ 493 $ 4.10 \ 438 $  4.26 \ 455
$ 11.21 \ 1,19 $ 9.94 \ 1,061 $ 10.33 \ 1,103

1,845 1,906 1,954

245 245 245

14 19 22
$ 2.80 \ 299 $ 2.48 \ 265 $ 2.58 \ 275
$ 4.61 \ 492 $ 4.0 \ 437 $ 4.25 \ 454
$ 11.19 \ 1,104 $ 9.03 \ 1,060 $ 10.30 \ 1,099

2,395 2,414 2,457

245 245 245

14 19 22

21 2016 30
2016 30
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2017 2016 2015
( ) ( ) ) ( )
$ 6,699 \ 714,984 $ 5,991 \ 639,419 $ 6,328 \ 675,387
60 6,404 51 5,443 1) (2,241)
(24) (2,562) (18) (1,921) 8 854
1 107 ®) (320) 1) (2,241)
1 107 8 854
183 19,532 (106) (11,313) (122)  (13,021)
(54) (5,763) 36 3,842 45 4,803
32 3,415 10 1,067 @) (107)
(12) (1,281) ) 427) 1 107
22) (2,348) (74) (7.898) 172 18,358
15 1,601 9 961 (51) (5.443)
33 3,522 (103) (10,993) (102)  (10,886)
(12) (1,281) 35 3,736 26 2,775
1,136 121,245 (218) (23,267) 1 107
1,336 142,591 (384) (40,984) ) (6,084)
$ 8,035 \ 857,576  $ 5,607 \ 598,435 $ 6,271 \ 669,304
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Oooooooo
( )
A B c
1,978 245 22 $18,209 $ 9,131 $ (17)  $27,413
6,328 6,328
(€D (57
6,271
11 @
4
o® 187 187
o (108) (108)
84 84
3 82 82
(1,177) 1.,177)
(44) @71)  (2.439) (2,910)
1,950 245 20 $18,073 $11,843 $ (74)  $29,842
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13
c
15
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A
13
2016 30
@ B
@
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( )
(€]
c A B

1,950 245 20 $ $ $ $ 18,073 $ 11,843 $ (7D $ 29,842
5,991 5,991
(384) (384)
5,607
3 5,717 5,717
(34) (34)
(€)) (170) (170)

8 @

2
@ 221 221
@ (92) (92)
63 63
3 95 95
(1,350) (1,350)
91) (965) (6,022) (6,987)
3 1,871 245 17 $ 5,717 $ (@70) $ (34) $17,395 $ 10,462 $  (458) $ 32,912
U.K.&l
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c
15
0.165
13
A
13
2017 30
@ B
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(
@
B C A B
2 3 1,871 245 17 $ 5,717 $ @17) $ (G4  $17,395 $ 10,462 $  (458) $ 32,912
6,699 6,699
1,336 1,336
8,035
(209) (209)
13 (191) 191

18 2 170 170
14 14

17 (O)

2
@ 235 235
(€)) (76) (76)
4 149 149
(1,579) (1,579)
an (817) (6,074) (6,891)
2 3 1,818 245 13 $ 5,526 $ $  (52)  $ 16,900 $ 9,508 $ 878 $ 32,760
C U.K.&l
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oooooog
( )
)
A B c
1,978 245 22 \1,953,052  \ 974,552 \ (1,814) \2,925,789
675,387 675,387
(6,084) (6,084)
669,304
11 @
4
O 19,959 19,959
@ (11,527) (11,527)
8,965 8,965
3 8,752 8,752
(125,621) (125,621)
44) (50, 270) (260,314) (310,584)
1,950 245 o0 \1,928,931  \1,264,003 \ (7,898)  \3,185,037
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)
A B
1,950 245 20 \ \ \ \1,928,931  \1,264,003 \ (7,898)  \3,185,037
639,419 639,419
(40,984) (40,984)
598,435
610,175 610,175
(3,629) (3,629)
) (18,144) (18,144)
8 @
2
@ 23,587 23,587
w (9,819) (9,819)
6,724 6,724
3 10,139 10,139
(144,086) (144,086)
(91) (102,994) (642,728) (745,723)
1,871 245 17\ 10,175 \ (18,144)  \ (3,629) \1 856,568  \1,116,609 \ (48.,882) \3 512,698
U.K.&l
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2016 30

13

13

15

0.165
13

13
2017 30

@ B
@
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(€]
B ¢ A
2 3 1,871 245 17 \ 610,175 \ (18,144) \ (3,629) \1,856,568 \1,116,609  \ (48,882)  \3,512 698
714,984 714,984
142,591 142,591
857,576
(22,307) (22,307)
(20,385) 20,385
18 2 18,144 18,144
1,494 1,494
17 1))
2
@ 25,082 25,082
(6 (8,111) (8,111)
4 15,903 15,903
(168,527) (168,527)
an (87,198)  (648,278) (735,476)
2 3 1,818 245 13\ 589,790 \ - \ (5,550) \1,803,737 \1,014,789 \ 93,709 \ 3,496,475
C U.K.&l
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30
2017 2016 2015
( ) ( ) ) _( ) ) _( )
$ 6,609  \ 714,984 $ 5,991  \ 639,419 $ 6,328  \ 675,387
4,565 487,222 3,409 363,843 2,861 305,355
(255) (27,216) 110 11,740
15 235 25,082 221 23,587 187 19,959
(63) (6,724) (84) (8,965)
556 59,342 502 53,578 494 52,725
1,700 181,441 (764) (81,542) 195 20,812
(209) (22,307) ©) (961)
192 20,492
13 18
50 5,337 64 6,831 24 2,562
94 10,033 391 41,731 378 40,344
(54) (5,763) (65) (6,937) 19) (2,028)
(4,628)  (493,946) (3,508) (374,409) (2,970)  (316,988)
(252) (26,896) (315) (33,620) 1) (4,376)
(30) (3,202) 43 4,589 13) (1,387)
(176) (18,784) (302) (32,232) (552) (58,915)
465 49,629 277 29,564 118 12,594
19 1 107 43) (4,589) (432) (46,107)
9,208 982,770 5,574 504,913 6,584 702,710
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( )
( )
30
2017 2016 2015
) ) )
(707) (75,458) (523) (55,820) 414) (44,186)
12 1,281 10 1,067
(3,238) (345,592) (10,426)  (1,112,767) (2.850) (304,181)
5,012 534,931 9,119 973,271 1,925 205,455
(302) (32,232) (9,082) (969,322) (93) (9,926)
(46) (4,910) (10) (1,067) (25) (2,668)
4 427 6 640 12 1,281
735 78,447 (10,916)  (1,165,065) (1,435) (153,158)
(6,891) (735,476) (6,987) (745,723) (2,910) (310,584)
(170) (18,144)
(1,579) (168,527) (1,350) (144,086) @,177) (125,621)
2,488 265,544 15,971 1,704,585
(15) (1,601) (98) (10, 460)
45 4,803 426 45,467
149 15,903 95 10,139 82 8,752
(76) (8,111) 92) (9,819) (108) (11,527)
63 6,724 84 8,965
(5,924) (632,269) 7,477 798,020 (3.603) (384,548)
236 25,188 (34) (3.629) 1 107
4,255 454,136 2,101 224,240 1,547 165,111
5,619 599,716 3,518 375,476 1,971 210,365
$ 9,874  \1,053,852 $ 5,619 \ 599,716 $ 3,518 \ 375,476
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( )
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30

2017 2016 2015

) ) ( )
$ \ $ 5,717 \ 610,175 $ \
$ \ $ 1,236 \ 131,918 $ \
$ 3,038 \ 324,246 $ 2,842 \ 303,327 $ 2,486 \ 265,331
$ 489 \ 52,191 $ 244 \ 26,042 $ \
$ 50 \ 5,337 $ 42 \ 4,483 $ 81 \ 8,645
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Visa U.S.A. Inc. USA ) Visa International Service
Association ) Visa Worldwide Pte.Limited, Visa Europe
Limited Visa Canada Corporation
)
2016 21 100
2017
18
US GAAP
VIE
VIE
2015 18 A
13
2016
17.6
28.0 26.7 10.4 9.1
2015 12

90

US GAAP
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2014 FASB ASU
2014-09 ASU
ASU
US GAAP ASU FASB
2018 10
ASU 2014-09
2014 FASB ASU 2014-12 ASU
2016 10
2015 FASB ASU 2015-05 ASU
2016 10
2016 FASB ASU 2016-01 ASU
2018 10
2016 FASB ASU 2016-02 ASU
2019

10

2016 FASB ASU 2016-09 ASU

2016 10
2017 30
70
2017 30
2017 30

70
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2016 10

2016 11

2017

2017

2017

2017

2019 10

2016

12.2

21

FASB

FASB

FASB

FASB

FASB

FASB

ASU

ASU

ASU

ASU

ASU

ASU

13.9

79

2016-16

2016-18

2017-04

2017-07

2017-09

2017-12
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ASU
2018 10

ASU

2018 10

ASU

2020 10

ASU

2018 10

ASU

2018 10

ASU

ASU 2017-12

100

2016 21 77.33 5.3 6.1

1.0 4

0.0001 A

0.0001 UK&l
0.0001
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2,480,466
3,156,823
UK&I
13.952 A A
VE
2017
$ 4,457 $ $ 4,457
258 (46) 212
(2,731) (36) (2,767)
(2,605) 607 (1,998)
$ (621) $ 525 $ (96)
16,137 (232) 15,905
3,268 (293) 2,975
$ 18,784 $ $ 18,784
2017
18-
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B USA
1:05-md-01720-J6-J0 E.D.N.Y. MDL 1720 MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720 2012 23(b)(3) 2015
10 22 MDL 1720
MDL 1720 MDL 1720
19
USA
2017 2016
( )
10 $ 1,027 $ 1,072
M 4 (45)
30 $ 1,031 $ 1,027
@ 19
2017 2016

19
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B
A B
A A
B A
13
USA
USA
USA
USA
19
USA
USA USA
USA
O
USA
) USA USA
USA
USA
2015 10 22 MDL 1720
23(b)(3) MDL
1720 MDL 1720
MDL 1720
USA
19
33.3333 66.6667

33.3333 66.6667
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2014 26
33.3333
LSA
2016 21
UK&I

66.6667
LSA
(@)
1.0
Q)
UK&I
VE
UK&l
VE
VE
VE
UK&I
VE
@

©) A
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LSA

LSA

UK&I

VE
UK&I

VE
VE

VE

VE

VE

70
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VE

2017

2016
30

2016
VE

2017

2016

UK&I

A

30

30 UK&I

2017 30

30

30

VE

30
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VE
A
VE
VE
20
UK&I
VE 191
13.952 2017
13.077 13.948 2017 30 VE
52 25
VE
VE
19-
UK&I
$ 2,516 $ 3,201 $ (34)
(209)
(190) 6D 191
$ 2,32 $ 3,200 $ (52)
2017
)
2017 30 2016 30
@ (€))
( )
$ 3,414 $ 2,326 $ 2,862 $ 2,516
4,634 3,200 3,642 3,201
8,048 5,526 6,504 5,717
(52) (52) (3%) (34)
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OooooOodd
$ 7,99 $ 5,474 $ 6,470 $ 5,683

(a) 2017 30 UK&I

(b) 2017 30 UK&I
A 13.077 13.948 ©)
30 A 105.24

(a) 2016 30 UK&I
(b) 2016 30 UK&I

A 13.952 (c) 2016 30

A 82.70
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30
2017 2016 2017 2016
30 30 30 30
( )
$ 5,935 $ 4,537
$ 2,870 $ 196
$ 82 $ 71
3,663 4,699
1,621 2,178
124 53
- 249
18 50
6
$ 7,762 $ 6,839 $ 6,551 $ 5,200
$ 98 $ 116
- 20
$ - $ - $ 98 $ 136

2017

2017
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2017 2016 2015 2017

2016 30 94 46
2017
2017 30
2017 30
2017 30 2016 30
( )

2017 12 1.20 $ 1,749 $ 1,751 $ 1,746 $ 1,754
2020 12 2.20 2,990 3,031 2,988 3,077
2022 2.15 993 997 - -
2022 12 2.80 2,240 2,301 2,238 2,359
2025 12 3.15 3,967 4,098 3,964 4,225
2027 2.75 740 737 - -
2035 12 4.15 1,485 1,637 1,485 1,698
2045 12 4.30 3,463 3,873 3,461 4,045
2047 3.65 740 746 - -

$ 18,367 $ 19,171 $ 15,882 $ 17,158
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2017 30 2016 30
( ) ( )
$3,664 $ 1 $ (2) $3,663 $4,693 $ 6 $ $4,699
1,623 - (©)) 1,621 2,176 3 2,179
5 119 - 124 7 46 53
- - - - 248 - 248
$5,292 $ 120 $ (4) $5,408 $7,124 $ 55 $ $7,179
(3,482) (3,248)
$1,926 $3,931
1.9
( )
2017 30
$ 3,360 $ 3,358
1,927 1,926
10 - -
10 - -
$ 5,287 $ 5,284
30
2017 2016 2015
( )
$ 92 $ 75 $ 31
6 5 3
6 3 ()
2 - 2
@ 3 21
- 4 (©)
$ 105 $ 82 $ 46
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2017 2016
30 30

( )
$ 72 $ 74
865 839
1,534 1,382
139 125
2,533 2,378
5,143 4,798
(2,890) (2,648)
$ 2,253 $ 2,150

2017 2016 30
1.7 1.5
2017 30
2022
2018 2019 2020 2021
( )
$ 265 $ 222 $ 159 $ 107 $ 76 $ 829
2017 2016 2015
500 452 431 2017 2016

2015 285 259

251
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2017 30 2016 30

$ 438 $ (37 $ 201 $ 3B1 $ (2200 $ 131

195 (93) 102 192 (80) 112

95 79 16 95 (70) 25

17 (©)) 8 18 ) 9

745 (418) 327 656 (379) 277
23,437 - 23,437 22,873 - 22,873
4,084 - 4,084 4,084 - 4,084
27,521 - 27,521 26,957 - 26,957

$ 28,266 $ (418) $27,848 $ 27,613 $ (379) $27,234

2017 2016 2015
56 50 63 2017 30
2022
2018 2019 2020 2021
( )
$ 40 $ 40 $ 40 $ 40 $ 7 $ 231
2017 2016 2015
2017 302
104
181
2017

2017
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2017 2016
30 30
( )
$ 434 $ 347
149 145
243 153
303 483
$ 1,129 $ 1,128
2017 2016
30 30
( )
$ 1,092 $ 911
62 137
167 114

$ 1,321 $ 1,162
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2017 30 2016 30
( )
2017
1.20
2017
$ 1,750 $ @ $ 1,749 $ $ $ 1.37%
1,750 @ 1,749
2017
1.20
2017
1,750 4) 1,746 1.37%
2020
2.20
2020
3,000 (10) 2,990 3,000 12) 2,988 2.30%
2022
2.15
2020
1,000 ©) 993 2.30%
2022 12
2.80
2022 12
2,250 (10) 2,240 2,250 12) 2,238 2.89%
2025
3.15
2025
4,000 (33) 3,967 4,000 (36) 3,964 3.26%
2027
2.75
2027
750 (10) 740 2.91%
2035
4.15
2035
1,500 (15) 1,485 1,500 (15) 1,485 4.23%
2045
4.30
2045
3,500 @n 3,463 3,500 (39) 3,461 4.37%
2047
3.65
2047
750 (10) 740 3.73%
16,750 (132) 16,618 16,000 (118) 15,882
$ 18,500 $ (133) $18,367  $ 16,000 $ (118)  $ 15,882
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2017 2.5 30 2022 2027
2047 2017 2017
2018 15 15 15 2017
2.5
2017 2017 11
2017 1.75 2017 2017 10 11
1.75 2017
2015 12 16.0 30 2017 2020
2022 12 2025 2035 2045 2015
2015 2015
15.9
2017
2015
2017 30
2017 2016 505 399
2017
100
2020 2020 11 14 10 bps
2022 2022 15 10 bps
2022 12 2022 10 14 12.5 bps
2025 2025 14 15 bps
2027 2027 15 12.5 bps
2035 2035 14 20 bps
2045 2045 14 20 bps
2047 2047 15 15 bps
2017 100
2023
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
( ) $1,750 $ $ $ 3,000 $ 1,000 $ 12,750  $18,500
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3.0
397 2017 0.79
567 2017 30
2016 27 4.0
2017 27
2022 27
4.0
LIBOR
EBITDA 3.75 1.00

2017 30 2017 30
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30 30 30
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
( )

$ 1,02 $ 1,005 $ 14 $ 18 $ 474 S -
- - - - - 381
- 13 - 1
36 40 1 1 11 3
(58) 86 (6)) ) (52) 86
@3n) (64) €)) ©)) 14) @
- ®) - - - -
- - - - 4
$ 913 $ 1,072 $ 11 $ 14 $ 433 $ 474
$ 913 $ 1,072 $ 433 $ 474
$ 1,077 0§ 1,022 $ - 3 - $ 45 3 -
- - - - - 287
125 118 - - 17 25
9 1 3 3 5 102
@37 (64) ©)) €)) 14) @
- - - - 10 2
$ 1,074 $ 1,077 $ - % - $ 433 $ 415
$ 161 S 5 ¢ (@) $ (@14 8 - $  (59)
$ 168 $ 22 $ - $ - $ - $ -
@ ® @) €)) ® ®)
® ®) (©)) 1y S (53)

$ 161 $ 5 $ () $ (@4 $ - 3 (59)
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30 30 30
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
( )
$ 97 $ 221 $ (@B $ G $ 9 $ 66
- - - ®) - -
$ 97 $ 241 $ (@ $ (7O $ 9 $ 66
2018
( )
$ - $ (@) $ -
$ - $ () $ -
@
30 30
2017 2016 2017 2016
( )
$ (M $ @16 $ (G $ (19
$ - $ - $ - $ 415
$ (M $ @16 $ (G $ (79
$ - $ - $ - $ 415
2016

(1) 2017
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()]
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
( )
$ - $ 13 $ 47 $ - S - % - $ 6 $ 1
36 40 40 1 1 1 1 3
70) (69) (72) - - - (16) “)
- @ @ ) ©) ©) - -
15 7 1 ® (@) (@) 2 -
$ (99 $ @0) 3 9 $ B $ @G 3s @ s 3 3 -
- () - - - - - -
15 13 7 - - - - -
$ @ $ B) S 1668 $ B $ WSS & %$ 33 -
(D) 2016 2016 30
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
( )

$Q13) $ 30 $ - $ @ $ B3) $ 66

(30) (20) 2 2 () -

- 9 2 3 - -

$Q@3) $ 19 $ 4 $ 3 $ (B5) $ 66

$Q@7n $ 14 $ 1 $ (D $ 52) $ 66
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2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
@)
3.84% 3.62% 4.33% 2.70% 2.40%
2.44% 1.91% 2.43%
3.62% 4.33% 4.27% 2.40% 3.10%
1.91% 2.43% 2.59%
@ 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 4.50% 3.92%
®)
4.00% 3.20% 3.20%
4.00% 3.20% 3.00%
(€H)
)
)
(3) 2015 10 2015 12 31
2017 2016
2018
2025
50 80 25 35
2017 30
64 33
28
47 25 2017
30 31 44 25

2017 2016 30
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30

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

( )
$ 31 $ 39 $ 3 $ 39
$ 540 $ - 540 -
197 185 197 185
47 30 47 30
75 100 75 100
$ 39 $ 51 39 51
145 672 145 672

$ 251 ¢ 811 § 784 $ 215 $ 39 $ 51 $1,074 $1,077

30

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

( )
$ 1 $ 105 $ 1 $ 105
$ 39 $ 39 39 39
150 52 150 52
$ 32 $ 29 32 29
134 116 134 116
@ 77 74 77 74

$ 285 $ 273 $ 116 $ 113 $ 32 $ 29 $ 433 $ 415

@

S&P500 S&P500

2017 2016 2017 2016
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2017 $ 9 $ 3 $ 5
2016 $ 1 $ 3 $ 102
2018 $ 1 $ 2 $ 5
2018 $ 161 $ 2 $ 5
2019 $ 83 $ 2 $ 5
2020 $ 82 $ 2 $ 5
2021 $ 80 $ 1 $ 5
2022 $ 75 $ 1 $ 5
2023-2027 $ 323 $ 1 $ 29
401k
401k 2017 2016
2015 58 55 49

401k
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67.8
2.8 2.9
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2017
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2017
67.7 2016 30
2017 2016 30
2017 2016
30 30
( )
$ 1,490 $ 1,295
167 170
1,316 1,311
941 1,418
$ 3,914 $ 4,194
2016 30
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64
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29
1.0
2017 30
51
2017 30
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2017 30
2016 30 1.6 2017
2017 2016
18 30
2018 49
US GAAP
2017 2016 30
1.1
2017 30
1.2
1.1
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47 2016
10
2017
10
13
18
2015
A
B
B
C C
A B
A
UK&I
A A
2017 30
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2017 2016
30 30
( )
$ 2,003 $ 1,827
250 323
$ 2,253 $ 2,150
2017
52 2015 53
2016 2015
A
C
2017
A
C
B A 1.6483
A 4.0
C
UK&I
13.952
A
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A A
@
2 13.0770 32
3 13.9480 44
A ©) 1,818 - 1,818
245 1.6483(3) 405
c 13 4.0000 51
2,350
A
A 2017 30
B A
10
A 2017 A 79
89.92 79 77 6.9
VE
191 A
UK&I
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2016
@
(©)
2017
A
2017
UK&I
(
)
A
(€)) A
0 B
A
B

30

)

2017
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[€H)
2017 2016
(
)
Q) 77 91
$ 89.98 $  77.05
$ 6,81 $ 6,987
2017 2017
2016 2015 30
2017 30 2016 2016 30
5.0 2017 30
3.9 2017
UK&I
VE
VE
2016
UK&I
2017 2017
2 KO
$ 88.70 $ 85.01
$ 190 $ 1
B
B A
B
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2017 2016
c 2017 30 C
139 C A
2017
2016 UK&l
UK&l VE
UK&I
12
UK&I 12
12 A
A A
A A
A A 100
UK&I
A
UK&l
A
UK&I
A B
C
B
C A
B C
B C
B C
2017 1.6 0.165
2017 10 A 0.195 B
C UK&I
2017 11 17 2017

12
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14
13
A
A Q) UK&I
c A )
A
2017 @

2 2
@ @ B M)/ (@) A @ B A/ ®)
A $ 5,170 1,845 $ 2.80 $ 6,699 2.395 & $ 2.80
1,134 245 $ 4.62 $ 1,132 245 $ 4.61
163 14 $11.21 $ 162 14 $ 11.19

(O] 232 $ 232

$ 6,699
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2016 @
2 2
@ ® @B M)/ @) A ® B A/ ®)
A $ 4,738 1,906 $ 2.49 $ 5,991 2,414 $ 2.48
1,006 245 $ 4.10 $ 1,004 245 $ 4.09
185 19 $ 9.94 $ 185 19 $ 9.93
* 62 $ 61
$ 5,991
2015 M
2 2
@ @ (B) A/ @) ®» ® ® A/ B
A $ 5,044 1,954 $ 2.58 $ 6,328 2,457 $ 2.58
1,045 245 $ 4.26 $ 1,042 245 $ 4.25
224 22 $ 10.33 $ 223 22 $ 10.30
® 15 $ 15
$ 6,328
(€H)
2015
13
) B
2017 2016 2015 405
C 2016 2015 58 75
87 2017 UK&l
33 44
@A)
2017 2016 2015
2016 2015
O] UK&I
UK&l
A A
13
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15
2007
2007 EIP
RSA
RSU
A 236
EIP
2022
2017 2015
EIP 224
211 184 2017
2015 67 62 54 2017 2016
2015
2015
13
EIP 10
2017 2016 2015
2017 2016 2015
@ 4.23 4.35 4.55
@ 1.6% 1.5% 1.5%
® 20.2% 21.7% 2200
® 0.8% 0.7% 0.8%
$ 13.90 $ 15.01 $ 12.04
@
1PO
2017
87 13 2016 77 23 2015 67
33
)
(©)] 2017 20
2016 20 23 2015 21 23

*
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2017
@
2016 10 8,876,484 $ 38.42
1,671,344 $ 80.82
(386,136) $ 75.01
(3,045,816) $ 29.62
2017 30 7,115,876 $ 50.17 5.4 $ 392
2017 30 4,463,008 $ 33.39 3.6 $ 321
2017 30
@ 6,773,571 $ 48.73 5.3 $ 383
(1) 2017 105.24
@ 2017 30
2017 2016 2015 178
103 134 62 35 86
2017 30
19 0.4
EIP RSA RSU
RSA A RSA
A A
RSU A
RSU
RSU A
2016 RSA EIP RSU
RSA RSU A
2015 RSA 63.71
2017 2016 RSA 2017 2016 2015
RSU 81.67 79.77 62.88 2017
2016 2015 RSA RSU 163
142 132
2017 RSA RSU
@
RSA RSU RSA RSU RSA RSU
2016 10
1,766,582 3,146,954 $59.26 $ 75.48
- 3,268,327 $ - $8L.67
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(1,210,176)  (1,299,187) $ 57.37 $ 72.20
(90,399) (442,393) $61.90 $ 79.34
2017 30
466,007 4,673,701  $ 63.37 $ 80.37 0.2 1.6 $ 49 $ 492
(1) 2017 105.24
2017 30 RSA RSU
215 RSA 0.2 RSU 1.6
2017
@
2016 10 1,042,012 $ 78.24
@ 634,651 $ 86.37
(345,797) $ 72.50
(97,531) $ 72.50
(295,660) $ 85.13
2017 30 937,675 $ 84.20 1.0 $ 98
(1) 2017 105.24
(@)
500
2017 2016 2015
86.37 92.71 69.78
2017 2016 2015
2017 30
33 1.0
2015 A
ESPP ESPP
15 A

ESPP 20 2015
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2017 2016 2015 ESPP
16
2017
2016 2015 159 134 136
2017 30
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
$ 155 $ 119 $ 68 $ 64 $ 57 $ 163 $ 626
124 123 112 40 33 - 432
$ 279 $ 242 $ 180 $ 104 $ 90 $ 163 $1,058
16
2017 30
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
$5,049 $4,654 $4,117 $ 3,658 $ 3,102 $ 5,080 $25,660
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100
1.0 4

10

10

2017 2016 30
2017 2016
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18

2017 2016 2015
$ 8,440 $ 5,839 $ 7,214
3,254 2,173 1,781
$ 11,694 $ 8,012 $ 8,995

2017 2016 2015
2.9 2.5 2.4

2017 2016 2015
$ 2,377 $ 2,250 $ 1,91
291 181 168
629 368 300
3,297 2,799 2,459
1,607 (508) 181
66 (63) 1
25 (207) 26
1,698 (778) 208
$ 4,995 $ 2,021 $ 2,667

2017 2016 30
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2017 2016
$ 194 $ 277
29 106
373 373
272 266
45 32
236 195
- 1,214
193 280
(35) (31)
1,307 2,712
(391) (278)
(6,756) (7,013)
(59) (106)
- (101)
(7,206) (7,498)
$ (5,899) $ (4,786)
2017
2016
1.5
2017 2016 30 81 22
50
2017 2016
2017 30 42 27
140 2026 2037

2017 30 2027 30
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35
30
2017 2016 2015
) () ) ) C ) Q)
$ 4,093 3B% $ 2,804 3% $ 3,148 35 %
200 2 % 135 2 % 194 2 %

(641) G)% (553) % (327) (%

1,515 13 % - - % - - %
- - % (88) W% - - %
- - % - - % (239) @)%
- " (89) @)% - - %
172) @% (188) 3% (109) @)%
$ 4,995 43 % $ 2,021 5% $ 2,667 30 %
2017
1.5
2017 43 2016 25 2017
2016
2017 1.5
2017
71
2016-09 2017
70 -
2016
1.9 2016
2016
88
2016 255
2016 25 2015 30 2016 2015

2016
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2016
88
2016
296
239
2017 2016 30
2017 2016 30 755
2017 2016 30
2017 30
12.9
2017 2016 2015
252 235 192
0.11 0.10 0.08
740
2017 2016 30
1.4 1.2

1.1
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255
2015 296
148 232
731

243 153

1.1 911
2023 30
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2016
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84
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2017 2016
(
$ 1,160 $ 1,051
56 153
(59) (180)
197 138
(€)) @)
$ 1,353 $ 1,160
2017 2016
15 2015 2017
2017 2016 30
61 34
2017 2016 30
2006
2006
CRA 2003 2009
CRA 2010
CRA 2015 2016
2002

1771259
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30
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2014 14

2016 30
2017
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2014

2014

30
MDL

USA
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27

MDL1720

2012
1.1

2014 2017

978
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2017 2016
$ o981 $ 1,024
19 2
186 2
(204) (47)
$ 082 $ 981

2017 2016
$ 978 $ 1,023
- (45)
$ 978 $ 978

MDL1720
MDL
4.0
450
528 2017
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U.K.&l
2017 2016
10 $ 2 $ -
186 2
(187) -
30 $ 1 $ 2
MDL
2005 USA
MDL1720
IPO
1PO
350
2012 10 29
USA
MasterCard Incorporated MasterCard
International Incorporated
2012 2012
@
@) 4.0
10
©))
*)
2012 12 10 2012
4.0
2014 14
2016 30
2012 2016 11 23
2017 27
2016 11 30
2017

USA
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2017 10
2017 27
2017 10 23
2017 10 27
MDL
2013 2012 50
MDL1720
USA
Wal-Mart
Stores Inc.
2017 MDL1720
2017
10 23
2017 10 27
MDL1720
MDL1720
2012
The Home Depot,
Inc. USA Home Depot U.S.A.
Sears Holdings Corporation
2012
2004 2012 11 27
MDL1720
MDL1720
1:05-md-
01720-JG-J0 (E.D.N.Y.)
MDL1720
MDL1720

2017 10 31
2012 51
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2013 300
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2016 11
2017
30
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2013
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MDL1720
Broadway Grill
2004
2017 17
MDL1720
75
EC
2009
SSO
SSO
EEA

EC
EC
2018
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Dpee 2013 EC DCC EU
2010 12
10
2014 26
2010
2017 11
2017
2010 11 19
Webloyalty.com, Inc. Gamestop
Corporation
2015 10 15
2015 11 12 2016 12 20
ATM
ATM National ATM Council 2011 10 ATM 13 ATM
USA Plus
System, Inc.
ATM
2011 10 ATM

2011 10
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2012 13
CID 15
CID
PIN
CID
Pulse Network
2014 11 25 Pulse Network LLC
PIN
2015 23 2015 12 17
2017 15
2014 12 23
MDL1720
2015 15
EMv
Milam®s Market B&R
B&R Supermarket, Inc. Grove Liquors LLC 2016
2016 15 USA
EMVCo
EMVCo
2015 10
2016 30 EMVCo
USA
2017 10 2017
MDL1720
2016 10
USA

2016 29

2017
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2017

2017

2017

27
29
2017 11 13
USA
19

The Kroger Co.

Nuts for Candy

10

MDL

2016 11
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2017 2016
2017 2017 2017 2016 2017
30 30 31 @ 12 31

$ 4,855 $ 4,565 $ 4,477 $ 4,461 $ 18,358
$ 3,212 $ 3,024 $ 2,808 $ 3,100 $ 12,144
$ 2,140 $ 2,059 $ 430 $ 2,070 $ 6,699
A $ 0.91 $ 0.87 $ 0.18 $ 0.86 $ 2.80
B $ 1.49 $ 1.43 $ 0.30 $ 1.4 $ 4.62
C $ 3.62 $ 3.46 $ 0.72 $ 3.43 $ 11.21
A $ 0.90 $ 0.86 $ 0.18 $ 0.86 $ 2.80
B $ 1.49 $ 1.42 $ 0.29 $ 1.4 $ 4.61
C $ 3.61 $ 3.45 $ 0.72 $ 3.42 $  11.19

2016 2016 2016

2016 30 @D 31 (€)) 2015
30 ® () 12 31 ®

$ 4,261 $ 3,630 $ 3,626 $ 3,565 $ 15,082
$ 2,625 $ 428 $ 2,434 $ 2,396 $ 7,883
$ 1,931 $ 412 $ 1,707 $ 1,941 $ 5,991
A $ 0.79 $ 0.17 $ 0.71 $ 0.80 $ 2.49
B $ 1.31 $ 0.29 $ 1.17 $ 1.32 $ 4.10
C $ 3.17 $ 0.69 $ 2.8 $ 3.20 $ 9.9
A $ 0.79 $ 0.17 $ 0.71 $ 0.8 $ 2.48
B $ 1.30 $ 0.28 $ 1.17 $ 1.32 $ 4.09
C $ 3.16 $ 0.69 $ 2.84 $ 3.20 $ 9.93
Overview within Item 7 -

Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 2017 10-K

2016 21 2016 30
2016 21 2016 30 B C
Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 2017 10-K
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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Saptember 30,
2017

September 30,
2016

{in milllans, axcept par value data)

oOoOooodn

Astals
Cash and cash equivalents .. A g s B S SRR s 9874 % 5619
Reslricted cash—U.5. mtlm mraw mm. 3! 1,00 1,027
Investment secunties (Note 4);
Trading .. g2 T
P.\rallabi&:'u‘-ﬂrt : 3482 3.248
T T - e e S e 1422 1,467
Accounts receivable . 1,132 1,041
cuﬂmumlatuml{memh e s e T e s e M e e b Sk S 1,106 1.001
Current pontion of client uncenlm:s- 344 264
Prepaid expenses and olher current am ..... 550 555
Total current assets .. o : 19,023 14,313
Investment securities, aumlahia—far saba {hlr.'ta 4:| 1,926 3831
Client incentives . | 448
Property, amlpment and tamndu-,w net (Note 5} ..... 2,253 2150
Cher assels ... ? : 1,276 B9
Intangible assets, net {Htﬂ 23!11! hm EI ..... 27,848 27,234
Goodwill (Note 2 and Mote &) 15110 15 066
FT b b o L S e e S R L e s i B?E?T £ 54 035
Liabilities
Seltlernent payable . 2,003 2064
Cuslomer collateral {Hdt 'mi - 1,106 1.001
Actrued compensation and bﬂncﬁts 24 75T 673
Client incentives ._...........ccoiimnnns 2,089 1,876
Accrued Eabilities (Nole ?J iy b 1,129 1,128
Current matunties of Iu'lﬁ-tam‘l deht H'-ldﬂ BJ 1,749 —
Actrued [Migation (Note 19) .. 982 BE1
Total current Iiﬂ‘:iitiﬁ 9,994 8,048
Long-term debt (Mote 8) . 16,618 15,8872
Deferred tax liakbilities {Hdu 1$§ 5880 4,808
Deferred purchase consideration . 1,304 1,225
Cither liabilities (Mole 7) . 1.3 1.162
Total l|al:||li'tm5 3527 31,123
Commilments and contingencies [N-nla 13}
Equity
firlemeﬁ stock, 50.0001 par value, 25 shares authonized and 5 shares issued and culstanding as
WS,
Series A convertible paricipating preferred stock, none issued (Mote 2 and Mote 13)... — —
Series B convertible participating prefemed stock, 2 shares lssued and u.rlslandmg at Septumber
30, 2017 and 2016 (Mote 2 and Mote 13) .. 2,326 2518
es C convertible participating slmk Is m:l Istm at uni:
%ﬂmgim 2:)15{!1%?& 2 E:ud MW 3 a‘:aus 55 End i dnu Eﬂﬂ T 3,200 3201
Class A commeon stock, $0.0001 par value, 2,001 B?E shares auﬁtmzad 1 E'IE- um:l 1 3?1 shaﬂ‘s
issued and cutstanding at Seplember 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively (Note 13) ., . = -
Class B comman stock, $0.0001 par value, 622 shares authonzed, 245 SHH'HIE-'BUGH ar-d {ulstmﬁ'iﬁ
al September 30, 2017 and 2016 (Maote 13) .. = =
Class C commeon stock, S0.0001 par value, 1 09? slmres aulhanzed ‘-3 am:t 1? shares lss.ued ar'u:l
outstanding at September 30, 2017 and 20186, respectively (Note 13} .. o — -
Treasury stock (Mote 13) . AL L S (170
Right to remrfnrwwed IasseslNﬂe 3] (52) (34)
Additional paid-in capital .. 16,900 17,205
Accumulated income ... 8,508 10 462
Accumulated other t:u'npmhenm income I:Iuss) ns‘t
Investment secunties, avRilablE-Tor-SEIB | .. s iy e o s T e rrenE T3 k{1
Defined benefit pension and cther postretirement plans ... (T6) (225)
Derivative instruments classified as cash flow hedges 5 [36) (50}
Foreign currency translation adjustments . o e B e S T e ey 817 (218}
Total accumulated cther c:-:rnpmhenswu income :ln&s: ne*t BT8 (A58
Total equity .. 32,760 32813
Total llabllmes and eqn.ur:.' v e G GTT 2 GA RS

See accompanying notas, which are an infegral part of these consolidaled financial statemeants.
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Operating Revenues

SOV TIROREIE i ciisiicibatinp o R e ST Tt N A A Tt i RO o
Data processing revenues ...
Intemn aticnal transaction revenues ...

Client incentives ...

ok O g OO ol e b a F AP R e b A o A R P R R o Fi b b e A

Operating Expenses

Marketing ...

Network Snd PrOCESSIMG ..o oo it ee oot ee o e s et o e n e e s e et e
b e e B o e e i i o e e e b o i e e e e e
Depreciation and amortization i i
e T e T R b b 8 A T A T A A B b R
Litigation provision (Mobe 190 ... i e i b e e
Visa Europe Framework Agreement loss f
Total oparaling BMPEMSEE . et e e sttt e
R I T G L e e e e e L

Non-operating (Expense) Income

Interest expense ...

Ciher (Mobe 4 and Mote 11) ...
Total nom-operating (EXPemSe) IMEOIME ..o i st o s s s s (450]
T T T B o e e R e . e R A
Income lax provision (Mote 18) .
B D 2 o e e e e o

Baslc earnings per share (Note 14)
Class A common stock .
Class B common stock .
IS ORI SO ooy cicnrocsaiimisuis i uiics i e i e i . 3 o o B s i

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended
September 30,

2017 2016 " 2015

{in millions, except per share data)

5 7978 5
7,786
E,321
341
(4,565)

6747 3§

6,272

o4 G5
623

{3,409y

6,302
5,852
4,064
823
{2.861)

18,358

15,082

13,880

2,678
92z
B30
409
556

1,060

13

2226

538

502
796

1.877

2.078
872
474
336
484
547

14

6,214

7.188

4,816

12,144

T.663

9,064

{563
113

(427}
556

(3)
(BB}

124

(69}

11,694
4,995

g0z
2.0

8,995
2667

: 5,698 &

. § 280 5

] 0
W'jﬁm

243 5

294 5

5891 % 6328

258

1053

Basic welghted-average shares outstanding (Mote 14)

B Y e e
e B R L I | i ima ke m e e e H AR s He e e s HaE AR s HE e e e i e H e
T T i o A o R A B e A R

1,845
—

1,906

1,954
24

Diluted earnings per share (Note 14)

Class A SO SO ..o o e e b e o m e d e nans e
R R T fyn, B b B A A e L (R e e R e e O O R i
C1@55 C COMIMIDN SUOCK oo iiimiasimias i as o sas s s s s s 1110 10 0 s a0 120

$ 280 5
—_—
§ 461 §

248 %
409 35

258
425

T 1149 5 953§ 1030

Diluted welghted-average shares outstanding (Mote 14)

o T eyt nene AU R e S o R S, S

2,395

e
C1B59 B COMITION FUOCK ..oociiciicianinisnimisaries iarins ininainrinsifanrietnmins tarns iaries iarin siainniatsammiaaries ims 23

B B TN T e o ) B e e S R o

2414

2457

The Company did not include \Wisa Europes financial resulls in the Company's consolidated statements of operations from the acquisition

date, June 21, 2016, through June 30, 2016 as the impact was immateral. The Company's consolidaled statement of ocperations for the year
ended September 30, 2016 includes Visa Eurcpe's financial resulls for the three months ended September 30, 2016, See Nole 2—Visa

Europe

See accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statemeants
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended
September 30,

2017 2016 2M 5
{In milllons)
oy e p e D o e L o e A T T L e e 5639 5 5991 $ 5,328
Other comprehansive Income (loss), net of tax:
Inwestment securities. available-for-sale:
Net unrealized gain (loss) ..., B0 51 {21}
IREEMIE B BIBEL .o et s en e et e s s {24) {18) 8
Reclassification adustment for net loss (gain) realized in net NCOME ..o 1 {2) 213
1 e e R R R S P — 1 ]
Defined benef pension and other postretirement plans:
Net unrealized actuarial gain (loss) and prier senvice credit ... 183 (108) (122}
Irconis ot et o R R R e S (54 16 45
Amortization of actuarnial loss (gain) and prior sendce credit reakzed in netincome ... 32 10 (1)
e g R e R R O A i P o L S e e R L 12} {4) 1
Derivalive instruments classified as cash flow hedges:
Neft unrealized (IOS5] GAIN ... rrs s sermer e srrms soras srmres srmsaer b s asge oy am s b ans smrans {22) (74) 172
J O I T s e e R b e e S S e e b o 15 ] 51)
Reclassification adjustment for net loss (gain) realized in net income ..o e v 33 {103} (102)
B I B i s o e o R b o iR R e (12) a5 26
Foreign cumrency translation adiustments ... 1,136 (218) 1
Other comprehansive income (loss), net oF baK ... e 1,336 (384) {571
Comprobansivl BY0OTTE ... .o e st s b s s s s s e e e s B 8035 5§ 5607 § 8,271

See accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statemeants
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Accumulated
SO -ROOK Additanal PR, B Tolat
Clas & Class B Class © Palddn Capiial Income Loss Equity
§in milllloris, excepd par sharo dataj

Balancs a5 of Sepleenber 30, D014 oo S 1978 45 z 3 18200 % 213 % (n s 7413
Het inzome B8 5328
Other comprshensive loxs, net of tax 57} {57)
Compretsenshe ncome ... kg e e ek e B2
Conversion of cliss C comimon stock upon sabs info publis market.... 11 [k} -
bBsunnce and vesting of resincled stock and performance-based shares... 4 =
Share-based compensation, nel of forfeitures (Mobe 15) . (3 e 187 187
Reitdiciad ook and padarmbhos-baded ihides Lelled in cail lof laxes (4] 1085 [RLL]
Excirss (a3 Denal for share-Dased oompinialan . e B4 A4
Cl&gﬁhm From issuance of comMmon Mo under empliyes sguly " o a2
cmam;:dmmm.u.wmmﬂnum» (AT AT
Repurchase of class A comman siock [LLF] (471 [ 5 1 2810
Balancs as of Seplembar 30, 2015 m— 1,950 245 n 3 18073 5 11843 3 74 % T E

Decrenss in Class A common Slock relpted io fonsifures of resiriched shock awards.

Sea accampanying noles, which are an infegral part of these consalidated financial stalements.
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Table of Conlents
VISA INC.
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY —{Continued)
i 1] Accumulated
Prafarrad Stock Comman Stock Rl B A e
Swiet  Sorles  Class Class  Class  Praferrad  Treasury Covarad Padd-n Accumidaied  Comprehonsive Total
B [ & B < Stack Stock Losi#s Capltal Incams Leks Equity
{ir millicns, excepl por shase daly)

e I L - - 18% M5 M5 =5 = % — 5 18073 5 1184 3 T4 § 20842
Ned income: 5581 5,981
ﬂm“::r.mnhmmm Mt.d (304) (304
Compranensve Nceme ... 5607
ssusnce of preferred slock (Mobe 2

e AR i 2 3 CITA L SMT
VE temitory covered losies

incurmed (Note 30 ........... (4 34
Class © commaon stock held by

Viia Europe, & whaly-cwned (1 (170 (1700

Subrpidary of Visa Inc. (Mobe 1)
Conrsion of cliks O comman

Shochl Upon Sake inba public L [ri] -

misriet
Issuanos mriwdim;: of restriciad

Stk i nmw—uﬂu 2 —

e g T T R
Srare-based Wnulm nel of ]

Forfeitures (Mole 153 ... S m m
Restricted #ock and pafomance-

baryed shares settied in cash for [ [ 182)

T P SR fe s AN
Ercess Iu:mﬁhrﬂnm-ﬁamd 51 B
Cosh proceeds from issuance of

oommon siock under 3 a5 85

SOy PABNS e
Cash dhddends declared and padd,

o b quanety arcunt of 50,14 {1.250 1,350

ot ad-cofvedted share
ek Ohase 13) ot Ll 9651 160221 (6.987)
l%'“ o hfﬂ_'_' _ﬁ_ _'_ ““ 2 3 1.8aM 2485 1§ ST § (M 8 (34 § 17385 § 10452 % M52 § 3287

Senes B nnd & p d stock ane ait tivety referedions UKAI and Europe prefemed slock, respectively

Decrense in Class A common stock relsted o forfeitures of restricted slock awards is less than one milion shares
Sea accampanying noles, which are an infegral part of thesa consalidated financial stalements.
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Table of Conlents
VISA INC.
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY —{Continued)
i 1] Accumulated
Prafarrad Stock Comman Stock Rl B A e
Ewiek  Sarlas  Class Class  Class  Proferrad  Treasury Caovarad Padddn HAccumidaled Comprehandive Tailal
B c A B c Stock Stock Lodise Capltal e ams Lowg Eqquity
{ir millicns, excepl por shase daly)
S P 2 3 1an 245 WS STT S (5 (34 5 17385 5 10462 § W55 5 a2M2
Hed incame =) 5,695
M;.':“mnhmm.hlmnd 1,338 1,336
COMPIETETENS NECME ......... 5035
VE temritory covered kosses
incurred (Hote 3 .......ooeovor e i 12081
Recoweny through conesson rele (11 191 _
sdjurstment (Mole 1 and Note 13
Chariinble contritaton of Vies inc
shares {Mobe 13 and Nobe 18], & o i,
Treasury sock wﬂﬂﬂm net of 14 14
[ T O R
Conmers Utdluc =
ek upon sabed Mo public 17 4 —
o T
HsuRneh 40 vesting o restiled
stk mhd puﬁmmnnu basad 2 —
shares i
Share-based compensation, nel d' ]
forteitures (Hote 15) .. = il 5
Restricled slock and pafamance
based shares settied in cash for in {TE) {TE)
TRNES .
Cash proceeds fom issusnce of
Somenan Sock under ermplcyes 4 1ag 149
ey NS i
ca‘sﬂh dnadends m““.ﬁ“?oﬂ’a?
L ] arterty
pugcmmua share { Hoke 1874 .51
13p
P (e 13} o e @ 8074 wes)
Blency sl sTEMptMIR I 2 1 1818 245 1305 5536 % - % %2 5 16500 5 G508 % 878 § 32,760

I I . S S S S E— E— I
:' Senes B and T prefemed shock are st dively refered o as LKAl snd Eurcps prefemed stock respectively
4 Decresse in Class Acommon slock relsted to forleitunes of restricted stock awards is less than one millon shares

Sea accampanying noles, which are an infegral part of these consalidated financial stalements.
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VISA INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended
September 30,
2T 2016 2015
{in millions, except noted otherwise}

Operating Activities
MNet INCome . L . 1 6,699 5 5991 % 6,328
Adjustments to m:melle net Inm Iu nst u:ash pm\dded bynpuahng aclndﬁas
Client incentives . 4,565 3409 2,861
Fair value al:iuslmunl Eurlhu ‘u'i'sa Eurq:la pu‘t upl.nm e L L e i —_ (255) 110
Share-based compensation (Note 15) ., 235 2 187
Excess lax benafit for share-based muﬂﬂﬂlm - (63} (84)
Depreciation and amorization of property, -equnpmenl I;ecnnﬁam' am:l uﬂang-ble nssets G 356 02 494
Deferred income taxes . A BN ; 1,700 {764} 185
Right to recover Eormvered Iams recu‘dl‘:d in @qmt:.- n:ml.c 3:| [209) (9 -
Charitable contribution of Visa inc. shares {Note 13 and Note 1&} 192 - -
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Settlement receivable .. e e e e 84 391 ira
Client incentives ......, e {4,628) (3,508} {2,870)
BT BEBEES L. iciucuuuriimioniuniimiaiscotais sascrs sbm sttt 140808 08 8 £ 485 48 4514454 RS 4R A b A {252) {315} {41)
O DB B i s i s s b b R P o e b T {30 43 (13
Settlement payable ... {176} (302} {552)
Accrued and ather TABIRIES ... oo et s e s 465 217 118
e ol e B L e e e e S e 1 (43} {432)
Met cash provided by operating BCtIES ... iieniii o e s e e 9,208 5,574 5,584
Investing Activitles
Purchases of propery, equipment. technology and intangible assets ... e
Preceeds from sales of property, equipment and technology ........ooevoerien s
Investrment securities. avallable-for-sale:
Purchases .
Proceeds ﬁ'am maiunhe-s and sales
Acquisitions, net of $2.8 billion cash rmuuadfm‘n ‘uﬁsa Eumna th&:l.e 2:
Purchases of f contributions to other investments ... {486) {10 {25)
Proceeds / distiibutions from other invesiments ... 4 [ 12
Met cash provided by (used in) investing Bctvilies .. e e Ti5 (10,916} {1.435)
Financing Activities
Repurchase of class A common SOk (MOEB 13D ... iy ees s e ss s e s sesms s smesns {6,891) (6,5987) {2,810
Treasury stock=—class C common stock (Note 13) . -— (1700 -_
Dividends paid (Mote 13) .. {1,579) (1,350) (1,177)
Proceeds from issuance of senior nulas {Hm BJ 2,488 15,971 —
Debt issuance costs (Note 8) . {15} (98) —

Payments from U.5. H‘lnguhm EECIOW umuunt—t.l 5 mtmspcm rﬂ‘SpDnSlblH‘fplﬁﬁ IHdt Eal'-d
ote 19) = 45 428

Cash n'u:eeds Truﬂ issuAnce dr EOMMGn siock under emplu;ree equmy piuns 149 95 82
Restricted stock and performance-based shares settled in cash for taxes ... {76) (92) {108}
Excess tax benefit for share-based compensabion ... e e — 63 4
Met cash (used in) provided by financing activities .. £ 15,924} TATT {3,603}
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eqi.lwaluntﬁ 216 {34) 1
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ... 4,255 2404 1,547
Cash mdwshamh&lenl;mb&gimingmwar 5,618 3.518 1.871
Cash and cash SouvBIENLE Bt STR0 OF YOI ... ovuin s oisan iesan s damsa siss s A s ems i s st nininn 9874 35 610 $ 3&&
Supplemental Disclosure

[T (523) (414)
12 — 10

{3,238) (10,426} 12,850)
5,12 2119 1,925
(302) (2,082) (93)

Series B and C convedible participating preferred stock issued in Visa Europe acquisition (Nole 3).. § - % 5717 % —
Deferred purchase consideration recorded for Visa Europe acquisition (Note 2 .. T | — % 1238 § —
Income taxes paid, net of refunds . o ——— ——— £ 3038 5 2842 5 2,486
Interest payments on debt | o5 5 489 % 244 5 —_
Accruals related Iupurr:hasu-s :;l prupu'ty uqulpm-ent tal:imnlug'_.r anr:l Inlmgl:lu 355&5 1 50 5 42 5 81

See accompanying nofes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2017

Mote 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization. Visa Inc. ("Visa" or the "Comparny") is a global payments technolegy company that enables fast,
secure and reliable electronic payments across more than 200 countries and territories. Visa and its wholly -owned
consolidated subsidiaries, including Visa LS A Inc. ("Visa US A", Visa International Service Association ("Visa
International), Visa Worldwide Pte. Limited, Visa Europe Limited ("Visa Europe™), Visa Canada Corporation (“Visa
Canada"), Inovant LLC and CyberSource Corporation, operate one of the world's largest retail electronic payments
network — Visaiet — which facilitates authorization, clearing and settlement of payment transactions and enables us
to provide its financial institution and merchant clients a wide range of products, platforms and value-added services,
Visahet also offers fraud protection for account holders and assured payment for merchants. Visa is not a bank and
does not issue cards, extend credit or set rates and fees for account holders on Visa products. In most cases, account
holder and merchant relationships belong to, and are managed by, Visa's financial institution clients.

Cn June 21, 2016, Visa acquired 100% of the share capital of Visa Euwrope. See Note 2—\Visa Europe. In February
2017, the Company completed a recrganization of Visa Europe and certain other legal entities to align the Company’s
corporate structure to the geographic jurisdictions in which it conducts business operations. Associated with this
recrganization, the newly-formed Visa Foundation received all Visa Inc. shares held by Viga Europe thatwere previously
recorded as treasury stock. See Note 18—Income Taxes

Consolidation and basis of presantation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Visa and
its consalidated entities and are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("LL.S GAAFT). The Company consolidates its majority-owned and controlled entities, including
variable interest entities ("VIEs") for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. The Company's investments in
VIEs have not been material to its consolidated financial statements as of and for the periods presented. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation

On March 18, 2015, the Company completed a four-for-one split of its class Acommon stock effected in the form
of a stock dividend. All per share amounts and number of shares cutstanding in the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes are presented on a post-split basis. See Nole 13—Stockholders’ Equity.

The Company's activities are interrelated, and each activity is dependent upon and supportive of the other. All
significant operating decisions are based on analysis of Visa as a single global business. Accordingly, the Compary
has one reportable segment, Fayment Services.

The Company revised certain fiscal 2016 amounts on the consolidated statements of cash flows to commect a
presentation error in gross investing activity. Purchases and proceeds from maturities and sales of investment securities
were each reduced by $17.6 billion, from $28.0 billion and $28.7 billion, respectively, to $10.4 billion and $9.1 billion,
respectively. The previously reported amounts included purchases and sales of securities, using the proceeds of the
Company's December 2015 debt offering, that had a maturity of 80 days or less. These securities are therefore
considered cash and cash equivalents for financial reporting purposes and should not have been included in the gross
investing activity, The correction did not affect the Company's total cash flows from investing activities, and there was
no impact on the Company's financial position, total operating revenues, net income, or comprehensive income as of
and for the periods presented.

Use of estimates. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with LU.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and assumplions affect the
reported amounts of assets andliabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities atthe date of the consolidated
financial staterments and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Future actual results
could differ materially from these estimates. The use of estimates in specific accounting policies is described further
below as appropriate,

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and certain highly liquid investments with
original maturities of 90 days or less from the date of purchase. Cash equivalents are primarily recorded at cost, which
approximates fair value due to their generally short maturities.
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
September 30, 2017

Restricted cash—LU. S, litlgation escrow. The Company maintains an escrow account fromwhich monetary liabilities
from settlements of, or judgments in, the L. S, covered litigation are paid, See Nofe 3—U. 5. and Eurcpe Relrospective
Responsibility Plans and Mote 19—Legal Maftars for a discussion of the U.S. covered litigation. The escrow funds are
held in money market investments, together with the interest earned, less applicable taxes payable, and classified as
restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets. Interest earned on escrow funds is included in non-operating
income on the consolidated statements of aperations,

Investments and fair value The Company measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements are reported under a three-level valuation hierarchy.
See Nofe 4—Fair Value Measurements and Imvestiments. The classification of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities within the hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1—Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities. The Company’s Level 1 assets include money market funds, publicly-traded equity securities and U.S,
Treasury securities,

Level 2—Inputs to the valuation methodology can include: (1) gquoted prices in active markets for similar (not
identical) assets or liabilities,; (2) gquoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active markets, (3) inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, or (4) inputs that are denved principally fram or
corroborated by observable market data. The Company's Level 2 assets and liabilities include commercial paper, U.S.
government-sponsored debt securities, corporate debt securities and foreign exchange derivative instruments.

Level 3—Inputs tothe valuation methodology are unobservable and cannot be commoborated by observable market
data. The Company did not have any Level 3 assets or liabilities at Septermber 30, 2017 and 2016,

Trading investment securities include mutual fund equity security investments related to various employes
compensation and benefit plans. Trading activity in these investments is at the direction of the Company's employees.
These investments are held in a trust and are not available for the Company's operational or liquidity needs. Interest
and dividend income and changes in fair value are recorded in non-operating income, and offset in personnel expenss
on the consolidated statements of operations.

Awvailable-for-sale imvestment securities include investments in debt and equity securities. These securities are
recorded at cost at the time of purchase and are carried at fair value, The Company considers these securities to be
available-for-sale to meet working capital and liquidity needs. Investrnents with ariginal maturities of greater than 90
days and stated maturities of less than one year from the balance sheet date, or investments that the Company intends
to sell within one year, are classified as current assets, while all other securities are classified as non-current assets,
These investments are generally available to meet short-term liquidity needs, Uinrealized gains and losses are reported
in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss on the consolidated balance sheets until realized. The specific
identification method is used to caloulate realized gain or loss on the sale of marketable securities, which is recorded
in non-gperating income on the consolidated statements of operations. Dividend and interest income are recognized
when earned and are included in non-operating income on the consolidated statements of operations,

The Company evaluates its debt and equity securities forother-than-temporary impairment, or OTT1, onanongoing
basis. When there has been a decline in fair value of a debt or equity security below the amortized cost basis, the
Company recognizes OTTIIT: (1) it has the intent to sell the security; (2) it is more likely than not that it will be required
to sell the security before recovery of the amortized cost basis; or (3) it does not expect to recover the entire amortized
cost basis of the security.

The Company applies the equity method of accounting for investments in other entities when it holds between
20% and 50% ownershipinthe entity orwhen it exercises significant influence, Under the equity method, the Company's
share of each entity's profit or loss is reflected in non-operating income on the consolidated statements of operations.
The equity method of accounting is also used for flow-through entities such as limited partnerships and limited liability
companies when the investment ownership percentage is equal to or greater than 5% of outstanding ownership
interests, regardless of whether the Compary has significant influgnce over the investees.
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The Company applies the cost method of accounting for investments in other entities when it holds less than 20%
ownership in the entity and does not exercise significant influence, or for flow-through entities when the investment
ownership is less than 5% and the Company does not exercise significant influence. These investments consist of
equity heldings in non-public companies and are recorded in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company regularly reviews investments accounted for under the cost and equity methods for possible
impairment, which generally involves an analysis of the facts and changes in circumstances influencing the investment,
expectations of the entity’s cash flows and capital needs, and the viability of its business model.

Financial instruments. The Company considers the following to be financial instruments: cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash—LULS. litigation escrow, trading and available-for-sale investrment securities, seftlement
receivable and payable, customer collateral, non-marketable equity investments, settlement risk guarantee, and
derivative instruments. See Note 4—Fair Value Maasurements and lnvastments,

Setflement receivable and payable. The Company operates systems for authorizing, clearing and settling payment
transactions worldwide. Most U.S. dollar settlements with the Company's financial institution clients are sattled within
the same day and do not result in a receivable or payable balance, while setlements in currencies other than the U.S.
dollar generally remain outstanding for one to two business days, resulting in amounts due from and to clients, These
amounts are presented as settlement receivable and settlerment payable on the consolidated balance sheets.

Customer collateral. The Company holds cash deposits and other nan-cash assets from certain clients in order
to ensure their performance of settlement obligations arising from Visa payment preducts are processed in accordance
with the Company's rules. The cash collateral assets are restricted and fully offset by correspanding liabilities and both
balances are presented onthe consolidated balance sheets, excluding cash collateral held by Visa Europe asits clients
retain beneficial ownership and the cash is only accessible to the Company in the event of default by the client on its
settled obligations, Non-cash collateral assets are held on behalf of the Company by a third party and are not recorded
on the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 10—Seftlement Guarantee Management,

Property, equipment and technofogy, nef. Property, equipment and technology are recorded at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization, which are computed on a straight-line basis over the asset's estimated
useful life. Depreciation and amortization of technology, furniture, fixtures and equipment are computed over estimated
useful lives ranging from 2 to 10 years. Capital leases are amorized over the lease term and leasehold improvements
are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or lease term. Building improvemnents are depreciated
between 3 and 40 years, and buildings are depreciated over 40 years. Improvernents that increase functionality of the
asset are capitalized and depreciated over the asset's remaining useful life. Land and construction-in-progress are not
depreciated. Fully depreciated assets are retained in property, equipment and technology, net, until removed from
service,

Technology includes purchased and intermally developed software, including technology assets obtained through
acquisitions. Internzlly developed software represents software primarily used by the VisalMet electronic payments
network. Internal and external costs incurred during the preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred, Qualifying
costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized. Once the project is substantially complete
and ready for its intended use these costs are amorized on a sraight-line basis over the technology's estimated useful
life. Acquired technology assets are initially recorded at fair value and amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable, If
the sum of expected undiscounted net future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of an asset or asset group,
an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset or asset group exceeds its fair
value. See Nofe 5—Froperty. Equipment and Technology, Net

Leases The Company enters into operating and capital leases for the use of premises, software and equipment,
Rent expense related to operating lease agreements, which may or may not contain lease incentives, is primarily
recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term
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Inlangible assels, net. The Company records identifiable intangible assets at fair value on the date of acquisition
and evaluates the useful life of each asset.

Finite-lived intangible assets primarily consist of customer relationships, reacquired rights, reseller relationships
and trade names obtained through acquisitions. Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
ard are tested for recoverability if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. These intangibles have useful lives ranging from 3 to 15 years. Mo events or changes in circumstances
indicate that impairment existed as of September 30, 2017. See Note 6—Intangible Assals and Goodwill.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of trade name, customer relationships and reacquired rights. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are evaluated for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment may exist, The Company first assesses qualitative factors
to determine whether it is necessary to perform a quantitative impairment test for indefinite-lived intangible assets. The
Company assesses each category of indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an aggregate basis, which
may reguire the allocation of cash flows andfor an estimate of fair value to the assets or asset group. Impairment exists
if the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than the carrying value, The Company relies on a number
of factors when completing impairment assessments, including a review of discounted net future cash flows, business
plans and the use of present value techniques.

The Company completed its annual impairment review of indefinite-lived intangible assets as of February 1, 2017,
and concluded there was no impairment as of that date. Mo recent events or changes in circumstances indicate that
impairrent of the Company's indefinite-lived intangible assels existed as of September 30, 2017.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in
a business combination. Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated for impairment at the reporting unit level annually
as of February 1, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment may exist,

The Company evaluated its goodwill for impairment on February 1, 2017, and concluded there was no impairment
as of that date. Mo recent events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed as of September 30,
2017,

Accrued litigation. The Company evaluates the likelihood of an urfavorable outcome in legal or regulatory
proceedings to which it is a party and records a loss contingency when it is probable that a liability has been incurred
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These judgments are subjective, based on the status of such
legal or regulatory proceedings, the merits of the Company's defenses and consultation with corporate and extemnal
legal counsel, Actual outcomes of these legal and regulatory proceedings may differ materially from the Company's
estimates. The Company expenses legal costs as incurred in professional fees in the consolidated statements of
operations. See Note 159—Lagal Matters.

Revenue recognition. The Company's operating revenues are comprised principally of service revenues, data
processing revenues, international transaction revenues and other revenues, reduced by costs incurred under client
incentives arrangements, The Company recognizes revenue, net of sales and other similar taxes, when the price is
fixed or determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the service is performed and collectability of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

Service revenues consist of revenues eamed for services provided in support of client usage of Visa products,
Current quarter service revenues are pnmanly assessed using a calculation of current pricing applied to the prior
quarter's payments volume. The Company also earns revenues from assessments designed fo support angoing
acceptance and volume growth initiatives, which are recognized in the same period the related volume is transacted,

Data processing revenues consist of revenues eamed for authorization, clearing, settlerment, network access and
other maintenance and support services that facilitate transaction and information processing amaong the Company's
clients globally. Data processing revenues are recognized inthe same period the related transactions ocour or services
are rendered.
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International transaction revenues are earmed for cross-border transaction processing and currency conversion
activities, Cross-border transactions arise when the country of origin of the issuer is different from that of the merchant,
International transaction revenues are primarily generated by cross-border payments and cash volume.

Cther revenues consist mainly of license fees for use of the Visa brand, fees for account holder services, licensing
ard certification and other activities related to the Company's acquired entities. Other revenues also include optional
service or product enhancements, such as extended account holder protection and concierge services. Other revenues
are recognized in the same period the related transactions occur or services are rendered. Prior to the acquisition of
\isa Europe (see Note 2—\Visa Eurgpe), other revenues also included revenues eared from Visa Europe in connection
with the Visa Europe Framework Agreement

Client incentives. The Company enters into long-term confracts with financial institution clients, merchants and
strateqic partners for various programs designed to build payments volume, increase Visa product acceptance, win
merchant routing transactions over Yisa's network and drive innovation. These incentives are primarily accounted for
as reductions to operating revenues or as operating expenses if a separate identifiable benefit at fair value can be
established, The Company generally capitalizes advance incentive payments under these agreements if select criteria
are met. The capitalization criteria include the existence of future economic benefits to Visa, the existence of legally
enforceable recoverability language (e.g., early termination clauses), management's ability and intent to enforce the
recoverability language and the ability to generate future earnings from the agreement in excess of amounts deferred,
Capitalized amounts are amortized over the shorter of the period of contractual recoverability or the corresponding
period of economic benefit. Incentives not vet paid are accrued systernatically and rationally based on management's
estimate of each client's performance. These accruals are regularly reviewed and estimates of perfformance are
adjusted, as appropriate, based on changes in performance expectations, actual client performance, amendments to
existing contracts or the execution of new contracts. See Note 16—Caommitments and Contingencies.

Marketing. The Company expenses costs for the production of advertising as incurred. The cost of media
advertising s expensed when the advertising takes place, Sponsorship costs are recognized over the penod in which
the Company benefits from the sponsorship rights. Promotional items are expensed as incurred, when the related
services are received, or when the related event ocours

Income taxes. The Company's income tax expense consists of two components: current and deferred. Current
income tax expense represents taxes paid or payable for the current period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized to reflect the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the respective tax basis of existing assets and liabilities, and operating loss and credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years inwhich those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled, In assessing whether
deferred tax assets are realizable, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Avaluation allowance is recorded for the portions that are not expected to
be realized based on the level of historical taxable income, projections of future taxable income over the periods in
which the temporary differences are deductible, and qualifying tax planning strategies

Where interpretation of the tax law may be uncertain, the Company recognizes, measures and discloses income
tax uncertainties. The Company accounts for interest expense and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as non-
operating expense inthe consolidated statements of operations. The Company files a consolidated federal income tax
return and, in certain states, combined state tax returns. The Company elects to claim foreign tax credits in any given
year if such election is beneficial to the Company. See Note 18—{ncome Taxes.

Fension and other postratirament baneafit plans. The Company's defined benefit pension and other postretirement
benefit plans are actuarially evaluated, incorporating various critical assumptions including the discount rate and the
expected rate of return on plan assets (for qualified pension plans). The discount rate is based on a cash flow matching
analysis, with the projected benefit payments matching spot rates from a yield curve developed from high-quality
corporate bonds. The expected rate of return on pension plan assets considers the current and expected asset
allocation, as well as historical and expected returns on each plan asset class. Any difference between actual and
expected plan experience, including asset returmn experience, in excess of a 10% cormidor is recognized in net periodic
pension cost over the expected average employee future service period, which is approximately 9 years for the U.S.
plans and 11 years for the Visa Europe UK pension plan. Cther assumptions involve demographic factors such as
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retirement age, morality, attrition and the rate of compensation increases. The Company evaluates assumptions
annually and modifies them as appropriate,

The Company recognizes the funded status of its benefit plans in its consolidated balance sheets as other assets,
accrued liabilities and other liabilities. The Company recognizes settlement losses when it settles pension benefit
obligations, including making lump-sum cash payments to plan participants in exchange for their rights to receive
specified pension benefits, when certain thresholds are met. See Note 3—Pension, Posiretirement and Other Banefits,

Foreign curency remaasurament and transfation. The Company's functional currency is the U3, dollar for the
majority of its foreign operations except for \isa Europe whose functional currency is the euro. Transactions
deneminated in currencies other than the applicable functional currency are converted to the functional currency at
the exchange rate on the transaction date, At period end, monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured to the functional
currency using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Mon-monetary assets and liakilities are remeasured
at historical exchange rates. Resulling foreign cumency transaction gains and losses related to conversion and
remeasurement are recorded in general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations and
were not material for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015,

Where a non-U.S. currency is the functional currency, translation from that functional currency to the U.S. dollar
is performed for balance sheet accounts using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for revenue and
expense accounts using an average exchange rate for the period. Resulting translation adjustrments are reported as
a compenent of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss on the consolidated balance sheets.

Derivative financial instrumeants. The Company uses foreign exchange forward derivative contracts to reduce its
exposure to foreign currency rate changes on forecasted non-functional currency denominated operational cash flows.
To qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment, the Company formally documents, at inception of the hedge, all
relationships between the hedging transactions and the hedged items, as well as the Company's risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Company also formally assesses whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsefting changes in the cash flows of the
hedged items and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain highly effective in future periods,

Derivatives are carried at fair value on a gross basis in either prepaid and other current assets, non-current other
assets, accrued liabilities or non-current other liabilities on the consalidated balance sheets. At September 30, 2017,
derivatives outstanding mature within 12 months or less. Gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of
designated derivative instrurments are accounted for either in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss on the
consolidated balance sheets, or in the consolidated statements of operations in the corresponding account where
revenue of expense is hedged, orto general and administrative for hedge amounts determined to be ineffective. Gains
and losses resulting in changes in fair value of derivative instruments not designated for hedge accounting are recorded
in general and administrative for hedges of operating activity, or non-oparating income (expense) for hedges of non-
operating activity. See Note T1—Denvative and Non-denvative Financial Instrumeants.

MNon-derivative financial insfrument designated as a net invesiment hedge. The Company designated the euro-
denominated deferred cash consideration liability, a non-derivative financial instrument, as a hedge against a portion
of the Company's eurc-denominated net investment in Visa Europe. Changes in the value of the deferred cash
consideration liability, attributable to the change in exchange rates at the end of each reporting penod, partially offset
the fareign currency transiation adjustments resulting from the eure-denominated net investment, are reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss on the Company's consolidated balance sheet See
Note 11—Denvative and Non-derivalive Financial Instruments.

Guarantees and indemnifications. The Company recognizes an obligation at inception for guarantees and
indemnifications that qualify for recognition, regardless of the probability of occurrence. The Company indemnifies its
financial institution clients for settlement losses suffered due to the failure of any other client to fund its settlement
cbligations in accordance with the Visa rules. The estimated fair value of the liability for settiement indemnification is
included in accrued liabkilities on the consolidated balance sheets and is described in Note 10—Setflement Guarantee
Management,
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Share-based compensation, The Company recognizes share-based compensation cost using the fair value
method of accounting, The Company recognizes compensation cost for awards with only service conditions on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. Compensation cost for
performance and market-condition-based awards is recognized on a graded-vesting basis. The amount is initially
estimated based on target performance and is adjusted as appropriate based on management's best estimate
throughout the performance period, See Nofe 15—Share-based Compensalion

Earnings per share. The Company calculates earnings per share usingthe two-class method to reflect the different
rights of each class and series of outstanding commen stock. The dilutive effect of incremental commeon stock
equivalents is reflected in diluted earnings per share by application of the treasury stock method. See Nale 74—
Earnings Fer Share.

Recantly lssued Accounting Fronouncemeants

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASE) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) Mo,
201 4-09, which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer
of goods or services to customers. The ASL will replace existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it
becomes effective. Subsequently, the FASE also issued a series of amendments to the new revenue standard. The
Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2018, and expects to adopt the standard using the modified
retrospective transition method. The Company expects that the new standard will primarily impact recognition timing
for certain fixed incentives and price discounts provided to clients, and the classification of certain client incentives
between contra revenues and operating expenses. The Company is still in the process of guantifying the full effect
that ASL 2014-09 and all of its related subsequent updates will have on its consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures,

In June 2014, the FASE issued ASU Mo, 2014-12, which requires a performance target in stock compensation
awards that affects vesting, and is achievable after the requisite service penod, be treated as a perfermance condition,
The Company adopted the standard effective October 1, 2018. The adoption did not have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU Mo. 2015-05, which provides guidance about a customer's accounting for
fees paid in a cloud computing armangement. The amendment will help entities evaluate whether such an arrangement
includes a software license, which should be accounted for consistent with the acquisition of other software licenses;
otherwise, it should be accounted for as a service contract. The Company adopted the standard effective October 1,
2016, The adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-01, which amends certain aspects of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments, including the requirement to measure certain equity investments
at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in netincome. The Company will adopt the standard effective October
1, 2018. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-02, which requires the recognition of lease assels and lease
liabilities arising from operating leases in the statement of financial position. The Comparny will adopt the standard
effective October 1, 2019 and does not anticipate that this new accounting guidance will have a material impact on its
consolidated statement of operations. The Company estimates the value of leased assets and liabilities that may be
recognized could be in the hundreds of millions of dollars. The actual impact will depend on the Company's lease
portfalio at the time of adoption.
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In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, which simplifies several aspects of the accounting for share-
based payments, including the accounting for excess tax benefits and deficiencies, forfeitures, and statutory tax
withholding requirements, as well as classification on the statement of cash flows related to excess tax benefits and
employees taxes paid when an employer withhalds shares for tax-withholding purposes. The Company elected to early
adopt the standard effective October 1, 2016, The adoption had the following impact on the consolidated financial
statements:

+ The Company recorded excess tax benefits of 570 million in its provision for income taxes rather than as an
increase to additional paid-in capital for the year ended September 30, 2017 on a prospective basis. Therefore,
the prior pericd presented has not been adjusted.

+ The Company excluded the excess tax benefits from the assumed proceeds available to repurchase shares
in the computation of diluted eamings per share, which did not have a material impact on the Company's
diluted earnings per share for the year ended September 30, 2017.

+ The Company elected to apply the presentation requirement for cash flows related to excess tax benefits
prospectively, and thus, the prior peried presented has not been adjusted. This adoption resulted in an increass
to both net cash provided by operating activities and net cash used in financing of 370 million for the year
ended September 30, 2017,

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16, which requires that enliies recognize the income tax
consequences of an intra-entity transfer of an asset, other than inventory, when the transfer occurs, The Company will
adoptthe standardeffective October 1, 201 8. The Adoptionis not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASE issued ASU 20168-18, which requires that a statement of cash flows includes the
tatal of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents
when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts. The Company will adopt the standard
effective October 1, 2018 The adoption willimpact the presentation of transactions related to the UL.S. litigation escrow
account on the consolidated staternents of cash flows.

In January 2017, the FASE issued ASU 2017-04, which simplifies the test for goodwill impairment by eliminating
a previously required step. The Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2020. The adeptionis notexpected
to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements,

In March 2017, the FASE issued ASU 2017-07, which requires that the service cost component of net periodic
pension and postretirement benefit cost be presented in the same ling itern as other employee compensation costs,
while the other components be presented separately as non-operating income (expense). Currently, all net periodic
pension and postretirement be nefit costs are presented inpersonnel expense onthe Company's consolidated statement
of operations. The Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2018. The adoption is not expected to have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In May 2017, the FASE issued ASU 2017 -09, which amends the scope of modification accounting for share-based
payment arrangements. Specifically, an entity would not apply modfication accounting if the fair value, vesting
conditions, and classification of the awards are the same immediately before and after the medification. The Company
will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2018. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements

In August 2047, the FASE issued ASU 201712, which improves the financial reporting of hedging relationships
to befter portray the ecomomic results of an entity's risk managerment activities in its financial statements. The
amendments inthis update also make certaintargeted improvernents to simplify the application of the hedge accounting
guidance. The standard will be effective for the Company on October 1, 2018, However, the Company 15 evaluating
the effect that ASU 2017-12 will have on its consolidated financial staterments and is considering early adoption of the
standard.
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Mote 2—\fisa Europe

On June 21, 2016, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of Visa Europe, a payments technology
business, The acquisition positions Visa to create additional value through increased scale, efficiencies realized by
the integration of both businesses, and benefits related to Visa Europe's transition from an association to a for-profit
enterprise. At the closing of the transaction (the "Closing™), the Company:

«  paid up-front cash consideration of €12.2 billion ($13.9 billion);

= issued preferred stock of the Company convertible upon certain conditions into approximately 79 millionshares
of class Acomman stock of the Company, as described below, equivalent to a value of €53 billion {36.1 billion)
at the closing stock price of 577.33 on June 21, 2016; and

» agreed to pay an additional €1.0 billion, plus 4% compound annual interest, on the third anniversary of the
Closing.

Prafarred stock, In connection with the transaction, three new series of preferred stock of the Company were
created:

« senes A convertible participating preferred stock, par value 30.0001 per share, which is generally designed
to be economically equivalent to the Company's class A comman stock (the "class A equivalent preferred
stock™);

+ series B convertible participating preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the "UK&| preferred stock™);
and

» series C convertible participating preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Europe preferred stock™)

The Company issued 2 480 466 shares of UKEI preferred stock to Visa Europe’s member financial institutions
in the United Kingdorn and Ireland entitled to receive preferred stock at the Closing, and 3,156,823 shares of Europe
preferred stock to Visa Europe's other member financial institutions entitled to receive preferred stock at the Closing.
Under certain conditions described below, the UKS&| and Europe preferred stock is convertible into shares of class A
common stock or class A equivalent preferred stock, at an initial corversion rate of 13.952 shares of class A common
stock for each share of UKEI preferred stock and Europe preferred stock. The conversion rates may be reduced from
time to time to offset certain liabilities, which may be incurred by the Company, Visa Europe or their affiliates as a result
of certain existing and potential litigation relating to the setting of multilateral interchange fee rates in the Visa Europe
territary (the "VE territory covered litigation™), where, generally, the relevant claims (and resultant liabilities and losses)
relate to the period before the Closing. See Note 3—U.5. and Europe Refraspective Responsibilify Pians.

Final purchase price altocation

Upon the Closing, total purchase consideration of $18.8 billion was allocated to the tangible and identifiable
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on a preliminary valuation. Based on additional information
that became available, which impacted certain of the assumplions used, the Company finalized the purchase price
allocation in the third quarter of fiscal 2017.
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The following table summarizes the final purchase price allocation

Preliminary Measurement
Furchase Price Period Final Purchase
Allocation Adjustments Price Allocatlon
(in millions)
Current assets™ s s 4457 % - 4, 457
Non-current assets™ ... s 258 (46) 212
T eI R s e ey (2,731) (36) (2,767)
Norecurrant liabilithes™? ... i i, {2,605) 607 (1,998)
Tangible assets and liabilities ... ... ... ... ... ... (821} 5285 (96)
|I"I'.t_5nglf‘.ig? assets — customer relationships and reacquired
e e e e e A R 16,137 (232) 15,805
e T o e T e 3,268 (283) 2975
Fair value of net assets acquired ... ... ... 5 18,784 % e 1B8,TE4

th Current assets are largely comprised of cash and cash equivalents and settlement receivable.

“I Intangible assets consist of customer relationships and reacquired rights, which have been valued as a single composite intangible asset as
they are inextricably linked, These intangibles are considerad indefinite-lived assels as the associated customer relationships have historically
nok éxperienced significant atirition, and the reacquired rights are based on the Framework Agreement, which has a perpetual term. Mon-current
assets and liabilities include deferred tax assets and linbilities that result in net deferred tax abiliies of 51.7 billion, which are primarily related
o these indafinite-lived intangible assets, based on the final valuation. In Februarny 2017, the Company completed a legal enlity reorganization,
resulting in the elimination of most of these deferred tax assets and liabdities, See Note 16—income Taxes,

Current Babilities assumed mainly include settlernent payable, client incentives liabilities and accrued labilties.

The excess of purchase consideration cwer net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill, which represents the value that is expected from
increased scale and synergies as a result of the integration of bath businesses.

= 1]
Hi

Mote 2—U.S. and Eurcpe Retrospective Responsibility Plans
U.5. Retrospective Responsibility Plan

The Company has established several related mechanisms designed to address potential liability under certain
litigation referred to as the "U.S. covered litigation.” These mechanisms are included in and referred to as the U.S
retrospective responsibility plan and consist of a LS. litigation escrow agreement, the comversion feature of the
Company's shares of class B common stock, theindemnification obligations of the Visa U.S. A members, aninterchange
judgment sharing agreement, a logs sharing agreement and an omnibus agreement, as amended,

U.S. covered litigation consists of a number of matters that have been settled or otherwise fully or substantially
resolved, as well as the following;

«  the Interchange Mullidistrict Lifigalion. In re Payment Card Interchange Fee and Merchant Discount Antitrust
Litigation, 1:05-md-01720-JG-JO(E.D.N.Y) or MDL 1720, including all cases currently included in MDL 1720,
ary other case that includes claims for damages relating to the peried prior to the Company's |PO that has
been or is transferred for coordinated or consolidated pre-trial proceedings at any time to MDL 1720 by the
Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation or otherwise included at any time in MDL 1720 by order of any court
of competent jurisdiction;

= any claim that challenges the reorganization or the consummation thereof, provided that such claim is
transferred for coordinated or consolidated pre-trial proceedings at any time to MDL 1720 by the Judicial Panel
on Multidistrict Litigation or atherwise included at any time in MOL 1720 by order of any court of competent
jurizdiction; and

*  any case brought after October 22, 20135, by a merchant that opted out of the Rule Z23(b)(3) setilement class
pursuant to the 2012 Settlement Agreement in MOL 1720 that anises out of facts or circumstances substantially
similar to those alleged in MOL 1720 and that is not transferred to or otherwise included in MOL 1720. See
Nobe 18—Legal Mafters,
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U5, liligation escrowagreement, Inaccordancewiththe LS. iigation escrow agreement, the Company maintains
an escrow account, from which settlements of, or judgments in, the U5, covered ltigation are paid, The amount of
the escrow is determined by the board of directors and the Company's litigation committee, all members of which are
affiliated with, or act for, certain Visa U.S_ A members. The escrow funds are held in maney market investments along
withthe interest earned, less applicable taxes, and are classified as restricted cash onthe consolidated balance sheets.

The following table sets forth the changes in the restricted cash—U.S. litigation escrow account:
Fiscal 2017  Flscal 2016

({in millions)
Balance el $§ 1027 5 1072
Payments to opt-out merchants and interest earned on escrow funds™ ... 4 {45)
Balance at September 30 .. .. Fin R AL s NS SR EA e R R e A AN e o 8 A A e e B BAR AL A $§ 1031 & 1027
_—————— —————————

) These payments are associated with the interchange multidistrict litigation. See Nofe 18—Legal Mafers,

Anaccrual for the U.S. covered litigation and a change to the litigation provision are recorded when loss is deemed
to be probable and reasonably estimable. In making this determination, the Company evaluates available information,
including but not limited to recommendations made by the litigation committee. The accrual related to the LS. covered
litigation could be either higher or lower than the U.S. litigation escrow account balance. The Company did not record
an additional accrual for the LS, covered litigation during fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2016, See Note 18—Legal Matlers.

Comvarsion feature, Under the terms of the plan, when the Company funds the LS. Iitigation escrow account,
the shares of class B common stock are subject to dilution through an adjustment to the comversion rate of the shares
of class B common stock to shares of class A common stock. This has the same economic effect on diluted class A
common stock earnings per share as repurchasing the Company's class A common stock, because it reduces the
class B conversion rate and consequently the as-corverted class A common stock share count. See Nobe 13—
Stockholdars' Eguity.

Indemnification cbiigations. To the extent that amounts available under the U.S. litigation escrow arrangement
and other agreements in the plan are insufficient to fully resolve the U.S, covered litigation, the Company will use
commercially reasonable efforts to enforce the indemnification obligations of Visa U.S A's members for such excess
amount, including but not limited to enforcing indemnification obligations pursuant to Visa U.S.A's certificate of
incorporation and bylaws and in accordance with their membership agreements.

Interchange judgment shaning agreement. Visa US A and Visa International have entered into an interchange
judgment shanng agreement with certain Visa U .5 A members that have been named as defendants inthe interchange
muitidistrict litigation, which is described in Nofe 18—Legal Matters. Under this judgment sharing agreement, Visa
LS A members that are signatories will pay their membership proportion of the amount of a final judgment not allocated
to the conduct of MasterCard,

Loss sharing agreement. Visa has entered into a loss sharing agreement with Visa U.S A, Visa International and
certain Visa US A members. The loss sharing agreement provides for the indemnification of Visa U.SA Visa
International and, in certain circumstances, Visa with respect to: (i) the amount of a final judgment paid by Visa U.S. A
or Visa International in the LS. covered litigation after the operation of the interchange judgment sharing agreement,
plus any amounts reimbursable to the interchange judgment sharing agreement signatories; or (i) the damages portion
of a settlement of a U.S. covered litigation that is approved as required under Visa U S A's certificate of incorporation
by the vote of Visa U.S A's specified voting members. The several obligation of each bank that is a party to the loss
sharing agreement will equal the amount of any final judgment enforceable against Visa U.S.A., Visa International or
any ather signatory to the interchange judgment sharing agreement, or the amount of any approved settliernent of a
LS. covered litigation, multiplied by such bank's then-current membership proportion as caleulated in accordance
with Visa LS A's cerificate of incorporation.

On October 22, 2015, Visa entered into an amendment to the loss sharing agreement. The amendment includes
within the scope of LS, covered litigation any action brought after the amendment by an opt out from the Rule 23(0)
(3) Settlerment Class in MDL 1720 that arises out of facts or circumstances substantially similar to those alleged in
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MDL 1720 and that iz not transferred to or otherwise included in MOL 1720. On the same date, Visa entered into
amendments to the interchange judgment sharing agreement and omnibus agreement that include any such action
within the scope of those agreements as well

Omnibus agreement. Visa entered into an omnibus agreement with MasterCard and certainVisa U.S. A members
that confirmed and memorialized the signatories’ intentions with respect to the loss sharing agreement, the interchange
judgment sharing agreement and other agreements relating to the interchange multidistrict litigation, see Note 79—
Legal Mafters. Under the omnibus agreement, the monetary porion of any settlernent of the interchange multidistrict
litigation covered by the omnibus agreement would be divided into 2 MasterCard portion at 33.3333% and a Visa
portion at 88 6667%. In addition, the monetary portion of any judgment assigned to Visa-related claims in accordance
with the omnibus agreement would be treated as a Visa portion. Visa would have no liakility for the monetary portion
of any judgment assigned to MasterCard-related claims in accordance with the omnibus agreement, and if a judgment
is not assigned to Visa-related claims or MasterCard-related claims in accordance with the omnibus agreement, then
any monetary liability would be divided into a MasterCard portion at 33.3333% and a Visa portion at 66,6667 %. The
Visa portion of a settlement or judgment covered by the omnibus agreement would be allocated in accordance with
specified provisions of the Company's U.S. retrospective responsibility plan. The litigation provision on the consalidated
staterments of operations was not impacted by the execution of the omnibus agreement.

On August 26, 2014, Visa entered into an amendment to the omnibus agreement, The omnibus amendment
makes applicable to certain settlements in opt-out cases in the interchange multidistrct litigation the settlement-shanng
provisions of the omnibus agreement, pursuant to which the monetary portion of any settlement of the interchange
multidistrict litigation covered by the omnibus agreement would be divided into a MasterCard portion at 33.3333% and
a Visa portion at 66 6667%. The omnibus amendment also provides that in the event of termination of the class
settlement agreement, Visa and MasterCard would make mutually acceptable arrangerments so that Visa shall have
received two-thirds and MasterCard shall have received one-third of the total of (i) the sums paid to defendants as a
result of the termination of the settlernent agreement and (i) the takedown payments previously made to defendants.

Europe Retrospective Responsibility Plan

UK loss sharing agreement. The Company has entered into a loss sharing agreement with Visa Europe and
certain of Visa Europe’s member financial institutions located in the United Kingdorn (the "UK LSA members"). Each
of the UK LSA members has agreed, on a several and not joint basis, to compensate the Company for certain losses
which may be incurred by the Company, Visa Europe or their affiliates as a result of certain existing and potential
litigation relating to the sefting and implernentation of domestic multilateral interchange fee rates in the United Kingdom
prior to the Closing, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein and, with respect to each LUK LSA member,
up to a maximurm amount of the up-front cash consideration received by such UK LSAmember, The UK LSA members’
obligations under the UK loss sharing agreement are conditional upon, among other things, either (a) losses valued
in excess of the sterling equivalent on June 21, 201€ of €1.0 billion having arisen in UK covered claims (and such
losses having reduced the conversion rate of the UIKE&| preferred stock accordingly), or (b) the corversion rate of the
UK&| preferred stock having been reduced to zero pursuant to losses arising inclaims relating to multilateral interchange
fee rate setting in the Visa Eurcpe terntory.

Litigation management deed. The Company has entered into a ltigation management deed with VWisa Europe
which sets forth the agreed upon procedures for the management of the VE territory covered litigation, the allocation
of losses resulting from this litigation (the "VE territory covered losses”) between the LIK&I and Europe preferred stock,
and any accelerated conversion or reduction in the corversion rate of the shares of UK&I and Europe preferred stock.
The litigation management deed applies only to VE territory covered litigation (and resultant losses and liabilities). The
litigation management deed provides that the Company will generally control the conduct of the VE territory covered
litigation, subject to certain obligations to report and consult with the litigation management committees for VE territory
coverad litigation (the “VE territory litigation management committees"). The VE territory litigation management
committees, which are composed of representatives of certain Visa Europe members, have also been granted consent
rights to approve certain material decisions in relation to the VE territory covered litigation.
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The Company abtained certain pratections for VE territory covered losses through the UKE| and Europe preferred
stock, the UK loss sharing agreement, and the litigation management deed, referred to as the "Europe retrospective
respansibility plan.” The plan covers VE territory covered litigation {and resultant liabilities and losses) relating to the
covered period, which generally refers to the period before the Closing. Visa's protection from the plan is further limited
to 70% of any liabilities where the claim relates to inter-regional multilateral interchange fee rates where the issuer is
located outside the Visa Europe termtory, and the merchant is located within the Visa Europe territory. The plan does
not protect the Comparny in Europe against all types of litigation or remedies or fines imposed in competition law
enforcement proceedings, only the interchange litigation specifically covered by the plar's terms.

Unlike the LS, retrospective responsibility plan, the Europe retrospective responsibility plan does not have an
escrow account that is used to fund settlerments or judgments, The Company is entitied to recover VE teritory covered
losses through a periodic adjustment to the class A common stock conversion rates applicable to the UKSI and Eurape
preferred stock The total amount of protection available through the preferred stock component of the Europe
retrospective responsibility plan is equivalent fo the as-converted value of the preferred stock, which can be calculated
at any point intime as the product of: (a) the outstanding number of shares of preferred stock; (b) the current corversion
rate applicable to each class of preferred stock; and (c) Visa's class A common stock price. This amount differs from
the value of the preferred stock recorded within stockholders' equity on the Company's consolidated balance sheet
The book value of the preferred stock reflects its historical value recorded at the Closing less VE temitory covered
losses recovered through a reduction of the applicable conversion rate. The book value does not reflect changes in
the underlying class A common stock price subsequent to the Closing.

Wisa Inc. net income will not be impacted by VE territory covered losses as long as the as-converted value of the
preferred stock is greater than the covered loss. VE ternitory covered losses will be recorded when the |oss is deemed
to be probable and reasonably estimable, or in the case of attorney's fees, when incurred. Concurrently, the Comparyy
will record a reduction to stockhalders’ equity and operating expenses, which represents the Company's right to recover
such losses through adjustments to the conversion rate applicable to the preferred stock. The reduction to stockholders'
equity is recorded in a contra-equity account referred to as "right to recover for covered losses ™

YE territory covered losses may be recorded before the corresponding adjustment to the applicable corversion
rate is effected. Adjustments to the conversion rate may be executed once in any six-month period unless a single,
individual loss greater than €20 million is incurred, in which case, the six-month limitation does not apply. When the
adjustment to the conversion rate is made, the amount previously recorded in "right to recover for covered |losses” as
contra-equity will then be recorded against the book value of the preferred stock within stockholders' equity.

During the year ended September 30, 2017, the Company recoversd 3191 million of VE territory covered losses
through adjustments to the class A common stock conversion rates applicable to the UK&I and Europe preferred stock.
The corwversion rate applicable to both the UKE| and Europe preferred stock of 13 952 at September 30, 2016 was
adjusted to 13.077 and 13.948, respectively, as of September 30, 2017. As of Septernber 30, 2017, the Company had
recorded $52 million in the "right to recover for covered losses” related to VE territory covered losses, of which $25
million was incurred prior to the Closing.

The following table sets forth the activities related to VE ternitory covered losses in preferred stock and “right to
recover for covered losses” within eguity during the year ended September 30, 2017, VE territory covered losses
incurred reflect settlements with merchants and additional legal costs. See Nale 19— egal Matters,

Preferred Stock
Right to Recover for
K&l Europe vered Losses
(i milliomns)

Balance as of September 30, 2016 ..., 5 2516 § 3201 S (34)
WE territory covered losses incurred ... — — (209)
Recovery through conversion rate adjustment ... (190) (1) 181
Balance as of September 30, 2017 ... 3 2326 3% 3,200 % (52)
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The following table sets forth the as-converted value of the preferred stock available to recover VE territory covered
losses compared to the book value of preferred shares recorded in stockholders' equity within the Company's
consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2017 and 2016.'"

September 30, 2017 September 30, 2016
As-Converted As-Convarted
Value of Value of
Preferred Book Value of Pm:l'an;gl:l Book Value of
Stock™ Preferred Stock Stock™! Preferred Stock
{in millions)
UK&I preferred stock ............... S s e eh e 5 3414 S 2326 % 2862 S 2516
Europe preferred SIOCK .............ocvoei e 4,634 3,200 3642 3,201
oAl e . 8,048 5,526 6,504 5717
Less: right to recover for covered losses ... {52) (52) (34) (34)
Total recovery for covered losses available, . £ 7996 § 5474 3§ 6470 5 5,683

Figures in the lable may not recaleulale exactly due bo rounding. As-converted and book values of preferred stock are based on unrounded
numbers

! The as-converted value of preferred stock is calculated as the product of: (a) 2 milion and 3 million shares of the UKEI and Eurcpe preferred
stotk cutstanding, respectively, as of Seplember 30, 2017, (b) 13.077 and 13.948, the class A commaon stock conversion rate applicable to the
UKE| and Eurcpe preferred stock cutstanding, respectively, as of September 30, 204 7; and (c) $105,24, \isa's class A common stock closing
stock price as of Seplember 30, 2017, Eamings per share is calculaled based on unrounded numbers.

The as-converted value of preferred stock is calculated as the product of: (&) 2 millon and 3 millien shares of the UKE! and Euwrope prefered
stock cutstanding, respectively, as of September 30, 2016; (b) the 13,952 cless A common stock conversion rate applicable 1o both the UKSI
and Eurcpe preferred stock as of Seplember 30, 2016; and {c) $82.70, Visa's class A common stock closing stock price as of Saplember 30,
2016. Eprnings per share is calculated based an unrounded numbers.
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Mote 4—Fair Value Measurements and Investments
Fair VValue Measurements

The Compary measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value. See Nole 1—=Summary of Significant
Accounting Folicies

Assets and Liabilites Measured at Fair Value on a Recurming Basis
Fair Value Measurements at September 30
Using Inputs Consldered as
Lavel 1 Level 2
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
217 2016 2007 2016

{in milllons)
Assets
Cash equivalents and restricted cash:

Money:maroetTunds o S § 5835 3 4,537

U5 government-sponsored debt securities 5 2,870 3 196
Investment securities, trading:

Equify SeCUMtIBE ......ccoiiniimiiinissennissmsssnassasas tisssrases B 82 3 71
Investment securities, available-for-sale:

LS. government-sponsored debt securities., ... 3,663 4 659

e T g 1,621 2178

EuilY SBOUMHES ..o msimmssiiiemsisis s 124 53

Corporate debl secunties ... —_ 249
Prepaid and other current assets:

Foreign exchange derivative instruments ... ... 18 S0
Other Assets:

Foreign exchange derivative instruments ... 6
Tl . $ 7,782 5 6830 § 6,661 & 5200
Llahllltle5 e §&__________§E_____-. .
Accrued liabilities:

Foreign exchange derivative instruments ... 5 88 35 116
Other liabilities:

Foreign exchange derivative instruments ... ........... — 20
TOM i i e s R e e e TR b b i — & — % 98 = 136

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 assets during fiscal 2017.

Level 1 assets measured at fair valle on a recurning basis. Money market funds, publicly-traded equity securities
and U.S. Treasury securities are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy, as fair value is based on quated
prices in active markets.

Level 2 assets and habililies measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair value of U.S. government-
sponsored debt securities and corporate debt securities, as provided by thind-party pricing vendors, is based on quoted
prices in active markets for similar, not identical, assets. The pricing data obtained from outside sources is reviewed
internally for reasonableness, compared against benchmark guotes from independent pricing sources, then confirmed
or revised accordingly. Foreign exchange derivative instruments are valued using inputs that are observable in the
market or can be derived principally from or correborated by observable market data. There were no substartive
changes to the valuation techniques and related inputs used to measure fair value during fiscal 2017.
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Assets Measured al Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

Non-marketable equity investments and investments accounted for under the equity method These investments
are classified as Level 3 due to the absence of quoted market prices, the inherent lack of liquidity, and the fact that
inputs used to measure fair value are unobservable and require management's judgment. When certain events or
circurmstances indicate that impairment may exist, the Company revalues the investments using various assumptions,
including thefinancial metrics and ratios of comparable public companies. There were no significant impairment charges
incurred during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, At September 30, 2017 and 2015, these investments totaled 394 million
and 346 million, respectively. These assets are classified in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

Non-financial assels and lisbilities. Long-lived assets such as goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets, finite-
lived intangible assets, and property, equipment and technology are considered non-financial assets, The Company
does not have any non-financial liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Finite-lived intangible assets
primarily consist of customer relationships, trade names, and reseller relationships, all of which were obtained through
acquisitions. See Nole 6—Infangible Assets and Goodwil

If the Company were required to perform a quantitative assessment for impairment testing of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets, the fair values would generally be estimated using an income approach. As the
assumptions employed to measure these assets on a non-recurring basis are based on management's judgment using
internal and external data, these fair value determinations are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The
Company completed its annual impairment review of its indefinite-lived intangible assets and goodwill as of Februarny 1,
2017, and concluded that there was no impairment. Mo recent events or changes in circumstances indicate that
impairmment existed at September 30, 2017, See Nole 1—Summary of Significant Accounling Policies.

Other Fair Valus Disclosures

Long-term debt. Debt instruments are measured at amortized cost on the Company's corsolidated balance sheet
at September 30, 2017. The fair value of these notes, as provided by third-party pricing vendors, is based an quoted
prices in active markets for similar, not identical, assets. The pricing data obtained from outside sources is reviewed
intermally for reasonableness, compared against benchmark quotes from independent pricing sources, then confirmed
or revised accordingly. If measured at fair value in the financial staterments, these instruments would be classified as
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company's debt in order of
maturity:

September 30, 2017 September 30, 2016
e R e
{in millions}

1.20% Senior Notes due Decernber 2017 ......... e $ 1,749 % 1,761 § 1,746 & 1,754
2.20% Senior Motes due December 20200 ... 2,980 3,031 2,988 3077
2.15% Senior Motes due September 2022, ... 293 297 — —
2.80% Senior Motes due December 2022, ..., 2,240 2,301 2,238 2,359
3.15% Senior Motes due December 2025, ... 3,967 4,098 3,964 4225
2.75% Senior Motes due September 2027 ... 740 737 — —
4 15% Senior Motes due December 2035, ... 1,485 1,637 1,485 1,698
4,30% Senior Notes due December 2045 ... 3,483 3,873 3,481 4,045
3.65% Senior Notes due September 2047, ..., 740 746 — —
TOtA ..o i it s i 80 18,387 % 19171 § 15882 & 17,158
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Other Financial Instruments not Measured at Fair Valus

The following financial instruments are not measured at fair value on the Company's consclidated balance sheet
at September 30, 2017, but require disclosure of their fair values: time deposits recorded in prepaid expenses and
other current assets, settlement receivable and payable, and custormer collateral. The estimated fair value of such
instruments at September 30, 2017 approximatestheir carrying value dueto their generally short maturities. If measured
at fair value in the financial statements, these financial instruments would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

Investments
Trading investment Securnfies

Trading investment securities include mutual fund equity security investments related to various employee
compensation and benefit plans. Trading activity inthese investments is at the direction of the Company's employees.
Thess investments are held in trust and are not availatle for the Company's operational or liquidity needs. Interest
and dividend income and changes infair value are recorded in non-operating income, and offset in personnel expense
on the consolidated statements of operations. As of September 30, 2017 and 2016, trading investment securities
totaled 582 million and 371 million, respectively.

Available-for-sale Investment Securities

The amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses and fair value of available-for-sale investment securities are as
follows:

September 30, 2017 September 30, 2016
Amortized _ovossUntealized by Amortized rocsUnrealized e
Cost Galns  Losses Walue Cost Galns  Lossas Valua
{in milllons)
U.S. government-sponsored debt
secumties ........c.ccoeevcevcveee. 3 3,664 8§ 1§ (2) § 3663 5 4693 3 6 § — § 4699
U.S. Treasury securities ... 1,623 — (2 1821 2178 3 — 2,179
Equity securities ... 5 118 — 124 T 45 - 53
Corporate debt securities ..., — — _ —_ 248 — — 248
Auction rate securities ............ — — — — — — — —
Total ..., § 5,282 % 120 % 54! $ 5408 3 7124 & 55 § — & 7179
—_—— — e T
Less. current portion of
available-for-sale investment
B e e i e e s % (3,482) 5 (3,248)
Long-term available-for-sale
investment securities. ... ... .. % 1,928 5 393
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Available-for-sale investment securities primarily include U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. government-sponsored
debt secunties and corporate debt securities, Available-for-sale debt securities are presented below in accordance
with their stated maturities. A portion of these investments, 1.9 billion, are classified as non-current, as they have
stated maturities of more than one year from the balance sheet date. However, these investments are generally
available to meet short-term liquidity needs.

Amortized Cost Fair Value
{in millions)

September 30, 2017:

Due within one year .. S L e R e T S e S e 33680 S 3,358
Due after 1 year thr::-ugh E. LY== | =TS 1,927 1,926
Due after 5 yaars throlgh 10 YoM ..o vier s sissrmaran e ssrasvass s rsess remssannsnd ssearsasesas — —
B L L o e A i e L o e e i TR e L LT e — —
Toolm | s e G R R A A R R i 5 5287 % 5,284

Investmernt Income

Investment income is recorded as non-operating income inthe Company's consolidated statements of operations
and consisted of the following:

Faor the Years Ended
September 30,
7 2016 2015
{in milllons)

Interest and dividend income on cash and investments ... % 82 5 7% 3 31
Gainon other iInvestments e 6 2 3
Investment securities, trading:

Unrealized gains (losses), Met ... e 6 3 (5)

Fealized gains, net .. 2 = z
Investment securities, avanlabre-for-saie

Realized (losses) gains, net .. (1) 3 21
Cther-than-temporary 1mpa|rr‘r‘rentunlrw65h‘nents —_ (4) (5)
I e IO I GO .oy e sonsvs sanans s an s e b ameaa s e eSS e e el 5 105 3 82 5 46
Mote 5—Property, Equipment and Technology, Net

Property, equipment and technology, net, consisted of the following:

September 30, September 30,
2017 2016
{in milllons)

LM e e 5 72 5 74
Buildings and building improvemBtS ... e s e e e BES 839
Furniture, eguipment and leasehold improvements. ..., P M A 1,534 1,382
LT =t L T T S SO 129 125
B = w111+ oo ST P PR T T T T 2,533 2378
Total property, equipment and tachnnlugy ...................................................... 5,143 4 798

Accumulated depreciation and amortization ..., (2,890) (2,648)
Property, equipment and technology, net ... ... B 2258 3% 2,150
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Technology consists of both purchased and internally developed software. Internally developed software primarily
represents software utilized by the VisaMet electronic payments network, At September 30, 2017 and 2016,
accurnulated amaortization for technology was $1.7 billion and 31.5 billion, respectively.

At September 30, 2017, estimated future amortization expense on technology was as follows:

2022 and
Fiscal: 2018 209 2020 2021 thereafter Taotal
{in millions)
Estimated future amortization expense ........... & 285 & 2223 158 § 107 & 76 § B29

Depreciation and amaortization expense related to property, equipment and technology was $500 million, $452
million and $431 millicn for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Included in those amounts was amortization

expense on technology of $285 million, 3259 million and 3251 million for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Note 6—Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Indefinite-lived and finite-lived intangible assets consisted of the following:

Septembar 30, 2017 September 30, 216
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amartization HNet Gross Amartization Nt

{in millions)

Finite-lived intangible assets:

Customer relationships_.................... 1 438 § (237) 201 3 L - (220) 3 13
TrRde: names: i il 185 {93) 102 192 (80) 112
Reseller relationships.. ... 95 {78) 16 a5 (70) 25
LBl et ceriit 17 (2) 8 18 (9) 9
Taotal finite-lived intangible assets........ 745 (418) 3z7 656 (379) 277

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Custormer relationships and

reacquired rights ... 23,437 — 23437 22873 — 22,873
Visa trade mame ..o 4,084 — 4,084 4,084 - 4,084
Total indefinite-lived intangible assets. 27,521 — 27,521 26,957 — 26,957
Total intangible assets ... .. . $ 28266 $ (418) § 27848 £ 27613 & [379) $ 27,234

Amortization experse related to finite-lived intangible assets was $56 million, $50 million and $63 million for fiscal

2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. At September 30, 2017, estimated future amortization expense on finite-lived
intangible assets is as follows:

2022 and
Fiscal: 2ME 2019 2020 201 thereafter Taotal
{in millions}
Estimated future amortization expense ... 5 4 3 40 3 40 3 40 3 71 % 231

There was no impairment related to the Company's indefinite-lived or finite-lived intangible assets during fiscal
2017, 2016 or 2015,

In February 2017, the Company acquired a business for a total purchase consideration net of cash received of
approximately 3302 million, paid primarily with cash on hand. Total purchase consideration has been allocated to the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired, and to liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values on
the acquisition date. Related finite-lived intangible assets recorded totaled 5104 million with 2 weighted-average useful
life of eight years. Goodwill of 3181 millien was recorded to reflect the excess purchase consideration over net assets
acquired. The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of the acquired business from the date
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of acquisition. Pro forma infermation related to the acquisition has not been presented as the impact is not material to
the Company's financial results

The increase in total net intangible assets and goodwill during 2017 was primarily related to foreign currency
translation, which is recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income inthe consolidated balance
sheet, as well as the additions described above, partially offset by measurement period adjustments as the Company
finalized the Visa Europe purchase price allocation during fiscal 2017, See Note 2—=\isa Eurcpe.

Mote T—Accrued and Other Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

September 30,  September 30,
2017 216

{In milllens)

F el 0 T=Te ool = o= TP E1 434 5 347
T R I B T oo s s o s b s e s e s Vs e b 148 145
Accrued income taxes (See Note 18—Income TEXES) ... i 243 153
TORRD ... et it e s em et it sy et et st 24 embs s sAmt £tk amnn st s i er s . 5 1,128 3= 1,128

Cther non-current liabilities consisted of the following:

September 30, tember 3
FIEEH? Sep 26 o

{in millions)
Accrued income taxes (See Note T8—Income Tax@s) i % 1,082 3 911
Employes benefits e 62 137
Other ... R e s e aER e e ey L 167 114
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Mote 8—Debt

The Company had outstanding debt as follows:

September 30, 2017 September 30, 216
Unamaortized Unamartized
Discounts Discounts
ard Dbt and Debt Effective
Principal Issuance Carrying Principal lssuance Carrying Interest
Amount Cosls Amount Amount Cosls Amount Rate

{in milliens, except percentages)
1.20% Senior Notes due 2017 flha

"2017 Notes") ... .- % 1750 % (1) 8 1,743 5 — 3§ i = 1.37%
Total current maturities nf lnng-ten'n
el i 1,750 1 1,749 - - -

1.20% Senior Notes due 2017 (lhe

"2017 Motes™) .., i = —_ _ 1.750 {4) 1,746 1.37%
2. 20% Senior Nomduem [lha

"2020 Notes") ... 2,000 {10} 2,980 3,000 {12) 2,988 2.30%
2.15% Senior Notes due Se ber

2022 (the “September 2022 Notes™) 1,000 {7 983 — — — = 30%
2.80% Senior Notes due December

2022 (the "December 2022 Notes™) . 2,250 (10) 2,240 2,250 12) 2,238 2.85%
3.15% Senior Notes due 2025 (the

DROEE NORBEY ... ooreasnsssrasamsyaniérensrns 4,000 (23) 3,967 4,000 {26) 3,964 3.26%
2.75% Senior Notes due 2027 (the

P02 Mobes 750 (10) 740 —_ -— — 291%
4.15% Senior Notes due 2035 (the

"2035 NOtEE" ... eeemnesmsmrenns 1,500 {15) 1,485 1,500 {15) 1,485 4,23%
4.30% Senior Motes due 2045 tlhe

"2045 Notes") ... 3,500 (3T) 3,463 3,500 (28) 3,461 4. 37%
3.65% Senior Notes due 2047 :me

RO BRI . iisscidinaasandissamdnnk g 750 {10) T40 s — - 373%
Total long-termdebt............ns 16,750 (132) 16,618 18,000 (118) 15,882
Totaldebt ... % 18500 % (133) § 18367 S 168000 3 (118) § 15882

Sanjor Notas

In September 2017, the Company issued fixed-rate senior notes (the September 2022 Notes, 2027 Notes and
2047 Motes, or collectively, the "Notes issued in2017") in an aggregate principal amount of $2.5 billion, with maturities
ranging between S and 30 years. Interest on the Notes issued in 2017 is payable semi-annually on March 15 and
Septermnber 15 of each year, commencing March 15, 2018, The net aggregate proceeds from the Motes issued in 2017,
after deducting discounts and debt issuance costs, were approximately 32.5 billion

Use of Proceeds from Notes issued in 2017, On September 11, 2017, the Company called for redemption of all
of the $1.75 billion principal amount outstanding of the 2017 Notes in accordance withthe optional redemption provisions
set forth inthe governing indenture. Subsequentto fiscal 2017, on October 11, 2017, the redemption date, the Company
redeemed all of the 31.73 billion principal amount. The redemption was funded with the proceeds from the Motes
issued in 2017,

In December 2015, the Company issued fixed-rate senior notes (the 2017 Notes, 2020 Motes, December 2022
Motes, 2025 MNotes, 2035 Notes and 2045 Notes, or collectively, the "Notes issued in 2015") in an aggregate principal
amount of $18.0 billion, with maturities ranging between 2 and 30 years. Interest on the Motes issued in 2015 is payable
semi-annually. The net aggregate proceeds from the MNotes issued in 2015, after deducting discounts and debt issuance
costs, were 5159 billion,
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The discounts and debt issuance costs are amortized over the respective term of each note using the effective
interest method, The indenture governing the Notes issued in 2017 and the Netes issued in 2015, or collectively, the
"Motes", contains customary event of default provisions. The Motes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company,
ranking equally and ratably among themselves and with the Company's existing and future unsecured and
unsubordinated debt. The MNotes are not secured by any assets of the Company and are not guaranteed by any of the
Company's subsidiaries. The Company was in compliance with all related covenants as of September 30, 2017

The Company recognized related interest expense of $505 million and $399 million in fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2018,
respectively, as non-operating expense.

Each series of Notes may be redeemed as a whole or in part at the Company's option at any time, prior to either
their maturity date (2017 Notes) or the applicable par call date (the remaining series of notes, as set forthin the table
below), at a price equal to the greater of:

» 100% of the principal amount of such Notes, and

« the sumof the present value of the rermaining scheduled payments of principal and interest through the maturity
or par call date for each of the Notes below at the treasury rate defined under the terms of the Notes, plus the
applicable spread for such Notes (as set forth in the table below),

plus, ineach case, accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

Serles Maturity/Par Call Date Spread
OO M o e R s e S e e o] Movernber 14, 2020 10 bps
SRl e ) 2 M e August 15, 2022 10 bps
December 2022 NOYES October 14, 2022 125bps
L o e Sepltember 14, 2025 15 bps
I s e e e R R g June 15, 2027 125bps
D N e R R R June 14, 2035 20 bps
ZOASMIOMES .ot e June 14, 2045 20 bps
2047 Notes ........coeeminns R BT VA SN s AR March 15, 2047 15 bps

On or after the applicable par call date, the Motes, except the 2017 MNotes, may be redeemed as a whale or in
part, at the Company's option at any time, at a redemptlion price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Motes
being redeemed plus accrued interest,

Future principal payments on the Company's outstanding debt are as follows:

Fiscal Year 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter Total
(N POONS) oo $ 1750 S — 8 — $ 3000 $ 1000 $ 12750 $ 18,500

Commercial Paper Frogram

Wisa maintains a commercial paper program to support its working capital requirements and for other general
corporate purposes. Linder the program, the Company is authonzed to issue up to 53.0 billion in outstanding notes,
with maturities up to 397 days from the date of issuance. During fiscal 2017, the Company issued $587 million of
commercial paper, with a weighted-average interest rate of 0.79%, and subsequently repaid its outstanding obligation.
The Company had no outstanding obligations under the program at September 30, 2017.

Credit Facility
The Compary is a party to a credit agreement for a S-year, unsecured $4.0 billion revolving credit facility {the

"Credit Facility") that was entered into on January 27, 2018, Cn January 27, 2017, the Company extended the term
of the credit facility, which will now expire on Januany 27, 2022,
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The Credit Facility provides a borrowing capacity of up to $4.0 billion. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are
available for general corporate purposes, Interest on the bormowings under the Credit Facility would be charged at the
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or an alternative base rate, ineach case plus applicable margins that fluctuate
based on the applicable rating of senior unsecured long-term securities of the Company. The Borrowers have agreed
to pay a commitment fee which will fluctuate based on such applicable rating of the Company.

Cther matenial terms are:

= a financial covenant which requires the Company to maintain a Consolidated Indebledness to Consolidated
EBITDA Ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility) of not greater than 3.73 to 1.00;

« customary restrictive covenants, which limit the Borrowers' akility to, among other things, create certain liens,
effect fundamental changes to their business, or merge or dispose substantially all of their assets, subject in
each case to customary exceptions and amounts;

« customary events of default, upon the occurrence of which, after any applicable grace period, the requisite
lenders will have the ability to accelerate all outstanding loans thereunder and terminate the commitments;
and

« other customary and standard terms and conditions.

The Compary had no borrowings under the Credit Facility as of September 30, 2017, and was in compliance
with all related covenants as of and during the year ended September 30, 2017.

MNote 8—Pension, Postretirement and Other Benefits

The Company sponsors various qualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension and other postretirement
benefit plans that provide for retirement and medical benefits for all eligible employees residing in the United States.
The Company also sponsors other pension benefit plans that provide benefits for internationally-based employees at
certain non-U.S. locations. As a result of the acquisition of Visa Europe, the Company assumed the obligations related
to Visa Europe’s defined benefit plan, primarily consisting of the UK funded and unfunded pension plans.

Disclosures presented below include the LS. pension plans and the non-U.S. plans, comprising only the Visa
Europe plans. Disclosures relating to other non-U.S. pension benefit plans are not included as they are immaterial,
individually and in aggregate. The Company uses a September 30 measurement date for its pension and other
postretirement benefit plans.

Defined baneafit pansion plans. The LS. pension benefits under the defined benefit pension planwere earned based
on a cash balance formula. An employee’s cash balance account was credited with an amount equal to 6% of eligible
compensation plus interest based on 30-year Treasury securities. In October 2015, the Company's board of directors
approved an amendment of the U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan such that the Company discontinued
employer provided credits after December 31, 2015, Plan paricipants continue to earm interest credits on existing
balances at the time of the freeze. As a result, a curtailment gain totaling 8 million was recognized in fiscal 2016 as
part of the Company's net periodic benefit cost.

The funding policy for the 15, pension benefits is to contribute annually no less than the minimum required
contribution under ERISA

Under the Visa Europe UK pension plans, presented below under'non-U.S. plans”, retirement benefits are provided
based on the participants’ final pensionable pay and are currently closed to new entrants, However, future benefits
cortinue to accrue for active participants, The funding policy is to contribute in accordance with the appropriate funding
requirements agreed with the trustees of the UK pension plans. Additional amounts may be agreed with the LK pension
plan trustees.

Fostretirament benefits plan. The postretirernent benefits plan provides medical benefits for retirees and dependents
who meet minimum age and service requirements. Benefits are provided from retirement date until age 5. Retirees
mest contribute on a monthly basis for the comparable coverage that is generally available to active employees and
their dependents. The Company's contributions are funded on a current basis.
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Summary of Flan Activities
Change in Benefit Obligation:
U.5. Plans Mon-U.5. Plans
Penslon Benefits Pnslretlra?'nm: Benefits Penslon Benefits
Soptember 30, September 30, September 30,
2017 2016 T 2ME 2017 2018
(in millions)

Beneafit -:rbﬂgatlun—begmrnng of fiscal

VAN L . % 1072 5 1005 % 14 5 18 5 474 & —_
Visa Europe acquusman —_ — — - — 381
eI OISk e e —_— 13 = — 6 1
frberest Gl i 368 40 1 1 11 3
Actuarial loss (gain) ..., (58) 86 {1) (2) (52) 86
Benefit payments ..., {137) (&) (2) (3) (14) (1)
Plan amendmeni.. o s e —_ (8) — — — —

Foreign currency exchange rate
changes............... . — _ —_ =

8

Benefit obligation—end of flscal year... $ @3 & 1072 § 1 & 14 § 423 3 474
= = —_—

Accumulated benefit obligation............. § M3 § 1072 MNA NA & 433 5§

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan aﬁseh;—begmmng of

fiscal year .. .. % 1077 § 1022 § — 5 — & 415 5 —
Visa ELI-FGDEEWLHSII’IDT‘I.............. _— —_ — — — 287
Actual retumonplanassets................ 125 118 — — 17 25
Company contribubion. ..., -] 1 3 3 5 102
Bernefit payments..........onmriesre e {137} (64) (3) (3) (14) (1)
Foreign currency exchange rate

(o] 1 T o 1= — —_ — —_ 10 g
Fair value of plan assets—end of flscal

11 T e B 1,074 5 1077 8 — 5 — % 433 5 415

e
Funded status at end ol‘ ﬁscal year......... s 161 35 S % {11) 5 (14) % — 5 (59)
Recognized in Consolidated Balance
Sheets:
Mon-current asset ..., 8 168 % 22 % — — = =
Current liability ............... [ {1 {9) (2) (3) (5) ()
Non-current liability ...t (6) {ﬁ} {2) (11} 5 (93)
Funded status at end of fiscal year......._. s 161 $ 5 !11t 3 (14) & — % (549)
84
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income before tax:

U.5 Plans Hon-U.5. Plans
Cther
Pansion Benafits Postratirement Benefits Pension Benefits
Soptember 30, September 30, Seplember 30,
2017 2016 21T 2016 2m7 2B
{in millions)
Net actuarial loss (gain) ..o B aF 3 291 8 (4) 3 5 $ 2 3 66
Prior servicecredit ... —_ —_ — (2) _ —
T Ot e e o [3 97 $ 241 $ (4) 5 (M) $ 9 s 66

Amounts from accumulated other comprehensive income to be amortized into net periodic benefit cost
in fiscal 2018:

W.5. Plans Mon-W.5, Plans
Other
Pension Postretirament Pension
Benafils Benafits Banefits
(In millions)
| T B R e e o Pl e ] = § (1) & o

O B I i it o i i 1 G o e A e A = — =
| RS —— 2 —_ m 3 —
—_—

Benefit obligations in excess of plan assets related to the Company's U.S. non-qualified plan and the
non-U.S. pension plans'':

U.5. Plans Non-U.5. Plans'''
September 30, September 30,
21T 2016 24T 2016
{in millions)

Accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets

Accumulated benefit obligation—end of year... - 7 3 (18) % {8) = (474
Fair value of plan assets—end of year. .. - AT _— — % — 5 45
Projected benefit obligation in excess nf plan assets

Benefit obligation—end of YBar ... s 5 (7) s (16) & () s (474)
Fair value of plan assets—endofyear.............ccoceicciieee, 8§ -_— & — 3% = & 45

"' Forfiscal 2017, the non-L1. S, non-qualified pension plan had benefit obligations in excess of plan assets. For fiscal 2046, both non- U5, pension
plans had benafit cbligations in excess of plan assets.
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MNet pericdic pension and other postretirement plan cost:

.5, Plans Hon-U.5. Plans"
Other
Pension Benefits Postratirement Banefits Pension Banefits
Fiscal
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
{In millions)
Service cost.iieii. 8 — % 13 08 4 8 — 58 — 5 — § 6 3 1
Inberestcosl i i 36 40 40 1 1 1 11 3
Expected returnon assets ... {70) (69) (72) — - —_ (186) (4)
Amartization of:

Prior service credit ... — (1) (V) (2) (3) (3 = =
Actuarial loss (gain) ... 15 7 1 {2) (2) (2) 2 —
Metbenefitcost. ... 0 {(19) 5 (10) & 9 % (3T H 4 s 3 5 —
Curtailment gain................ —_ (&) - —_ — —_ —_ —_
Settlement loss | 18 15 ri —_ —_ —_ —_
Total net pevriodlc benefit cost. 14! 3 (3] $ 16 % ! E 5 (4) & 4] $ 3 8 =

' For fiscal 2018, it represents \isa Eurcpe's UK pension plans' net pension benefit cost recognized from the Closing threugh September 30,
2016

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income:

U.5. Plans Non-U.5. Plans
Other
Pension Benefits Postratirement Benefits Pension Benefits
2017 26 2017 206 207 2016
(in milllons)
Current year actuarial loss (gain) .................. $§ (113) 5 30 % — & (2) § (53) % 66
Amortization of actuanal (loss) gain. ... (30) (20) 2 2 (2) —
Current year prior service credit......_......... — — — - — —
Amortization of prior service credit. . N —_ a 2 3 —_ —

Total recegnizad in other comprehensiue
income . $ !1113! % 19 $ 4 $ a I | b 66

——
Total recognized in net perlodl-: benefit cost

and other comprehensive income.......... $§ (147) $ 14 $ 1 & (1) § {52) 5

88
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Weighted-Average Actuarial Assumptions:

W.5. Plans Hon-U.5. Plans
Fiscal
207 2016 2015 2017 2016
Discount rate for benefit obligation*"
o L o e R T AT e MR v 3.84% 3.62% 433% 2.70% 2.40%
e [T, 2 e e 2.44% 1.91% 2.43% NA A
Discount rate for net periodic benefit cost:
P I 3.62% 4.33% A427% 2.40% 3.10%
FEsr et e AL s s s g e 1.91% 2.43% 2.99% NA A
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets'™ 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 4.50% 3.92%
Rate of increase in compensation levels for™
Banatit ol o NA A 400% 3.20% 3.20%
Net periodic berefit cost ... i NA A 400% 3.20% 3.00%

"' Represents a single weighted-average discount rate derived based on & cash flow matching analysis, with the projected benefit payments
matching spot rates from a vield curve developed from high-quality corporate bonds.

“ Primarily based an the tergeted allocation. and evaluated for repsenableness by considering such feeters as: (1) actual return on plan assets;

{li} historical rates of return on varous asset classes in the portfeliol {iil) projections of retums on vanous asset classes; and (iv) cument and

prospective capital market conditions and econcmic forecasts,

This assumplion is not applicable for the U.S. plans in fiscal 2017 and 2016 due lo the amendment of the LS. qualified defined benefit pension

plan in Oclober 2015, which discontinued the employer provided credits effective after December 31, 2015

o

The assumed annual rate of future increases in health benefits for the other postretirement benefits plan is 7%
for fiscal 2018, The rate is assumed to decrease to 5% by 2025 and remain at that level thereafter. These trend rates
reflect management's expectations of future rates. Increasing or decreasing the healthcare cost trend by 1% would
change the postretirement plan benefit obligation by less than $1 million.

Pension Plan Assats

Pension plan assets are managed with a long-term perspective to ensure that there is an adequate level of assets
to support benefit payments to participants over the life of the pension plan. Pension plan assets are managed by
external imvestment managers. Investment manager performance is measured against banchmarks for each asset
class on a quarterly basis. An independent consultant assists management with investment manager selections and
performance evaluations

Pension plan assets are broadly diversified to maintain a prudent level of risk and to provide adequate liquidity
for benefit payments. The Company generally evaluates and rebalances the pension plan assets, as appropriate, to
ensure that allocations are consistent with target allocation ranges. The weighted-average targeted allocation for US.
pension plan assets is as follows: equity securities of 50% to 80%, fixed income securities of 25% to 35% and other,
primarily consisting of cash equivalents to meet near term expected benefit payments and expenses, of upto 7%. At
September 30, 2017, LS. pension plan asset allocations for these categories were 64%, 33% and 3%, respectively,
which were within target allocation ranges.

The weighted-average targeted allocation for non-U.S. pension plans is as follows: equity securities of 28%, fixed
income securities of 47% and other of 25%, consisting of cash, multi-asset funds, and property. At September 30,

2017, nen-UL S, pension plan asset allocations for these categories were 31%, 44% and 25%, respectively, which were
generally aligned with the target allocations,

&7
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The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the pension plan's investments at fair value
as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, including the impact of transactions that were not settled at the end of September;

U.5. Plans
Falr Value Measurements at September 30,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 207 216 2017 2018

(I milllons)
Cash equivalents ..., e $§ 31 & 39 $§ 3 3 38
Collective investment funds ... $ 540 3 — 540 —
Corporate debt securities ... 197 185 197 185

U35 government-sponsored debt
SEEUTIES: o o s 47 30 a7 30
U.S. Treasury securities__..._._......_... 75 100 75 100
Asset-backed securities ... $ 35 5 39 51
Bt SIS .. iy s s sakyad 145 672 145 672
Total .ooiiiiiiien. S 281 5 811 % T84 2 215 § 3 5 51 $1.074 31077
& & & " § & " § — _§ ]
Hon-U.8. Mlans
Falr Value Meas urements 3t Seplombaer 30,
Lewvel 1 Lavel 2 Lavel 3 Total
017 2016 mr 2016 2017 2B 2017 2016

(in milliens)
Cashequivalents ... % 1 & 105 5 1 § 105
Corporate debt securities $ 3 35 39 39 39
UK Treasury securfies........co mimn 180 52 150 52
Asset-backed secunties........................ $ 32 5 24 3z 29
Equily Secunties ... 134 116 134 116
Multi-asset securities '™ ... 77 74 7 74
o e e $ 286 3 273 § 116 & 113 § 32 § 280 % 433 § 415

Multi-asset securiies représent pension plan assets thal are invested in funds comprised of broad ranges of assals.

Lewvel 1 assels. Cash equivalents (money market funds, time deposits and treasury bills), U.S. and UK Treasury
securities and equity securities are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy, as fair value is based on quoted
prnices in active markets,

Level 2 assets. Collective investment funds are unregistered investment vehicles that commingle the assets of
multiple fiduciary clients, such as pension and other employee benefit plans, to invest in portfolio of stocks, bonds or
other securities. Although the collective investment funds held by the plan are ultimately invested in the common stocks
of companies in the S&P 500 Index and S&F 500 Completion Index, their own unit values are not directly observable,
and therefore they are classified as Level 2. The fair values of corporate debt, multi-asset and U.S. government-
sponsored securities are based on quoted prices in active markets for similar assets as pravided by third-party pricing
vendors, This pricing data is reviewed internally for reascenableness through comparisons with benchmark quotes from
independent third-party sources, Based on this review, the valuation is confirmed or revised accordingly.

Level 3assets Asset-backed securities are bonds that are backed by vanious types of assets and primarily consist
of mortgage-backed securities. Asset-backed securities are classified as Level 3 due to a lack of observable inputs in
measuring fair value.
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There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 assets during fiscal 2017 or 2016, A separate roll-forward
of Level 3 plan assets measured at fair value iz not presented because activities during fiscal 2017 and 2018 were
immaterial.

Cash Flows
U.5. Plans Non-U.5, Plans
Other
Fension Postratiramaent
Benefils Benefils Pension Benefits
Actual employer contributions {in millions)
. 1 &8 1 & 3 5 102
Expected employer contributions
) B e e e e e 5 1 5% 2 5 )
Expected benefit payments
b ] e e & 161 5 2 3 S5
b 1 -+ S TSP & 83 5 2 3 =)
B e e o e ety & 82 & 2 5 5
2021 ... 3 80 5 1 % 5
R e e e e e e & s 5 1 % 5
2023-2027 5 323 8 15 29
Other Benefits

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan, or 401(k) plan, that covers substantially all of its employees
residing in the United States. Personnel costs included 358 million, 55 million and 342 million in fiscal 2017, 2018
and 2015, respectively, for expenses attributable to the Company's employees under the 401(k) plan. The Company's
contributions to this 401(k) plan are funded on a current basis, and the related expenses are recognized in the period
that the payroll expenses are incurred.

Note 10—Settlement Guarantee Management

The Company indemnifies its clients for settlement losses suffered due to failure of any other client to fund its
settlement obligations in accordance with the Visa rules. This indemnification creates settlernent risk for the Company
due to the difference in timing between the date of a payment transaction and the date of subsequent setiement.
Settlement at risk, arexposure, is primarily caleulated using: (1) an average daily card volume multiplied by anestimated
number of days fo seftle plus a safety margin; (2) four months of rolling average chargebacks volume; and (3) the total
balance for outstanding Visa Travelers Cheques.

The Company maintains and regularly reviews global settlement risk policies and procedures to manage
settlement exposure, which may require clients to post collateral if certain credit standards are not met.

The Company's settlement exposure is limited to the amount of unsettled Visa payment transactions at any paint
intime, The Company’s estimated maximum settlement exposure was $67.7 billion for the year ended September 30,
2017 compared to $67_8 billion for the year ended September 30, 2018, Of these amounts, $2.8 billion and $2.9 billion
at September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were covered by collateral. The total available collateral balances
presented below were greater than the settlement exposure covered by customer collateral held due to instances in
which the available collateral exceeded the total setflement exposure for cerfain financial institutions at each date
presented.
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The Company maintained collateral as follows:

tembar 3 September 30,
e 2017 B pt!ﬂ‘iﬁ

{in millians)
T T 07 [ e o3 o b e e $ 1,490 5 1,295
Fledged securities at MarkEt VAIUE ... e e 167 170
L= = T = | TR 1,216 1,311
BRI i o 0 i S N 45 i SR BT o941 1,418
O e o T T s e e o b e e g 3914 S5 4194

" Cash collateral held by \isa Europe is not included on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as its clients retain beneficial ownership
and the cash is only accessible to the Company in the event of default by the dlient on its setiiement cbligations.

Cash equivalents collateral, excluding cash collateral held by Visa Europe, is reflected in customer collateral on
the consolidated balance sheets as it is held in escrow in the Company's name. All other collateral is excluded from
the consclidated balance sheets. Pledged securities are held by third parties in trust for the Company and clients.
Letters of credit are provided primarily by client financial institutions to serve as irrevocable guarantees of payment.
Guarantees are provided primarily by parent financial institutions to secure the obligations of their subsidiaries. The
Company routinely evaluates the financial viability of instidutions providing the guarantees.

The fair value of the settlement risk guarantee is estimated using a proprietary model which considers statistically
derived loss factors based on historical experience, estimated settlement exposures at period end and a standardized
grading process for clients (using, where available, third-party estimates of the probability of client failure), Historically,
the Company experienced minimal losses, which has confributed to an estimated probability-weighted value of the
guarantes of approximately $3 million and $2 million at September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. These amounts
were reflected in accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets,

Mote 11—Derivative and Non-derivative Financial Instruments
Derivative Financial instruments

Designated denivalive financial instrument hadges. The aggregate notional amount of the Compary's derivative
contracts outstanding in its hedge program was 1.8 billion at September 30, 2017 and 51.6 billion at September 30,
2016, As of September 30, 2017, the Company's cash flow hedges in an asset position totaled 38 million and were
classified in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the consolidated balance sheet, while cash flow hedges
in a hability position totaled 364 million and were classified in accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.
These amounts are subject to master netting agreements, which provide the Company with a legal right to net settle
muitiple payable and receivable positions with the same counterparty, in a single currency through a single payment
However, the Company presents fair values on a gross basis on the consolidated balance sheets. See Nofe 1—
Summary of Significant Accounfing Policies,

The Company uses regression analysis to assess hedge effectiveness prospectively and retrospectively. The
effectiveness tests are performed on the foreign exchange forward contracts based on changes in the spot rate of the
derivative instrument compared to changes in the spot rate of the forecasted hedged transaction. Forward points are
excluded for effectiveness testing and measurement purposes. The excluded forward points are reported in earnings.
Forfiscal 2017, 2016 and 20135, the amounts by which earnings were reduced relating to excluded forward points were
518 million, 230 million and 329 million, respectively.

The effective portion of changes inthe fair value of derivative contracts is recorded as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income or loss onthe consolidated balance sheets. When the forecasted transaction occurs and
is recognized in earnings, the amount in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss related to that hedge is
reclassified to operating revenue or expense, The Company expects to reclassify 49 million of pre-tax losses to
eamings during fiscal 2018,
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Non-designated dervative financial instrument hedges, Subsequent to the acquisition of Visa Europe, the
Company entered into currency forward contracts to offset Visa Europe hedges outstanding atthe date of the acquisition
that did not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment in accordance with ULS. GAAP or the Company’s
accounting policy.

The Comparty utilizes foreign exchange derivative contracts to hedge against foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations related to certain monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency held by Visa Europe. As
of September 30, 2017 and 2016, the aggregate notional amount of these balance sheet hedges was $1.0 billion and
£1.1 billion, respectively.

Credit and market risks. The Company®s derivative financial instruments are subject to both credit and markst
risk. The Company monitors the credit-worthiness of the financial institutions that are counterparties to its derivative
financial instruments and does not consider the risks of counterpanty nonperformance to be significant. The Company
mitigates this risk by entering into master netting agreements, and except for derivative instruments entered into by
Visa Europe, such agreements require each party to post collateral against its net liability position with the respective
counterparty, As of September 30, 2017, the Company has received collateral of $2 million, from counterparties, which
is included inaccrued liabilities inthe consolidated balance sheet, and posted collateral of 31 million, which is included
in other assets inthe consolidated balance sheet. Notwithstanding the Company's efforts to manage foreign exchange
risk, there can be no absolute assurance that its hedging activities will adequately protect against the risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Credit and market risks related to derivative instruments were not considered
significant at September 30, 2017,

Non-derivative Financial Instrument Designated as a Net Investment Hedge

As of Septernber 30, 2017, the Company had designated $1.2 billion of its euro-denominated deferred cash
consideration liability, a non-derivative financial instrument, as a hedge against a portion of the foreign currency
exchange rate exposure of the Company's eurp-denominated net investment of $18.8 billion in Visa Europe. During
fiscal 2017, changes in the euro exchange rate against the U.S. dollar resulted in net foreign currency transiation
adjustments of $1.1 billion,

MNote 12—Enterprise-wide Disclosures and Concentration of Business

The Company’s long-lived net property, equipment and technology assets are classified by major geographic
areas as follows:

September 30, termber 30,
> 2017 i Fiil]

{in millions)
It o e P e e e e T AT L SR 5 2003 = 1,827
e Ol o L B N o e B N R s B s 250 323
Total ... e e e g s 5 2263 5 2150

Revenue by geographic market is primarily based on the location of the issuing financial institution. Revenues
eamed in the United States were approximately 47% of net operating revenues in fiscal 2017, 52% in fiscal 2016 and
53% in fiscal 2015, Mo individual country, other than the United States, generated more than 10% of net operating
revenues in these years.

Asignificant portion of Visa's operating revenues is concentrated among its largest clients. Loss of business from
any of these clients could have an adverse effect on the Company. The Company did not have any customer that
ogenerated greater than 10% of its net operating revenues in fiscal 2017, 2016 or 20135,
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Mote 13—Stockholders® Equity

Visa Europe acquisition. In connection with the Visa Europe acquisition, three new series of preferred stock of
the Company were created, Upon issuance, all of the preferred stock participate on an as-converted basis in regular
quarterly cash dividends declared on the Company's class A common stock. Additionally, Visa Europe held shares of
Visa Inc's class C common stock, which were treated as treasury stock in purchase accounting. During fiscal 2017,
the newly-formed Visa Foundation received all Visa Inc. shares that were previously recorded as freasury stock. See
Nofe 2—Visa Europe and Note 18—Income Taxes

Class A comman stock spiif. In January 20135, Visa's board of directors declared a four-for-one split of its class
A common stock Each class A common stockholder as of the record date received a dividend of three additional
shares for every share held as of the record date, Holders of class B and C common stock did not receive a stock
dividend. Instead, the conversion rate for class B common stock increased to 1.6483 shares of class A common stock
per share of class B common stock, and the conversion rate for class C common stock increased to 4.0 shares of
class A common stock per share of class C common stock. Immediately following the split, the class A Band C
stockholders retained the same relative ownership percentages that they had prior to the stock spiit. All per share
amounts and number of shares outstanding in these consoclidated financial statements and accompanying notes are
presented on a post-split basis. As a result of the stock split, all historical per share data and number of shares
outstanding presented have been retroactively adjusted

As-converled class Acommaon stock. The UKE] and Europe preferred stock, issued in the Visa Europe acquisition,
is comvertible upon certain conditions into shares of class A common stock ar class A equivalent preferred stock, at
aninitial corwersion rate of 13.952 shares of class A common stock for each share of UKE| preferred stock and Europe
preferred stock, The conversion rates may be reduced from time to time to offset certain liabilities, See Nofe 2—\isa
Europe and Note 3—U. S, and Europe Retrospective Rasponsibility Flans.

The number of shares of each series and class, and the number of shares of class A cormmon stock on an as-
corverted basis at September 30, 2017, are as follows:

Conwversion Rabe As-convarted
Shares Into Class A Class A Common

{in millions, excopl conversion rata) Dutstanding Commaon Stock Stack "

UKEI preferred S10CK ... s e s eneas 2 13.0770 32
Europe prefemed stocK ..........conimieiniisen s e 3 13,9430 44
Class Acommon stock ® ... s ies 1,818 — 1,818
Class B COMMONSIOCK.................iveeievssmscs ot ssmeonasrmes 245 16483 @ 405
Class Cecommon Stock e 13 40000 51

"' Figuresin the table maynot recalculate exacthy due to rounding. As-converted class Acommon stock is calculated based on unrounded numbers.

“1 Class A common stock shares culstanding reflect repurchases seftled on or before Seplember 30, 2017.

H The class B to class & common Siock conversion rate IS presented on a rounded basis. Conversion calculations for dividend payments are
based on & conversion rate rounded to the tenth decimal.

Reduction in as-converted shares. During fiscal 2017 total as-converted class A common stock was reduced by
79 million shares at an average price of $89.92 per share. Of the 79 million shares, 77 million were repurchased in
the open market using 36.9 billion of operating cash on hand. Additionally, the Company recovered 5181 million of VE
territory covered losses in accordance with the Europe retrospective responsibility plan. The recovery has the same
economic effect on earnings per share as repurchasing the Company's class A commen stock, because it reduces the
UK&| and Europe preferred stock conversion rates and consaquently, the as-converted class A common stock share
count. See Nate 3—U. 5. and Europe Retrospective Responsibility Flans.
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The following table presents share repurchases in the open market during the following fiscal years'™:

{in millions, excepl per share data) 217 2016

Shares repurchased in the open market™ e 77 g1
Average repurchase price per share™ ... . 3 8988 5 77.05
==« = T .% 6891 & 5087

Shares repurchased in the open market reflect repurchases settled during fiscal 2017. These amounts include repurchases traded bul not yet
setled on or bafore September 30, 2016 for fiscal 2017 o September 30, 2015 for Gscal 2016 and exclude repurchases traded but not yel
settled on or before September 30, 2017 for fiscal 2017 or September 30, 2016 for fiscal 2018,

All shares repurchased in the open market have been retired and constitute authonized but unissued shares,

Figures in the table may not recalculate exacthy due to rcunding. Average repurch ase price per share is calculated based on unrocunded numbers.

In April 2017, the Company's board of directors authorized an additional $5.0 billion share repurchase program
As of September 30, 2017, the share repurchase program had remaining authorized funds of 33.9 billion. All share
repurchase programs authorized prior to April 2017 have been completed

Linder the terms of the Europe retrospective responsibility plan, the Company is entitled to recover VE territony
covered losses through periodic adjustments to the class A commen stock conversion rates applicable to the UK
and Europe preferred stock See Nole 3—U. 5. and Europe Refrospective Responsibility Plans,

The following table presents as-converted UK&I and Europe preferred stock, after the Company recovered VE
territory covered losses through conversion rate adjustments, for fiscal 2017, There was no comparable adjustment
recorded for Europe preferred stock during fiscal 2016

UK &I Preferred Stock Euwrope Preferred Stock
{in millions, except per share and converslon rate data) 2017 207
Reduction in equivalent number of shares of class A common 5 o
e — =
Effective price per share 3 BBYD 3 85.01
Recovery through conversion rate adjustment ... 3 180 S 1

"' The reduction in equivalent number of shares of class A commen stock was less than one million shares.
Bl Effective price per share is calculated using the volume-weighted average price of the Company's class A commen stock over a pricing period
in accordance with the Company's cument certiicates of designations for its series B and C converible paricipating preferred stock.

Clzass B common stock. The class B common stock is not corvertible or transferable urtil the date on which all
of the .S, covered litigation has been finally resolved. This transfer restriction is subject to limited exceptions, including
transfers to other holders of class B commeon stock. After termination of the restrictions, the class B common stock will
be convertible into class A common stock if transferred to a person that was not a Visa Member (as defined in the
current certificate of incorporation) or similar person or an affiliate of a Visa Member or similar person. Upan such
transfer, each share of class B common stock will automatically convert into a number of shares of class A common
stock based upon the applicable conversion rate in effect at the time of such transfer,

Adiustment of the conversion rate occurs upon: (1) the completion of any follow-on offering of class A common
stock completed to increase the size of the ULS. litigation escrow account (or any cash deposit by the Company in lieu
thereof) resulting in a further corresponding decrease in the conversion rate; or (i) the final resolution of the U.S.
covered litigation and the release of funds remaining on deposit inthe LS. litigation escrow account to the Company
resulting in a corresponding increase in the corversion rate. There were no deposits into the US. litigation escrow
account in fiscal 2017 or 2016, See Note 3—U 5. and Eurape Retrospective Responsibility Plans.

Class Ccommon stock. As of September 30, 2017, all of the shares of class C common stock have been released
from transfer restrictions. A total of 139 million shares have been converted from class C to class A commaon stock
upon their sale into the public market.
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Preferred stock. Preferred stock may be issued as redeemable or non-redeemable, and has preference over any
class of common stock with respect to the payment of dividends and distribution of the Company’s assets in the event
of a liquidation or dissolution. The Company had 5 million shares of UK&| and Europe preferred stock outstanding at
the end of fiscal 2017 and 2016. The shares of UK&| and Europe preferred stock are subject to restrictions on transfer
and may become convertible in stages based on developments in the VE territory covered litigation. The shares of
K& and Europe preferred stock will become fully convertible onthe 12th anniversary of the Closing, subject only to
a holdbackto cover any then-pending claims. Upon any such conversion of the UKAI or Europe preferred stock (whether
by such 12th anniversary, or thereafter with respect to claims pending on such anniversary), the holder would receive
either class Acommon stock or class Aequivalent preferred stock (for those who are not eligible to hold class Acommon
stock pursuant to the Company's charter). The class A equivalent preferred stock will be freely transferable and each
share of class A equivalent preferred stock will automatically convert into 100 shares of class A common stock upen
a transfer to any holder that is eligible to hold class A common stock under the charter, See Note 2—\Visa Europe and
MNote 3—LU1.8. and Europe Retfrospective Responsibility Plans.

Vioting rights. The holders of the UK&| and Europe preferred stock have no right to vote on any matters, except
for certain defined matters, including, in specified circumstances, any consolidation, merger, combination or similar
transaction of the Company in which the prefermed stockholders would either (i) receive shares of common stock or
other equity securities of the Company with preferences, rnights and privileges that are not substantially identical to the
preferences, rights and privileges of the applicable series of preferred stock or (i) receive securities, cash or other
property that is different from what the Company's class A common stockholders would receive, With respect to these
limited matters on which the holders of preferred stock may vote, approval by the preferred stockholders requires the
affirmative vote of the outstanding veting power of each such series of preferred stock, each such series voting as a
single class. In either case, the UK&| and Eurcpe preferred stockholders are entitled to cast 2 number of votes equal
to the number of shares held by each such holder. Holders of the class A equivalert preferred stock, upon issuance
at corwversion, will have similar voting rights to the rights of the holders of the UKZI and Europe preferred stock.

Class A common stockholders have the right to vote on all matters on which stockholders generally are entitled
to vote. Class B and C common stockhalders have no right to vote on any matters, except for certain defined matters,
including (i) any decision to exit the core payments business, inwhich case the class B and C common stockholders
will vote together with the class A commeon stockholders in a single class, and (i) in specified circumstances, any
consolidation, merger, combination or similar transaction of the Company, in which case the class B and C common
stockholders will vote together as a single class. In either case, the class B and C common stockholders are entitied
to cast a number of votes eqgual to the number of shares of class B or C comman stock held multiplied by the applicabie
comversion rate in effect on the record date. Holders of the Company's comman stock have no nght to vote on any
amendment to the current certificate of incorporation that relates solely to any series of preferred stock

Dividends declared. The Company declared and paid $1.6 billion in dividends in fiscal 2017 at a quarterly rate
of $0.185 per share. In October 2017, the Company's board of directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.185
per share of class A common stock (determined in the case of class B and C comman stock and UK&I and Europe
preferred stock on an as-converted basis), which will be paid on December 5, 2017, to all holders of record of the
Company's commen and preferred stock as of November 17, 2017,

MNote 14—Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available to each class by the weighted-average
number of shares of common stock outstanding and participating securities during the period, Met income is allocated
to each class of common stock and participating securities based on its proportional ownership on an as-converted
basis. The weighted-average number of shares of each class of commoen stock outstanding reflects changes in
ownership over the periods presented. See Nole 13=Slockhoiders' Equily.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available by the weighted-average number of
shares of commaon stock outstanding, participating secunties and, if dilutive, potential class A comman stock equivalent
shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive class A common steck equivalents may consist of: (1) shares of class
A common stock issuable upon the conversion of LUKE| and Europe preferred stock and class B and C common stock
based on the conversion rates in effect through the period, and (2) incremental ghares of class A common stock
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calculated by applving the treasury stock method to the assumed exercise of employee stock options, the assumed
purchase of stock under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the assumed vesting of unearmed performance shares,

The following table presents earnings per share for fiscal 2017.1

Basic Eamings Per Share Diluted Eamings Per Share
{in milllons, except per share data)
Welghted- Weighted-
Income Average Eamings per Incoeme Average Eamings per
Aliocajjon Shares Ehare = Allocagion Shares Share =
) Outstanding (B) AIEY (&) outstanding (B) (AHE)
Class A comman stack ... s 5170 1845 § 280 | 5 6690 2305 Y g 2.80
Class B common stock ..., 1,134 245 5 462 | § 1,132 245 5 481
Class C commeon steck ... 163 14 5 11.27 |'S 162 14 5 11.18
Participating securities™ ... 232  MNotpresented Motpresented | § 232 Mot presented Mot presented
et Income R SRR $ 5689

The following table presents earnings per share for fiscal 2016."

Basic Earnings Per Share Diluted Earnings Per Share
{in millions, except per share data)
I & mﬁ“m;? Eamings per Income ‘im Eamings per

Ao alj o Ehares Sharg = Allb-caﬂnn Shares Share =

(A} Outstanding (B} LAITE (a) Outstanding (8} [RB)
Class A common stock 1808 5 249 | 5 5991 2414 ¥ g 2.48
Class B common stock 243 3 410 | & 1,004 2435 S 4.08
Class C common stock ... 185 19 § 984 | 5 185 19 5 8.93
Farticipating securities’™ ... 62 Mot presented Mot presented | S &1 Mot presented Mok presented

_

The following table presents earnings per share for fiscal 201 5.9

Basic Eamings Per Share Diluted Earnings Per Share
(in millions, except per share data)
I wﬂ.dm“. Earri e “;I ; E
Allazagion Sharcs. Share = | Allocagion Shares. gt o
(&) Gutstanding (B) (AJB] A Gutstanding (8) (AN(B)
Class Acommonstock . ... 5 5044 1854 % 258 | 5 6328 2457 ¥ g 258
Class B common stock ............ 1,045 245 § 426 | 5 1,042 245 5 4.25
Class C common stock ... 224 b . 1033 |5 223 2 5 10.30
Participating securiies'’ | . 15 Motpresented Mot preserted | $ 15 Mot presented Mot presented
Metincome ... $ 6328

m

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Eamings per share Is calculated based on unrounded numbers. The number
of shares and per share amaunts for the prior perieds presented have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the four-for-one stock split effected
in the second quarter of fiscal 2015. See Nole 13—Slockholders” Equity.

et income is allocated based on proportional cwnership on an as-converted basis. The weighted-gverage number of shares of as-convered
class B common stock used in the income allecation was 405 million for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, The weighted-average number of shares
of as-convened class C commen stock used in the income allocation was 58 million, 75 millien and 87 million for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The weighted-average number of shares of preferred stock, included within paricipating securities, was 33 million of as-convered
UK&I preferred stock, and 44 million of as-converied Eurcpe prefermed stock for fiscal 2017

Weighted-average diluted shares oulstandng are calculaled on an as-converted basis, and include incremental common slock equivalents. as
calculated under the treasury stock method. The computation includes 5 million commaon stock equivalents for fiscal 2017 and 2016 and & million
commen stock equivalents for fiscal 2015, because their effect would have been dilutive. The computation excludes 2 million of common stock
equivalents for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, because their effect would have been anti-difutive.

Panicipating securities include preferred stock outstanding and unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfetable nghts to
dividends or dividend equivalents, such asthe Company's UK&| and Eurcpe preferred slock, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units and
eamed performance-based shares, UK&l and Europe preferred stock were issued as part of the purchase price consideration in connection

25
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with the Visa Europe acquisition and are cenvertible into a number of shares of class A commeon slock or class A equivalent preferred stock
upen cerfain conditions, Paricipating securities’ income is allocated based on the weighted-everage number of shares of as-converted stock,

See Nole 2—Visa Europe and Nole 13— Stockholders® Equily.
Mote 15—Share-based Compensation

2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

The Company's 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan, or the EIF authorizes the compensation committee
of the board of directors to grant non-qualified stock options (“oplions"), restricted stock awards ("RSAs"), restricted
stock units ("RSUS") and performance-based sharesto its employees and non-employee directors, for up to 236 million
shares of class A common stock. Shares available for award may be either authonzed and unissued or previoushy
issued shares subsequently acquired by the Company. The EIF will continue to be in effect until all of the common
stock available under the EIF is delivered and all restrictions onthose shares have lapsed, unless the EIR isterminated
earlier by the Company’s board of directors, Awards may be granted under the plan until January 31, 2022,

Share-based compensation cost is recorded net of estimated forfeitures on a straight-line basis for awards with
service conditions only, and on a graded-vesting basis for awards with service, performance and market conditions,
The Company's estimated forfeiture rate is based on an evaluation of historical, actual and trended forfeiture data
For fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded share-based compensation cost related to the EIP of $224
million, $211 million and $184 million, respectively, in personnel expense on its consolidated statements of operations.
The related tax benefits were 367 million, $52 million and $54 million for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
amount of capitalized share-based compensation cost was immaterial during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015,

All per share amounts and number of shares outstanding presented below reflect the four-for-one stock split that
was effected in the second quarter of fiscal 2015, See Note 13—Stockholdars’ Equify.

Options

Options issued under the EIP expire 10 years from the date of grant and primarily vest ratably over 3 years from

the date of grant, subject to earlier vesting in full under certain conditions.

Dwring fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of each stock option was estimated on the date of grant using
a Black-Scholes oplion pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

217 216 25
Expected term (in years)'™ 423 435 455
Risk-free rate of return®™ ... ... 1.6% 1.5% 1.5%
Expected mlatility'“' ....................................................... ; 20.2% 21.7% 22 0%
Expected dividend yield™ e, 0.8% 0.7% 0.8%
Fair value per option granted ... s 1380 & 1501 8 1204

This assumplion is based on the Company's historical oplion exercises and those of a sel of peer companies thal management believes is

generally comparable to Visa, The Company's data is weighted based on the number of years between the measurement date and Visa's inltial
pullic offering as a percentage of the options’ confractual term. The relative weighting placed on \isa's data and peer data in fiscal 2017 was
approximately 87% and 13%. regpectively, and 77% and 23% in fiscal 2016, respectively and 67% and 33% in fiscal 2015, respectively,

|

Based upen the zero coupon U5 treasury bond rate over the expected berm of the awards.

i

2016 and 21% to 23% In fiscal 2015.
Based on the Company’s annual dnadend rate on the date of grant.
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The following table summarnizes the Company's option activity for fiscal 2017:

Welghted-
Waighted Rl:::;li:ﬂ& A ala
Avara j Cnntranl:]gl rﬁg'lfglc
Exercise Price Term Walue "
Options Par Shara (in years) {in millions)
Outstanding at October 1, 2016 ... BE876 484 3 3842
Gramted e 1671344 % B0.82
Forfeited e e (386138) % 75.01
EXErSad i s b4 B16) § 29,62
Qutstanding at September 30, 2017 ... .. ... 7115876 5 50.17 54 $392
Options exercisable at September 30, 2017 .. ... 4463008 3§ 3339 36 231
Options exercisable and expected to vest at
September 30, Eﬂﬂﬁﬂ ......................................... 6773571 8§ 4873 a3 5383

" Caleulated using the clesing stock price on the |ast frading day of fiscal 2017 of $105.24. less the oplion exercise price, multiphed by the number
of nstruments,
F1 applies & forfeilure rate to unvested oplions outstanding al Septernber 30, 2017 to estimate the options expected to vest in the future,

For the options exercised during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, the total intrinsic value was $178 million, $103
million and $134 million, respectively, and the tax benefit realized was 62 million, $35 million and $86 million,
respectively. As of September 30, 2017, there was 519 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 0.4 years.

Reasiricted Sfock Awards and Raslricfed Stock Units

R5As and RSUs issued under the EIP primarily vest ratably over 3 years from the date of grant, subject to earlier
vesting in full under certain conditions,

Upon vesting, the RSAs are settled in class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. During the vesting period,
RSA award recipients are eligible to receive dividends and paricipate in the same voting rights as those granted to
the holders of the undertying class A comrmon stock. Upon vesting, RSUs can be settled in class A common stock on
a one-for-one basis or in cash, or a combination thereof, at the Company's option. The Company does not currently
intend to settle any RSUs in cash. During the vesting penod, RSU award recipients are eligible to recene dividend
equivalents, but do not paricipate inthe voting rights granted to the holders of the underlying class A common stock.
The company discontinued granting RSAs in fiscal 2016 but will continue to grant RSUs under the EIP

The fair value and compensation cost before estimated forfeitures for RSAs and RSUs is calculated using the
closing price of class A common stock on the date of grant, The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSAs granted
during fiscal 2015 was $63.71. No RSAs were granted during fiscal 2017 and 2016 The weighted-average grant-date
fair value of RSUs granted during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $81.67, 579.77 and 362 88, respectively. The total
grant-date fair value of RSAs and RSUs vested during fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 was 5163 million, $142 million and
132 million, respectively
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The following table summarizes the Company's RSA and RSU activity for fiscal 2017:

Weighted-
Average
Wilghted- Remaining
Average Contractual ",‘,?.tm;“
Grant Date Term Value ™
Restricted Stock Fair Value {in years) {in millions)
Awards Units RSA REU RSA RSU RSA REU
Outstanding at October 1, 2016........ 1,766,582 3146954 355826 37548
Grapbed e e R — 3268327 § — 58167
b P e (1,210,178) (1,288187) 557.37 %7220
P e e S e s s e (20,399) (442393) 56190 57934

Outstanding at September 30, 466,007 4673701 $63.37 $8037 02 16 S48 $492
" Caleulated by mubtiphying the tosing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2017 of $105.24 by the number of instrurments.

At September 30, 2017, there was §7 million ard 3215 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related
to urvested RSAs and RSUs, respectively, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
approximately 0.2 years for RSAs and 1.6 years for RSUs,

Parformance-based Shares

The following table summarizes the maximum number of performance-based shares which could be earned and
related activity for fiscal 2017

Welghted-
Average
Welghted- Remaining
Average Contractual Airembe
Grant Date Term Walue '
Shares Fair Value {Ir years) {in millions)
Outstanding at October 1, 2016 .......c.coveiviinin 1,042012 % 78,24
Granted™ e 634651 § a8 .37
Vestedandearmned. ... ..., (345797) & 7250
LT T (97.531) % 72.50
FOrRIET o oo (295,660) 8513
Qutstanding at September 30, 2017 ... 837675 % 84.20 1.0 s8¢

, Calculated by mulliphing the closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2017 of $105.24 by the number of instrumeants
‘I Represents the maximum number of performance-based shares which could be eamed.

For the Compary's performance-based shares, in addition to service conditions, the ultimate number of shares
to be eamned depends on the achievement of both performance and market conditions. The performance condition is
based onthe Company's earnings per share target. The market condition is based on the Company's total shareholder
return ranked against that of other companies that are included in the Standard & Poor's S00 Index. The fair value of
the performance-based shares, incorperating the market condition, is estimated on the grant date using a2 Monte Carlo
simulation model. The grant-date fair value of perfformance-based shares granted in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 was
B86.37, 302 71 and $69.78 pershare, respectively. Earned performance shares granted in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015
vest approximately three years from the initial grant date. All performance awards are subject to earlier vesting in full
under certain conditions.

Compensation cost for performance-based sharesis initially esimated based ontarget performance. Itis recorded
ret of estimated forfeitures and adjusted as appropriate throughout the performance period. At September 30, 2017,

there was 533 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested performance-based shares, which
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.0 years,
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In January 2015, the Company's class A stockholders approved the Visa Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan
{the "ESPP"), under which substantially all employees are eligible to participate, The ESPP permits eligible employees
to purchase the Company's class A common stock at a 15% discount of the stock price on the purchase date, subject
to certain restrictions. A total of 20 million shares of class A common stock have been reserved for issuance under the
ESPR The first offering date was April 1, 2015. ESPP did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial
staternents in fiscal 2017, 2016 or 2015.

Note 16—Commitments and Centingencies

Commitments. The Company leases certain premises and equipment throughout the world with varying expiration
dates. The Company incurred total rent expense of $159 million, $134 million and $138 million in fiscal 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively. Future minimurm payments on leases, and marketing and sponsorship agreements per fiscal
year, at September 30, 2017, are as follows:

2018 2013 2020 2021 022 Thereafter Tatal

{in millions)
Operating leases................ .3 185 § 118 3 BE S 64 % 57 % 183 £ 626
Marketing and sponsorships.. 124 123 112 40 33 — 432
Tokal. e § 279 $ 242 % 180 5 104 % 90 $ 163 & 1,088

Select sponsorship agreements require the Company to spend certain minimum amounts for advertising and
marketing promation over the life of the contract. For commitments where the individual years of spend are not specified
in the contract, the Comparny has estimated the timing of when these amounts will be spent. In addition to the fixed
payments stated above, select sponsorship agreements require the Company to undertake marketing, promotional or
other activities up to stated manetary values to support events which the Company is sponsaring. The stated monetary
value of these activities typically represents the value in the marketplace, which may be significantly higher than the
actual costs incurred by the Company.

Client incentives. The Company has agreements with financial institution clients and other buginess partners for
various programs designed to build payments volume, increase Visa product acceptance and win merchant routing
transactions. These agreements, with terms ranging from one year to sixteen years, can provide card issuance and/
or conversion support, volume/growth targets and marketing and program support based on specific performance
requirements.

Client incentives are recognized primarily as a reduction to operating revenue in the period the related volumes
and transactions cceur, based on management's estimate of the client's peformance in accordance with the terms of
the incentive agreement. The agreements may or may not limit the amount of client incentive payments.

The table below sets forth the estimated expected future reduction of revenue per fiscal year for client incentive
agreements in effect at September 30, 2017:

{in millions) 2018 013 2020 20 022 Tharwafter Total
Clientincentives.. ... 3 5048 % 4634 § 4117 % 3658 § 3102 3 5080 § 25,660

The amount of client incentives that will be recorded as a reduction of revenue in future periods under the
Company's incentive agreementsis unknowable due tothe inherent unpredictability of payment and transaction volume,
and will likely change materially from the estimates above due to changes in performance expectations, actual client
performance, amendments to existing contracts or the execution of new contracts. Increases in client incentive
payments are generally driven by increases in payment and transaction volume and hence, an associated increase
in revenue, As a result, in the event client incentives exceed the above estimates, it is not expected to have a material
effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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Deferred purchase consideration. On June 21, 2016, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of Visa
Eurgpe. In connection with the purchase, the Company will pay an additional €1.0 billion, plus 4% compound annual
interast, on the third anniversary of the Closing. See Note 2—\Visa Eurcpe.

Mote 17—Related Parties

Visa considers an entity to be a related party for purposes of this disclosure if that entity owns more than 10%
of Visa's total voting common stock at the end of the fiscal year, or if an officer or employee of that entity also serves
on the Company's board of directors, The Company considers an investee o be a related party if the Company's;
(i) ownership interest in the investee is greater than or equal to 10% or (i) if the investment is accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, At September 30, 2017 and 2018, no entity owned mare than 10% of the Company's
total woting common stock, There were no significant transactions with related parties during fiscal 2017, 2016 and
2015,

Mote 18—Income Taxes

The Company's income before taxes by fiscal year consisted of the following:

2017 2016 2015
{in millions)
L e e S e e s 8440 3 5839 3 7,214
I S i e s s A G sl 3,254 2173 1,781
Total income beforetaxes ..., T e T el $ 11894 5 8012 & 8,985
e "8 _

U.E. income before taxes included 2 9 billion, $2.5 billion and 22 .4 billien of the Company's U.S. entities’ income
from operations outside of the U.S. for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

Income tax provision by fiscal year consisted of the following:

2017 2016 2015
{in millions)
Current:
b S e e al e o e e R b 5 23fT7 & 2250 8 1,991
Stateand local: s e s e e e e e ] bz | 181 168
PO LRSS s s e i L 628 368 300
O LT e e e e e e s 5 3,297 2799 2,458
Deferred:
O (T [ - | O . 1,607 (508} 181
State and local 66 (63) 1
O D e e e s s b e S L Lt e 25 (207) 26
N N TR T IS . . i e R SRR R o R 1,688 (778) 208
Total income tax Provision ... i 5 4,993” 5 2021 % 2,&5?_
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
at September 30, 2017 and 2016, are presented below,

047 2016
{in millions)
Deferred Tax Assets:
Accrued compensation and BEREMES ..o v s e 8 184 = 297
T T B I ORI L 29 106
Pecaroed Bt iom ol on o i e T R 373 373
L (1= T o= 1111 F O OO 272 268
MNet operating 0SS CAarMyTOMWAINTS ..o e s s e e s 45 32
Federalbenchit of alate tanees o o e e T S e L 236 195
Federal benefit ef foralgn fases .. . L i il i ek — 1,214
L T P PSPPSR T D T T 183 280
N L IO Bl ORI i i T i S AN i i (35) (31)
e e e A RS i e ot e e A i e o e e N Y Ee e 1,307 2712
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, equipment and technology, Nt .. ... e s (391) (278)
It T B s crosrmommmns e somam w2 g ey e i g e B (6,756) {7,013)
O B S s e e R R e e e T (59) (1086)
MR e e o e U e B e S ey - {1t1)
Eletermen: b i s e N s (7,208) (7,498)

Net deferred tax labIIItes ... & (5,898) & (4,786)

In February 2017, the Company completed a reorganization of Visa Europe and certain other legal entities to
align the Company's corporate structure to the geographic jurisdictions in which it conducts business operations. As
a result of the reorganization, the Company recorded a $1.5 billion non-recurring, non-cash income tax provision
primarily related to the elimination of deferred tax balances originally recognized upon the acquisition of Visa Europe
in fiscal 2016, The increase in net deferred tax liabilities reflects the elimination of the deferred tax balances

At Septemnber 30, 2017 and 2016, net deferred tax assets of 381 million and $22 million, respectively, are reflected
in other assets on the consalidated balance sheets.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
all or some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences are
deductible. The fiscal 2017 and 2016 valuation allowances relate pnmarily to foreign net operating losses from
subsidiaries acquired in recent years.

As of Septermnber 30, 2017, the Company had 542 million federal, $27 million state and 5140 million foreign net
operating loss carmyforwards, The federal and state net operating loss carmyforwards will expire in fiscal 2026 through
2037. The foreign net operating loss may be camied forward indefinitely. The Company expects to fully utilize the federal
and state net operating loss carnyforwards in future years.

As of September 30, 2017, the Company had $20 million of federal foreign tax credit carryforwards, which will
expire in fiscal 2027, The Company expects to realize the benefit of the credit carryforwards in future years
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The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable U.S. federal
statutory rate of 35% to pretax income, as a result of the following:

For the Years Ended September 30,
2017 M6 2015
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
{In milliens, except percentages)

U5, federal income tax at statutory rate ... $ 4,093 3% & 2804 35% & 3148 35 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit .............. 200 2% 135 2% 194 2%
MNon-LLS. tax effect, net of federal benefit .............. (641) (5)% (953) (7)% (327) (4%
Reorganization of Visa Eurﬂp& and other ieml _ _ _ _

entities . ... : 1,515 13 % " *
e e S Imblllt{.r ................. — — % (88) (1)% = — %
Reversal of prior years tax reserves related to the

resnlmmnpnrl unﬁnain tax positions ... == — % - —% (239) (2)%
Revaluation of Visa Europe put option .................. - —% (89) (1)% = =
Other, net . (172) (2)% (188) (3)% {109) (1)%
lrlcmmta.t prmrisi-un ........................................... $ 4,995 43% 5 2,021 25% 5 2667 30 %

As mentioned above, the February 2017 recrganization of Visa Europe and certain other legal entities resulted
in a non-recurring, non-cash income tax provision of $1.5 billion primarily related to the elimination of deferred tax
balances. Associated with this reorganization, the newly-formed Visa Foundation received all Visa Inc. shares held by
Visa Europe that were previously recorded as treasury stock.

The effective income tax rate was 43% infiscal 2017 and 25% in fiscal 2016, The effective tax rate in fiscal 2017
differs from the effective tax rate in fiscal 2016 primarily due fo;

+ the aforementioned $1.5 billion non-recurring, non-cash income tax provision related to the legal entity
reorganization recorded in fiscal 2017,

+« 371 million tax benefit related to Visa Foundation's receipt of Visa Inc. shares mentioned above, recarded in
fiscal 2017

= 370 milllon of excess tax benefits related to share-based payments recorded in fiscal 2017, as a result of the
early adoption of Accounting Standards Update 2016-09. See Note T—Summary of Significant Accourting
Policies, and

+ the absence of:

v the effect of one-time items related to the VWisa Europe acquisition recorded during fiscal 2016, the
most significant of which was the $1.9 billion U.5. loss related to the effective settlement of the
Framework Agreement between Visa and Visa Europe. These one-time itemns impacted the geographic
mix of global income, resulting in a reduced effective tax rate in fiscal 2016;

« an %88 million one-time tax benefit due to the remeasurement of deferred tax liabilities as a result of
the reduction in the LIK tax rate enacted in fiscal 2016, and

= the non-taxable $255 million revaluation of the Visa Europe put option recorded in fiscal 2016,

The effective income tax rate was 25% in fiscal 2016 and 30% in fiscal 2015, The effective tax rate in fiscal 2016
differs from the effective tax rate in fiscal 2015 primarily due to:

= the effect of one-time items related to the Visa Europe acquisition, as mentioned above, that impacted the
geographic mix of global income resulting in a reduced effective tax rate in fiscal 2018;

+ an 588 million one-time tax benefit due to the remeasurement of deferred tax liabilities as a result of the
reduction in the UK tax rate enacted in fiscal 20186;

+ the non-taxable $255 million revaluation of the Visa Europe put option recorded in fiscal 2016; and

« the absence of a $288 million tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2015 resulting from the resolution of uncertain
tax positions with taxing authorities. Included in the 298 million was a one-time $239 million tax benefit that
related to prior fiscal years,
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Current income taxes receivable were 5148 millicnand 3232 million at September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Mon-currert income taxes receivable of $755 million and $731 million were included in other assets at September 30,
2017 and 2016, respectively. At September 30, 2017 and 2016, income taxes payable of 2243 million and 5153 million,
respectively, were included in accrued income taxes as part of accrued liabilities, and acerued income taxes of $1.1
billion and $911 million, respectively, were included in other long-term liabilities. See Nofe 7—Accrued and Other
Ligbilitias.

Cumulative undistributed earnings of the Company's international subsidiaries that are intended to be reinvested
indefinitely outside the United States amounted to $12.9 billion at September 30, 2017. The amount of income taxes
that would have resulted had such earmings been repatriated is not practicably determinable.

The Company's largest operating hub outside the United States is located in Singapore, It operates under a tax
incentive agreement which is effective through September 30, 2023, and is conditional upon meeting certain business
operations and employment thresholds in Singapore. The tax incentive agreement decreased Singapore tax by $252
million, $235 million and $192 million, and the benefit of the tax incentive agreement on diluted eamings per share
was 50,11, 50,10 and $0.08 in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Inaccordance with Accourting Standards Codification 740—Income Taxes, the Company is required to inventory,
evaluate and measure all uncentain tax positions taken or to be taken on tax returns, and to record liabilities for the
amount of such positions that may not be sustained, or may only partially be sustained, upon examination by the
relevant taxing authorities.

At September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company's total gross unrecognized tax benefits were $1.4 billion and
1.2 billion, respectively, exclusive of interest and penalties described below. Included inthe $1.4 billion and $1.2 billion
are 51,1 billion and $926 million of unrecognized tax benefits, respectively, that if recognized, would reduce the effective
tax rate in a future period,

A reconciliation of beginning and ending unrecognized tax benefits by fiscal year is as follows:

FLa 2016
{in milllons)
Beginning balance at October1 ... T B e e T ol 1,160 % 1,051
Increases of unrecognized tax benefits related to prior years ... 56 153
Decreases of unrecognized tax benefits related to prioryears ... (59) (180)
Increases of unrecognized tax benefits related to current year ... 197 138
Reductions related to lapsing statute of IMEEHONS ... e s s (1) (2)
Ending balance at September 30 ... .. $ 1,353 5 1,160

It is the Company's policy to account for interest expense and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in non-
operating expense in its consclidated statements of operations. The Company recognized 523 million and 215 million
of interest expense in fiscal 2017 and 2018, respectively, and reversed 36 million of interest expense in fiscal 2015,
related to uncertain tax positions. The Company accrued $1 million, 33 million and $1 million of penalties infiscal 2017,
2016 and 2013, respectively, related to uncertain tax pasitions. At September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company had
accrued interest of 584 million and $61 million, respectively, and accrued penalties of $34 milion and 517 million,
respectively, related to uncertaintax positions inits other long-term liabilities. At September 30, 2017 and 2016, accrued
interest and penalties balances included amounts related to the Visa Europe acquisition and measurement period
adjustments.
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The Company's fiscal 2009 through 2012 U.S. federal income tax returns are currently under Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) examination, The Company has filed a federal refund claim for fiscal year 2008, which is also currently
under IRS examination. Except for the refund claim, the federal statutes of limitations have expired for fiscal years
prior to 2009. The Compary's fiscal years 2006 through 2011 California tax returns are currently under examination.
The California statutes of limitations have expired for fiscal years prior to 2006,

During fiscal 2013, the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) completed its examination of the Company's fiscal 2003
through 2009 Canadian tax returns and proposed certain assessments. Based on the findings of its examination, the
CRA also proposed certain assessments to the Company's fiscal 2010 through 2016 Canadian tax returns. The
Company filed notices of objection against these assessments and, in fiscal 2015, completed the appeals process
without reaching a settiement with the CRA. InApril 2016, the Company petitioned the Tax Court of Canada to overturn
the CRA's assessments. Legal proceedings conlinue to be in progress. The Company continues to believe that its
income tax provision adeguately reflects its obligations to the CRA

The Company is also subject to examinations by various state and foreign tax authorities. All material state and
foreign tax matters have been concluded for years through fiscal 2002, The timing and outcome of the final resolutions
of the federal, state and foreign tax examinations and refund claims are uncertain. As such, it is not reascnably possible
to estimate the impact that the final outcomes could have on the Company's unrecognized tax benefits in the next 12
manths.

MNote 18—Legal Matters

The Company is party to various legal and regulatary proceedings. Some of these proceedings involve complex
claims that are subject to substantial uncertainties and unascertainable damages. Accordingly, except as disclosed,
the Company has not established reserves or ranges of possible loss related to these proceedings, as at this time in
the proceedings, the matters do not relate to a probable loss andfor the amount or range of losses are not reasonably
estimable. Athough the Company believes that it has strong defenses for the litigation and regulatory proceedings
described below, it could, in the future, incur judgments or fines or enter into settlements of claims that could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. From time to time, the
Company may engage in settlement discussions or mediations with respect to one or more of its cutstanding litigation
matters, either an its own behalf or collectively with other parties.

The litigation accrual is an estimate and is based on management's understanding of its litigation profile, the
specifics of each case, advice of counsel to the extent appropriate and management's best estimate of incurred loss
as of the balance sheet date.

The fellowing table summarizes the activity related to accrued litigation.

Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2016
{in milllons)

Balance st Ochobar o e e 5 881 3 1,024

Provision for uncoverad legal matters ... 19 2

Accrual for VE territory covered gation ..ot ssesminmssessssenserssases 188 2

Ay e S O e a] e S i i i i e Bk e e b ke b Ve a0 (204) (47)

Balance at September30. ... e A e LR e % 982 % 981
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Accrual Summary—U.S. Covered Litigation

Visa Inc., Visa U .5 A and Visa International are parties to certain legal proceedings that are covered by the US.
retrospective respansibility plan, which the Company refers to as the LS. covered litigation. See Note 3—U.5, and
Eurcpe Relrospective Responsibility Pians. An accrual for the U.S. covered litigation and a charge to the litigation
provision are recorded when loss is deerned to be probable and reasonably estimable. In making this determination,
the Company evaluates available information, including but not limited to actions taken by the litigation committes.
The total accrual related to the U.S. covered litigation could be either higher or lower than the escrow account balance.

The following table summarzes the activity related to U5, covered litigation

Fiscal 2047 Fiscal 2016
{in millions)

Balance at OclobBer 1 s 5 878 5 1,023

Payments on LS, coverat BHGRMON ..o sasaier et sasmissssintsssnisassisn — {45)

Balance at September30.... . e R e L e 5 978 & 978

Cn January 14, 2014, the MOL 1720 court entered a final judgment order approving a seftlement with class
plairtiffs in the interchange multidistrict litigation proceedings. As a result of appeals brought by certain merchants,
however, the final judgment order was reversed by the court of appeals on June 30, 2016, and the case was remanded
to the MDL 1720 court for further proceedings. Subsequently, on March 3, 2017, the MDL 1720 court ordered, amoang
other things, that the deadline to terminate the class settlement agreement be modified to extend indefinitely and that
the settlement funds continue to be administered by the settlement escrow agent until such time as the settlement
agreement is finally terminated. See further discussion below under Inferchange Multidistrict Liligation (MOL) - Putative
Class Actions. Visa initially made a payment of approximately $4.0 billion from the U.S. litigation escrow account into
the settlement fund pursuant to the class settlement agreement. Thereafter, on January 27, 2014, Visa received and
deposited into the Company's U.S. litigation escrow account “takedown payments” of approximately $1.1 billion, which
Visa was entitled to receive under the class settlement agreement based on payment card sales volume attributable
to merchants who opted out of the 2012 class settlement agreement. The depositinto the U.S. litigation escrow account
and a related increase in accrued litigation to address "opt-out” claims were recorded in the second quarter of fiscal
2014 An additional accrual of 3450 million associated with these opt-out claims was recorded in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2014. Payments totaling 3528 million were made from fiscal 2014 through 2017 from the U.S. litigation escrow
account reflecting settlements with a number of individual merchants that had opted out of the class settlement, resulting
inan accrued balance of 978 million related to U.S. covered litigation as of September 30, 2017 . See further discussion
below under Inferchange Multidistrict Litigation (MOL) = Individual Merchant Actions and Note 3—=U.5. and Europe
Relrospeclive Responsibility Plans,

Accrual Summary—VE Territory Covered Litigation

Visa Inc., Visa International and Visa Europe are parties to certain legal proceedings that are covered by the
Europe refrospective responsibility plan. Unlike the U.S. retrospective responsibility plan, the Europe retrospective
respoensibility plan does not have an escrow account that is used to fund settlements or judgments. The Company is
entitied to recover VE territory covered losses through a periodic adjustment to the conversion rates applicable to the
Ukl preferred stock and Europe preferred stock An accrual for the VE ternitory covered losses and a reduction to
stockholders' equity will be recorded when the loss is deemed to be probable and reasonably estimable. See further
discussion below under VE Termtory Coverad Litigafion and Note 3—U.5. and Eurgpe Retrospective Responsibility
Flans.
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The following table summarizes the activity related to VE territory covered litigation,

Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2016
{In millions)
Balance ot Ot 1 e e e 5 2. % —
Accrual for VE territory covered Ilgalion .............c e e crrmsimrsimers g s semsemiessmsnenses 1886 2
Payments on VE terribory coverad litigation ... {187) —
Balance at September 30 ... e B 1 5 2

U.5. Covered Litigation
interchange Multidistrict Litigation (MDL) = Pufative Class Actions

Beginning in May 2003, a series of complaints (the majornty of which were styled as class actions) were filed in
U.5. federal district courts by merchants against Visa U.5. A | Visa International and/or MasterCard, and in some cases,
certain Visa member financial institutions. The complaints challenged, ameng other things, Visa's and MasterCard's
purported setting of interchange reimbursement fees, their "no surcharge” rules, and alleged tying and bundling of
transaction fees under the federal antitrust laws, and, insome cases, certain state unfair competition laws. The Judicial
Fanel on Multidistrict Litigation issued an order transferring the cases to the UL.S. District Court for the Eastern District
of Mew York for coordination of pre-trial proceedings in MOL 1720. A group of purported class plaintiffs subsequently
filed a Second Consolidated Amended Class Action Complaint which, togetherwith the complaints brought by individual
merchants, sought money damages alleged to range in the tens of billions of dollars (subject to trebling), as well as
attorneys' fees and injunctive relief. The class plaintifis also filed a Second Supplemental Class Action Complaint
against Visa Inc. and certain member financial institutions challenging Visa's reorganization and IPO under the antitrust
laws and seeking unspecified money damages and declaratory and injunctive relief, including an order that the IPQ
be urwound.

The Company and certain individual merchants whose claims were consolidated with the MOL signed a settlement
agreement to resolve their claims against the Company for approximately 3350 million. This payment was made from
the U.S. litigation escrow account on October 28, 2012, and the court has dismissed those claims with prejudice.

In addition, Visa Inc., Visa U.S.A, Visa International, MasterCard Incorporated, MasterCard International
Incorporated, various U.S. financial institution defendants, and the class plaintiffs signed a settlement agreement (the
"2012 Settlement Agreement”) to resolve the class plaintiffs’ claims. The terms of the 2012 Settlement Agreement
ingluded, among other terms, (1) 2 comprehensive release of claims asserted in the litigation and protection against
future litigation regarding default interchange and other U.S. rules; (2) settlement payments from the Company of
approximately $4.0 billion and a further distribution of 10 basis points of default interchange for an eight-month period,
(3) certain modifications to the Company's rules, including modifications to permit surcharging on credit transactions
under certain circumstances; and (4) the Company's agreement to meet with merchant buying groups that seek to
collectively negotiate interchange rates. On December 10, 2012, Visa paid approximately $4.0 billion from the U.S
litigation escrow account into a settliement fund established pursuant to the 2012 Settlement Agreement.

On January 14, 2014, the court entered a final judgment order approving the settlement, from which a number
of objectors appealed. On June 30, 2016, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit vacated the lower court's
cerification of the merchant class and reversed the approval of the settlement. The Second Circuit determined that
the class plaintiffs were inadequately represented, and remanded the case to the lower court for further proceedings
mot inconsistent with its decision, On Movernber 23, 2016, class plaintiffs that signed the 2012 Settlement Agreement
filed a petition for writ of certiorari with the U.S. Supreme Court seeking review of the Second Circuit's decision. The
Supreme Court denied the petition on March 27, 2017,
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Cn Movemnber 30, 2016, the district court entered an order appointing interim counsel for two putative classes of
plaintiffs, a "Damages Class” and an “Injunctive Relief Class.” Following the district court's order, on February 8, 2017,
plaintiffs purporting to act on behalf of the putative Damages Class sought leave to file a Third Consolidated Amended
Class Action Complaint. The complaint sought money damages allegedto range in the tens of billions of dollars (subject
to trebling), as well as attorneys’ fees and injunctive relief, and named as defendants Visa Inc., Visa US A Visa
Intermational, MasterCard Incorporated and MasterCard International Incorpeorated, and cerain LS. financial
institutions. The plaintiffs asserted that the proposed complaint updated, among other things, claims for damages and
accounted for industry developments. Defendarnts opposed the Damages Class plaintiffs’ motion on March 10, 2017,
On Septernber 27, 2017, the magistrate judge granted in parn and denied in part the motion seeking leave to amend
the complaint, and plaintiffs objected to the portions of the magistrate judge's order denying their motion on October
23, 2017, Plaintiffs filed the Third Consolidated Amended Class Action Complaint on Oclober 27, 2017

A new group of purported class plaintiffs, acting on behalf of the putative Injunctive Relief Class, filed a class
action complaint seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, as well as attorneys' fees. That complaint seeks, among
other things, an injunction against: the setting of default interchange rates; certain Visa rules relating to merchants,
including the honor-all-cards rule; and various transaction fees, including the fixed acquirer network fee. The complaint
names as defendants Visa Inc., MasterCard Incorporated and MasterCard International Incorporated, and certain LS.
financial institutions,

The putative class actions are considered U.S. covered litigation for purposes of the US retrospective
responsibility plan. See Nate 3=U.5. and Eurape Retrospective Responsibility Flans.

interchange Multidistrict Litigation (MOL) = Individual Merchant Actions

Beginning in May 2013, more than 50 cases have been filed in various federal district courts by hundreds of
merchants who had opted out of the damages portion of the 2012 Settlerment Agreement, generally pursuing damages
claims on allegations similar to those raised in MDL 1720, A number of the cases also include allegations that Visa
has menopelized, attempted to monopolize, and/or conspired to menopolize debit card-related market segments. In
addition, some of the cases seek an injunction against the setting of defaultinterchange rates; certain Visa rules relating
to merchants, including the honor-all-cards rule; and various transaction fees, including the fixed acquirer network fee,
One merchant's complaintalso asserts that Visa, MasterCard and their member banks conspired to prevent the adoption
of chip-and-PIMN authentication in the U.S. or otherwise circumvent competition in the debit market. The cases name
as defendants Visa Inc, Visa U.S.A, Visa International, MasterCard Incorporated and MasterCard International
Incorporated, although some also include certain LS. financial institutions as defendants. Wal-Mart Stores Inc. and
its subsidiaries filed a complaint that also adds Visa Europe Limited and Visa Europe Semvices Inc. as defendants.

Beginning on February 8, 2017, certain individual merchants filed motions in existing actions in MDL 1720
requesting leave to amend their complaints. The proposed amended complaints, among other things, added claims
for injunctive relief and updated claims for damages. As with the Damages Class's motion, the magistrate judge granted
in part and denied in part the motions seeking leave to amend these complaints and, on Cctober 23, 2017, these
plaintiffs also objected to the portion of the magistrate judge's order denying their motions. The individual merchants
thenfiled the amended complaints on October 27, 2017, Inaddition, certain individuwal merchants have filed new actions
in federal court which were subsequently included in MDL 1720,

In addition to the cases filed by individual merchants, Visa, MasterCard, and certain U.S. financial institution
defendants in MOL 1720 filed a complaint in the Eastern District of New York against certain named class representative
plaintiffs who had opted out or stated their intention to opt out of the damages portion of the 2012 Settlement Agreement,
In addition, Visa filed three more similar complaints in the Eastern District of New York against Wal-Mart Stores Inc;
against The Home Depat, Inc. and Home Depot LS A and against Sears Holdings Corporation. All four complaints
seek a declaration that, from January 1, 2004 to November 27, 2012, the time period for which opt-outs could seek
damages under the 2012 Settlement Agreement, Visa's conduct in, among other things, continuing to set default
interchange rates, maintaining its “honar all cards” rule, enforcing certain rules relating to merchants, and restructuring
itself, did not violate federal or state antitrust laws,
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Allthe cases filed in federal court have been either assigned to the judge presiding over MDL 1720, or have been
transferred or are being considered for transfer by the Judicial Panel on Multidistnict Litigation for inclusion in MDL
1720. The court has entered an order confirming that In re Payment Card Interchange Fae and Merchant Discount
Antitrust Litigation, 1:05-md-01720-JG-J0 (E.D.N.Y), includes (1) all current and future actions transferred to MOL
1720 by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation or other order of any court for inclusion in coordinated or pretrial
proceedings, and (2) all actions filed in the Eastern District of New York that arise out of operative facts as alleged in
the cases subject to the transfer orders of the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation. Cases that have beentransferred
to or otherwise included in MOL 1720 are ULS. covered litigation for purposes of the LS. retrospective responsibility
plan, unless otherwise noted. See Note 3—UL. 5. and Europe Retraspective Responsibility Flans.

Anumber of individual merchant actions previously filed have beensettled, and remainsettied. In addition, following
the autormatic termination of the settlement agreement with Wal-Mart Stores Inc., Visa and Wal-Mart Stores Inc. entered
inte a new, uncenditional settiernent agreement on October 31, 2017. Consequently, as of the filing date, Visa has
reached settflement agreements with individual merchants representing approximately 31% of the Visa-branded
payment card sales volume of merchants who opted out of the 2012 Settlernent Agreement.

Finally, certain merchants filed actions in state courts, generally pursuing claims on allegations similar to those
raised in MOL 1720. On July 12, 2018, Broadway Crill, Inc. ("Broadway Grill'), on behalf of itself and a putative class
of California merchants that have accepted Visa-branded cards since January 1, 2004, filed a lawsuit against Visa
Inc., Visa International and Visa U5 A in California state court On February 17, 2017, a merchant filed a case in
Texas state court. Both cases were subsequently removed from their respective state courts to federal district courts
and, thereafter, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation issued crders transferring the cases to MOL 1720. Both
matters are U5, covered litigation for purposes of the LS. retrospective responsibility plan. See Note 3—U.S. and
Europe Retrospective Respansibility Plans.

While the Company believes that it has substantial defenses inthese matters, the final outcome of individual legal
claims is inherently unpredictable, The Company could incur judgments, enter into setlements or revise its expectations
regarding the outcome of individual merchant claims, and such developments could have a material adverse effect on
the Company's financial results in the period inwhich the effect becomes probable and reasonably estimable.

VE Territory Covered Litigation
UK Merchant Litigation

Since July 2013, in excess of 300 Merchants (the capitalized term "Merchant," when used in this section, means
a merchant together with subsidianyfaffiliate companies that are party to the same claim) have commenced procesdings
against Visa Europe, Visa Inc. and Visa International relating to interchange rates in Europe. They seek damages for
alleged anti-competitive conduct in relation to one or more of the following types of interchange fees for credit and
debit card transactions: UK domestic, Insh domestic, other European domestic, intra-European Economic Area and/
or other inter-regional. Ag of the filing date, Visa Europe, Visa Inc. and Visa International have settled the claims
asserned by over 75 Merchants, leaving more than 200 Merchants with outstanding claims

In Novernber 2016, a trial commenced relating to claims filed by a number of Merchants. All of these Merchants
except one settled before the trial concluded in March 2017. A decision is pending with respect to that remaining
Merchant. If the Merchant prevails, the amount of any loss it suffered will be determined in a separate trial in the future.

In addition, over 30 additional Merchants have threatened to commence similar proceedings. Standstill
agreements have been entered into with respect to some of those Merchants' claims. While the amount of interchange
being challenged could be substantial, these claims have not yet been filed and their full scope s not yet known. The
Company has leamed that several additional European entities have indicated that they may also bring similar claims
and the Company anticipates additional claims in the future,

The full scope of damages is not yet known because not all Merchant claims have been served and Visa has
substantial defenses. However, the total darmages sought in the outstanding claims that have been issued, served
andfor preserved likely amounts to more than one billion dollars.
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Other Litigation

Eurapean Commission Proceedings

Inter-regional Interchange Invasfigation. Following the issuance of a Statement of Objections in 2008 concerning,
amang other things, the alleged default application of Visa Inc.'s inter-regional interchange fees to intra-regional and
domestlicconsumer debit and credit card transactions inthe European Economic Area (EEA), the European Commission
(EC) served a Supplementary Statement of Chjections (S50) on Visa Inc. and Visa International in 2013 and a revised
S50 in August 2017, The revised S50 concerns only the application of Visa Inc.'s inter-regional interchange fees to
transactions invalving Visa consumer debit and credit cards issued outside of the Visa Europe region and used at
merchants located within the EEA The EC continues to claim that inter-regional interchange fees violate EEA
compefition law and may impose fines in the event that it adopts an infringement decision. The potential amount of
any fine cannot be estimated at this time. The Commission may also require Visa to reduce the default inter-regional
interchange rates the Company sets, revise the Visa rules or the way in which the Company enforces its rules, or
otherwise modify the way the Company does business.

All issues relating to intra-regional or domestic consurmer debit and credit card transactions acquired in the EEA
were setiled by commitments offered by Visa Europe Limited in 2010 and 2014 respectively, and endarsed by the EC.
The debit commitments have expired, but the credit commitments apply until March 201 8. Following its acqguisition of
Visa Europe Limited in June 2016, the credit commitments are binding upon Visa Inc.

DCC investigation. In 2013, the EC opened an investigation against Visa Europe, based on a complaint alleging
that Visa Europe's pricing of and rules relating to Dynamic Currency Corversion (DCC) transactions infringe EU
competition rules. This investigation is pending.

Canadian Competition Proceedings

Merchant Litigation, Beginning in December 2010, a number of class action lawsuits were filed in Cluebec, British
Columbia, Ontario, Saskatchewan and Alberta against Visa Canada, MasterCard and ten financial institutions on behalf
of merchants that accept payment by Visa andfor MasterCard credit cards. Three separate actions were filed (including
one against Visa Canada Corporation and Visa Inc., two MasterCard entities and smaller Canadian issuing banks),
but those three cases have been discontinued. The remaining cases allege a violation of Canada's price-fixing law
and various commaon law claims based on separate Visa and MasterCard conspiracies in respect of default interchange
and certain of the networks' rules. Five of the named financial institutions have now settled with the plaintiffs, and one
of these settlements is awaiting court approval,

On March 26, 2014, the Brtish Columbia Supreme Court, in one of the class action suits noted above, Watson
v. Bank of America Caorporation, &f al, granted the plaintiff's application for class cerification in part. On appeal from
both the defendants and the plaintiff, the British Columbia Court of Appeal allowed the class proeceedings to advance
but limited the time period of plaintiff's main price-fixing claim to prior to March 2010. The related lawsuits in Ontario,
Alberta, and Saskatchewan have effectively been stayed pending further proceedings in Eritish Columbia. The Quebec
case is proceading to class authornization in November 2017.

On June 2, 2017, Visa executed an agreement with merchant class plaintiffs to settle, on a national basis, the
active class actions filed in Quebec, British Columbia, Ontario, Saskatchewan and Alberta. The agreement is subject
to final court approval across all of these provinges,
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Data Pass Litigatton

On Movemnber 19, 2010, a consumer filed an amended class action complaint against Webloyalty.com, Inc.,
Gamestop Corporation, and Visa Inc. in Connecticut federal district court, seeking damages, restitution and injunctive
relief on the grounds that consumers who made online purchases at merchants were allegedly deceived into incurming
charges for services from Webloyalty. com through the unauthonized passing of cardholder account information durning
the sales transaction (“data pass"), inviolation of federal and state consumer protection statutes and commaon law. On
Ootaber 15, 2015, the cournt dismissed the case inits entirety, without leave to replead. Plaintiff filed a notice of appeal
on Movember 12, 2015, On December 20, 2016, the LS. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit affirmed the dismissal
as to certain claims against Gamestop Corporation, Webloyalty com, Inc. and Visa, vacated the dismissal as to cartain
claims against Webloyalty and Gamestop, and remanded the case to the district court for further proceedings on the
remaining claims,

U.5. ATM Access Fee Liligation

National ATM Council Class Action. In Cotober 2011, the Mational ATM Council and thiteen non-bank ATM
operators filed a purported class action lawsuit against Visa (Visa Inc., Visa International, Visa U.S.A. and Plus System,
Inc.) and MasterCard in the LLS. District Court for the District of Columbia. The complaint challenges Visa's rule (and
a similar MasterCard rule) that if an ATM operator chooses to charge consumers an access fee for a Visa or Plus
transaction, that fee cannot be greater than the access fee charged for transactions on other netwarks. Flaintiffs claim
that the rule viplates Section 1 of the Sherman Act, and seek treble damages, injunctive relief, and attorneys' fees.

Consumer Class Actions. In October 2011, a purported consumer class action was filed against Visa and
MasterCard in the same federal court challenging the same ATM access fee rules. Two other purported consumer
class actions challenging the rules, later combined, were also filed in October 2011 in the same federal court naming
Visa, MasterCard and three financial institutions as defendants. Flaintifis seek freble damages, restitution, injunctive
relief, and attorneys' fees where available under federal and state law, including under Section 1 of the Sherman Act
and consumer protection statutes.

These cases are proceeding in the district court
U.8. Deparfment of Justice Civil Investigative Demand

On March 13, 2012, the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice {the "Division') issued a
Civil Investigative Demand, or “CID," to Visa Inc. seeking documents and information regarding a potential violation
of Section 1 or 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 US.C. §§ 1, 2 The CID focuses on PIN-Authenticated Visa Debit and Visa's
competitive responses to the Dodd-Frank Act, including Visa's fived acquirer network fee. Visa is cooperating with the
Division in connection with the CID.

Fulse Network

On Movember 25, 2014, Pulse MNetwork LLC filed suit against Visa Inc. in federal district court in Texas. Pulse
alleges that Visa has monopolized and attempted to monopolize debit card network services markets. Pulse also
alleges that Visa has entered into agreements in restraint of trade, engaged in unlawful exclusive dealing and tying,
violated the Texas Free Enterprise and Antitrust Act and engaged in tortious interference with prospective business
relationships. Pulse seeks unspecified treble damages, attorneys’ fees and injunctive relief, including to enjoin the
fixed acquirer network fee structure, Visa's conduct regarding PIN-Authenticated Visa Debit and Visa agreements with
merchants and acqguirers relating to debit acceptance. OnJanuary 23, 2015, Visa filed a motion to dismiss the complaint,
Cn Decemnber 17, 2015, the court denied Visa's motion to dismiss the complaint. On August 15, 2017, Visa moved for
surmmary judgment.

New Mexico Aftornay General
On December 23, 2014, a case was filed in New Mexico state court by New Mexico's attorney general on behalf
of the state, state agencies and citizens of the state, generally pursuing claims on allegations similar to those raised

in MDL 1720. On May 15, 2015, defendants filed a partial meotion to dismiss, which the court granted in part; the court's
order, among other things, narrowed the state antitrust damages claims.
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EMV Chip Liabiiity Shift

Following their initial complaint filed on March 8, 2016, B&R Supermarket, Inc., d/bfa Milam's Market, and Grove
Liguors LLC filed an amended class action complaint on July 15, 2016, against Visa Inc., Visa LS A, MasterCard,
Discaver, American Express, EMVCao and certain financial institutions in the U_S. District Court for the Northern District
of Califormia, The amended complaint asserts that defendants, through EMVYCao, conspired to shift liability for fraudulent,
faulty or otherwise rejected payment card transactions from defendants to the purported class of merchants, defined
as those merchants throughout the United States who have been subjected to the "Liability Shift” since Cctober 2015
Plaintiffs claim that the so-called "Liakility Shift” violates Sections 1 and 3 of the Sherman Act and certain state laws,
and seek treble damages, injunctive relief and attorneys' fees.

On September 30, 2016, the court granted motions to dismiss the amended complaint filed by EMVCo and the
financial institution defendants, but denied motions to dismiss filed by Visa Inc., Visa U.S.A | MasterCard, American
Express and Discover. On March 10, 2017, the plaintiffs filed a motion for class cedification, On May 4, 2017, the
district court granted a motion to transfer the action to the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Mew York, which
has clarified that this case is not part of MDL 1720,

Walmart Acceplahce Agreament

On May 10, 2016, Wal-Mart Stores Inc. and various affiliates ("Walmart”) filed a lawsuit against Visa U.S.A. in
Mew York County Supreme Court, Walmart seeks a declaratory judgment that certain of its practices related to the
acceptance of Visa debit cards did not previously and would not in the future constitute a breach of the acceptance
agreement entered into between Walmarn and Visa, Walmar also seeks attorneys’ fees and a declaratony judgment
that certain of Visa's actions violated the same agreement. On June 29, 2016, Visa answered the complaint and filed
counterclaims seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, as well as costs and other remedies. In its counterclaims, Visa
alleges that certain of Walmar's conduct and practices relating to the acceptance of Visa debit cards constitute a
breach of the acceptance agreement and a breach of the implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, and that Walmart
fraudulently induced Visa to enter into the acceptance agreement.

In February 2017, the Court granted Walmant's motion to dismiss Visa's counterclaim for fraudulent inducement.
Thereafter, Walmart filed a metion for summary judgment on its declaratory judgment claim, and Visa subsequently
filed a motion to dismiss Walmart's claim. The parties then reached a settlement agreement, and the case has been
dismissed

Kroger

On June 27, 2016, The Kroger Co. ("Kroger") filed a lawsuit against Visa Inc. in the U.S. District Court for the
Southern District of Ohio. In its cornplaint, Kroger seeks a declaratory judgment that certain of Visa's rules related to
the acceptance of Visa debit cards are inconsistent with the Dodd-Frank Act. Kroger also seeks damages and other
relief related to certain state law claims. On September 29, 2017, the court granted Visa's motion to dismiss Kroger's
claims for declaratory judgment but denied Visa's motion to dismiss Kroger's state law claims for damages and other
relief. Kroger subsequently amended its complaint, adding claims for declaratory judgment that certain of its actions
or policies did not violate a commercial agreement between Kroger and Visa and seeking other relief under additional
state law claims. On November 13, 2017, Visa filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint.

MNuts far Candy

CnApril 5, 2017, plaintiff Muts for Candy, on behalf of itself and a putative class of California merchants that have
accepted Visa-branded cards since January 1, 2004, filed a lawsuit against Visa Inc., Visa International and Visa U.S A
in California state court. Similar to plaintiff Broadway Grill, discussed above in interchange Mulbidistrict Litigation (MDL)
— Individual Merchant Aclions, Nuts for Candy pursues claims under Califormia state antitrust and unfair business
statutes. Muts for Candy seeks damages, costs and other remedies. On September 6, 2017, Visa moved to stay Nuts
for Candy's action pending the outcome of the Broadway Grifl action, which was denied by the court on October 5. On
Movember 8, 2017, Visa moved for summary adjudication of Muts for Candy's California unfair business statute claims.

111

243/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OooooOodd
Table of Contents
VISA INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
September 30, 2017
Korea Fair Trade Commission

Following complaints lodged by certain financial institutions in Korea, in Movember 2016, the Korea Fair Trade
Commission (KFTC) initiated an investigation inte certain pricing changes applicable to Visa financial institutions in
Korea. Visa is cooperating with the KFTC.

Chic Atlorney General Civil Inveshigative Demand

On January 19, 2017, the State of Chio Cffice of the Attorney General issued an investigative demand to Visa
seeking documents and information focusing on Visa's rules related to the acceptance of Visa debit cards, as well as
cardholder verification methods and the routing of Visa debit transactions. Visa is cooperating with the Attorney General.
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following tables show selected quarterly operating results for each quarter and full year of fiscal 2017 and
2016 for the Company:

Quarter Ended {unaudited) Fiscal Yoar
Vi September 30, June 30, March }1. December 31,

isa Inc. 2017 2017 2017 ™M 2MME 2017 Total

{in millions, except per share data)
Operating revenues ... $ 4855 % 4565 % 4477 & 4481 = 18,358
Operating income ....................... § 3212 5 3029 % 2808 % 3100 2 12,144
Netincome . . ... 5 2140 % 2059 & 430 % 2070 & 6,699
Basic earnings per share
Class Acommonstock..........ccoeiniinne 5 091 % 087 & 018 % 086 3% 2.80
Class B common stock ..o, 3 149 % 143 8 030 % 141 & 4,62
Class Ccommon stock ..o, % 362 % 346 3 072 % 343 3 11.21
Diluted earnings per share
Class Acommonstock.......... . 5 090 % DBE & 018 & 088 % 280
Class Becommonstock ... -] 148 § 142 & 029 & 141 § 4 81
Class Ccommonstock ... g 361 % 345 & D72 % 342 § 11.19
Quarter Ended {unauditad) Fiscal Yaar
Visa Ine. St 3016 it Msien” Do 2016 Total
{in millions, except per share data)

Operating revenues ... 8 4261 § 3,630 & 3,626 % 3565 § 15082
Operating income ... .. § 2625 % 428 % 2434 § 2396 § 7,883
Netincome. . ... R T SA % 1931 & 412 8 1,707 % 1941 3 5,991
Basic earnings per share
Class Acommonstock. ... 5 079 & 017 % 071 % 080 % 249
Class Bocommon stock ..o $ 13 5 029 % 117 & 132 3 410
Class C common stock ... b 347 & 069 % 285 % 320 = 9.94
Diluted earnings per share
Class A common stock.........cccviiiienene B 079 & 017 % 0.71 % 080 % 248
Class Bocommonstock .o 3 130 % 028 % 147 % 132 % 4.08
Class Ccommon stock ..., & 316 § 069 & 284 3 320 % 993

The Company's unaudited consolidaled statement of cperations include the impact of several significant one-lime items. See Owenview within
ltem T—Management's Discussion and Analysiz of Financial Condition and Results of Operabions of this report.

The Company did nol include Visa Europe's Bnancial results in the Company's unaudiled consolidated financial statements of operations from
the acquisition date, June 21, 20186, through June 30, 2016 as the impact was immaterial, The dilutive impact of the outstanding shares of series
Band C convertible participating preferred steck from June 21, 2016 thrawgh June 30, 2016 was 8150 not included in the caleulation of basic
of diluted earnings per share as the effect was immaterial, See Nofe 2—WVizsa Europe and Note 14—Earnings Per Shere to the consolidated
financial statements included in lfem 8—Financial Statements and Supplementary Dala of this report.
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Visalnc.:

We consent to the inclusion in this Securities Report on Form 8 of Visa Inc. filed with the Kanto Local
Finance Bureau of our report dated November 16, 2017with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Visa
Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended September 30, 2017, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Visa

Inc. as of September 30, 2017, and to the reference to our firm under the caption “Section VI. - Financia
Conditions’ in this Securities Report.

/s KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, Cdlifornia
March 28, 2018

255/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OooooOodd
2017 2016 30 2017
30
( C0S0 ) (2013 ) 2017 30

~ ~
-

)

2017 2016 30 2017 30

C0S0
(2013 ) 2017 30

256/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

/s/

2017 11 16

257/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Visalnc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2017.
We aso have audited Visa Inc.’s internal control over financia reporting as of September 30, 2017, based on
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Visa Inc.’s management is responsible for these consolidated financia
statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financia reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated
financia statements included examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overal financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia
respects, the financial position of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2017and 2016, and the
results of its operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September
30, 2017, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, Visa Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financia reporting as of September 30,
2017, based on Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
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/s KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, California
November 16, 2017
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